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CORPORATE INTRODUCTION

REBHN

BT I & 4%

BRI (RROH - 0268) ,
BEADSEEAT GRS L IRRER S
BERUEEDPENT EENELE N RREEE.

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (“Kingdee International”) is a listed company on the Main Board of the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange (Stock Code: 0268.HK). It is a leader of enterprise management software and internet service in China and Asia Pacific region, and a leading
provider of middleware, online management and life-cycle e-commence service provider.

Kingdee International was founded in 1993 and headquartered in Shenzhen, PRC. With “Streamline Your Business Process” as its mission and “Walk
on ZHENGDAO (right track) and Walk by WANGDAQ (noble way)” as its core values, the Group is providing Cloud Management products and services for
over one million corporates and government organizations worldwide with the aim to become the world’s leading Cloud Management service provider.
The Group consists of Kingdee Software (China) Co., Ltd. with a focus on corporate management software and internet services markets, Shenzhen
Kingdee Middleware Co., Ltd. with a focus on middleware business, Kingdee Medical Software Company Ltd. which provides IT integrated solutions
provider for medical and health organizations, as well as Kingdee International Software Group (H.K.) Co., Ltd. which focuses on APAC ex-China and
overseas markets.

Kingdee International has been ranked by IDC as the leader in the SME ERP market in China for nine consecutive years and by Forbes Asia as one of
“Asia’s Best under a Billion” for five consecutive years. Testifying to its technology leadership, Kingdee International became the sixth member of The
Open Group, an authority of formulating the TOGAF Standards, following five world leading IT enterprise, including Capgemini, Hewlett Packard, IBM,
SAP and Sun Micro systems.
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

MRS

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARWTT AREFTT
Turnover | 1,602,125 1,765,493
Profit attributable to owners of the Company ERRE=EEAEEER 126,400 (140,246)
Dividends per share SRS HKD;& & — HKD/& #E —

Earnings per share FRER
— basic —HK RMB A E #0.0501 RMB A & #(0.0557)
— diluted ) ] RMBAR®0.0482  RMBAR(0.0557)

Earnings Per Share — Basic Return on Equity
SkEH — EF BRELRE
RMB %

AR

0.1070 0.1093

171 17.7

0.0577
0.0501

9.0

7.2

-0.0557

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
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Turnover

RMB'000
ARBTT

1,436,621

996,810

2009 2010

2,022,498

1,765,493
1,602,125

2011 2012 2013

Turnover Breakdown by Business

ERBEEREGSL

%

I Sales of software license
B E

Il Implementation
BB AR
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3.0%

48.1%

Il Consulting, training and maintenance
B B B R BRI A

Il Others
H e A

Operating Profit
BERT
RMB'000
AREFT
300,618
219,240
190,286
-102,937
2009 2010 2011 2012

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Company

FAFIRRERARGRT
RMB'000
AREFTT
211,710
212,497
144,988
-140,246
2009 2010 2011 2012

238,569

2013

126,400

2013



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
LEREME

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HHAHGFSRER
Year ended 31 December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
“TTNE —T-TF =—T—F T IZEB-Zf
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’000  RMB’000
ARE ARE ARE AR AR
Revenues £ 096,810 1,436,621 2,022,498 1,765,493 1,602,125
Gross profit EH 778,025 1,098,828 1,417,842 1,146,967 1,205,889
Profit/(loss) before income tax MBRFTEHAT AT,/
(B18) 223,093 295,021 181,442  (162,020) 136,579
Profit/(loss) for the year FERH,/(FH8B) 213,414 276,266 153,162 (163,975) 119,407
Profit/(loss) attributable to owners NEERTA AEG
of the Company &R/ (B8) 212,479 271,710 144,988 (140,246) 126,400

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year ZAREEaiEEU
(&518) 240,260 291,216 154,074 (77,134 119,407

Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable BB AA AR AE
to owners of the Company mgra ks (B18) 239,325 286,660 145,900 (03,405 126,400

CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

HHAHEERARE
As at 31 December
2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
—TTNFE ZTTF % ZT——f CZE-Z§
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000  RMB’000
AR ARE ARE AR IN:
Assets g
Non-current assets ERBEE 839,257 1,109,999 1,686,582 2,418,823 2,347,786
Current assets MEBAE 923,866 1,148,259 1,347,410 1,562,527 1,580,015
Total assets WRE 1,763,123 2,258,258 3,033,992 3,981,350 3,927,801
Equity and liabilities ERRAfR
Equity attributable to the Company’s ANREREE AL
owners BARR G 1,242,345 1,534,054 1,609,294 1,578,843 1,750,412
Non-controlling interests DY RER 9,715 14,271 34,316 11,459 4,466
Total equity BiEs 1,252,060 1,548,325 1,643,610 1,590,302 1,754,878
Non-current liabilities ErRBaE - 218,837 683,128 1,432,940 1,221,007
Current liabilities k=R 511,063 491,096 707,254 958,108 951,916
Total liabilities FEN=R 511,063 709,933 1,390,382 2,391,048 2,172,923
Total equity and liabilities BEENEE 1,763,123 2,258,258 3,033,992 3,981,350 3,927,801

SRERRNEEARAT — T =550 7 l



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERW|E

The Group will adhere to the overall strategy of “Leading-
Platform, Partner-First, Enthusiastic-Professional, Mut

Success”. The Group will constantly improve ERP in t @@het
Era with the dual-core drivers.

EESO [ TEEE BAEL REE LARE) ORRESI  SHED .
BENE AR T HERP - %
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On behalf of the board of directors, | would like to present the financial and
operating results of Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited for
the year ending 31 December 2013 to shareholders for reference.

In 2013, with the effective execution of the 5 major strategies, the Group
witnessed a rapid growth of Cloud Management and significant success of
business transformation to the Internet. Thus, the Group turned to profit from
loss in the same period last year. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company was approximately RMB126,400,000, while comprehensive profit
attributable to equity holders was approximately RMB126,400,000, basic
earnings per share was approximately RMB0.0501, net cash flow generated
from operating activities was approximately RMB415,144,000. Due to the
uncertainties of macro-economy and the short-term impact arising from
proactive business restructuring efforts, the Group’s turnover for the year
decreased 9.3% year-on-year to RMB1,602,125,000. The board of directors
would not recommend paying dividends for the fiscal year ending 31 December
2013 at the annual general meeting.

Year 2013 marked Kingdee’s 20th anniversary and a crucial year of exploring
and transforming to Internet. Driven by the rapid transformation to the Internet,
the group earned recognition from global investors. Kingdee has accumulated
over 1 million ERP customers, 2 million corporate Internet customers and 20
million users. The Group not only performed steadily in the ERP business, but
also earned high recognized from mobile Internet users. In the reporting period,
Kingdee was honored as “The No. 1 Market Share Leader in China’s SME
Market” for the ninth straight year; gained the first-mover advantages in the
corporate Internet market; was approved for the establishment of the National
Enterprise Internet Service Supporting and Software Engineering Technology
Research Centre; formed partnerships with Internet giants such as Baidu and
Alibaba.

Changes stimulated our thinking as opportunities strengthen our belief. Over
the past 20 years, Kingdee has developed its core moral values of “Walk on
ZHENGDAO (right track) and Walk by WANGDAO (noble way)” as we believe that
only walking on the right track with integrity, fairness, righteousness. This allows
enterprises to get back to the basics of running a business and on the basis of
contract, thereby initiating a modern business civilization.

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT x/E#&

AAERREFEMZMURRER: KARSM EBERARAE
“E-ZHETCAST - RALFREZMBREERS - UHRRE

& ,

=
EE-F-—=% SEREEIABRERARINT  ZEEEH

B DAlEERBARGEHAFRELREBADRINAARE
126,400,0007C & A R % 126,400,000 + FREAERF 4 A AR50
il EEE SRS RO AARE5,1440007T - LEBLETHET
SREREETIDALEBLBOCHTE  2FLEELREAN
& BEFRHTRI%NEARKEL602,1250007T - EFE KT
BRBFAG I TRBREH I T =F+-A=+—H LK
RE

T ZFREBTIEBELF  MESHBONEHARRA
BRNER T RETLBEER FMRRTE ) - £EEES
RERFBREBENZD AT - BEEZRTBBI100SERPEF « 2008
TEEHRARE - R2,0008E P - RETMEERPE 7 HISEI
% PUEVHORAEHESAPRERY - REHN - SkEE
ENFEHPEP/)CERPTSE— UWEZRISTEERN
SHHEHBEEMGEEES  TERTERR TRETHRET
O EEE MEEBSEMPELEERY AFRE -

ERHEAMEE  WBBERMER - —TFK  2HBHTK
[ELE  TIBINRLEER  RERFELE  BRAGL
B DTIEE THEBEDRRORE  REBRRITIE B
Mt BRHAIHR - T BRRAHEENE -

SRERRNEEARAT — T =550 9 l



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT =FE#& &

We believe that the Internet will change the world. Looking ahead into 2014,
the Group will adhere to the overall strategy of “Leading-Platform, Partner-First,
Enthusiastic-Professional, Mutual-Success”. The Group will constantly improve
ERP in the Internet Era with the dual-core drivers, while improving product
quality, creating the best user experience and evolving the enterprise Internet
business model, introducing more leading Cloud Management products, working
and growing more closely with customers. We will create greater value for
shareholders and customers, become the Cloud Management leader and lead
the industry to re-imagination. We will share the success with all stakeholders:
to promote career development for staff, to create a win-win for partners, to
grow together with customers and to deliver fair returns to shareholders.

l 1 0 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 &=

1. Business Review

In 2013, the Group turned to profit from loss in the same period last year. With
the effective execution of 5 major strategies, the Group witnessed rapid growth
in Cloud Management and significant success in a business transition toward
the Internet. The Group’s gross margin and net profit margin compared with
last year grew by 10.3 points to 75.3% and 15.8 points to 7.9%, respectively.
Net operating cash flow was RMB415,144,000. Due to the short-term impact
arising from proactive business restructuring efforts, the Group’s revenue for
the year decreased by 9.3%. Given the Group’s reinvention and restructuring in
the past two years, its strategy is ever more balanced and profit-focused. During
the reporting period, the Group concentrated more on enhancing its product
competitiveness, streamlining its business structure, strategically strengthening
indirect sales distribution, and developing in-depth customer engagement
and control costs. Meanwhile, the Group embraced innovations by venturing
into Social Networking, Mobile Technology and Cloud Computing products
and services to become a global Cloud Management leader while facilitating
business transformation and upgrades for existing customers. The Group is
certain in its strategic direction and is confident regarding its future prospects.

l 12 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS &2 &=y E2 2 47

l. Enterprise Management Software and Services

Small and Medium-sized Business Product Market

The Mobile Internet and e-commerce trend in year 2013 led to strong demand
from small and medium-sized enterprises seeking transformation to Cloud
Management. The Group innovated and upgraded Internet ERP products rapidly
to accommodate the needs of more than 1 million small and medium-sized ERP
customers. The Group has achieved economies of scale in respect of its service
and points-of-sale, creating 020 ecology with distribution and service partners
to provide customers with more comprehensive products and services.

During the reporting period, with its insights into the necessity for small and
medium-sized businesses to establish information systems for e-commerce
platform, the Group timely released the KIS E-commence flagship version that
substantially enhances management efficiency of e-commerce businesses. The
product, which seamlessly collects data systems of Taobao and Tmall, has been
well-received by the market.

For small and medium-sized businesses, the Group completed the deployment
of K/3 Cloud, a new generation ERP software, on Microsoft's Windows Azure
Public Cloud in 2013. It was China’s first web-based on-demand ERP system.
During the reporting period, the Group also released K/3 Cloud V2.0 that
significantly lowers IT costs and turns high one-off investment of IT assets
into flexible on-demand IT services. This has won the Group contracts with
corporations including Filtronic China and Joyou.

As regards sales channels, the Group adhered to a “Leading-Platform, Partner-
First” strategy, integrating the resources of sales, marketing, R&D and training,
building up and developed professional channel team, providing support and
development path for partners, strengthening Kingdee partners’ competencies
and achieving a win-win between Kingdee and partners.

During the reporting period, the Group also received high-level recognitions
from international authorities. In May 2013, IDC’s China Enterprise Application
Software Market Analysis Report’, the Group was honored as “The No. 1 Market
Share Leader in China’s SME Market” for the ninth straight year.

Medium and Large-sized Enterprises Product and Industry Market

The Group also developed accelerated industry transformations and upgrades,
for medium and large-sized enterprises to drive business and management
innovations. The Group’s EAS products integrate numerous successful Chinese
Management practices, which are designed for the habits and characteristics
of Chinese medium and large-sized enterprises. During the reporting period,
the Group continued to develop solutions for industries such as property and 4S
automobile by launching a series of mobile internet management applications.
These applications update the management systems from the old-fashioned
monthly reporting to real-time management in real time. During the reporting
period, existing customers including China Merchants Group and Vanke
successfully adopted these mobile internet management applications and the
Group signed contracts with EMS, Tianjin Port and other notable corporations,
thereby solidifying its leading position in the medium and large-sized enterprise
market.

1. L EERPTIE
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS & fg =9 wm £2

Consulting, Implementation and Maintenance Services

During the reporting period, the Group improved and strengthened its core
competency in consulting and implementation by accelerating toward a delivery-
oriented model, expanding service partners, strengthening project management
and improving delivery capability in branches.

During the reporting period, the Group’s maintenance business continued to
grow steadily, while the percentage of maintenance revenue to total revenue
continued to increase. The Group released a new Kingdee OEM support service
system to establish Kingdee Service Management Platform (KSM) and build
healthy partner-customer support ecosystems. The Group continued to promote
service innovations, significantly enhance customer service values and service
experiences.

International Business

During the reporting period, driven by the increasing adoption of Mobile
Technology, the Group promoted Internet related products including “Cloud
Hub” and “BizChat” in Asia Pacific. The Group successfully signed Cloud Hub
contract with New World Group and developed more than 10 “BizChat” partners.
The Group achieved strong progress within Hong Kong enterprises seeking
to expand business in mainland market, signed contracts with enterprises
including Digi-key, Novetex, Jebsen & Co.. As regards overseas markets,
in order to establish a partner ecosystem, the Group followed the “Leading-
Platform, Partner-First”, supported the development of partners and leveraged
Hong Kong as the main platform to promote business development in oversea
markets including Singapore, Malaysia, and beyond.

Il. Enterprise Internet Business

Cloud Hub

During the reporting period, as Chinese enterprises placed more emphasis
on enhancing the internal and departments cooperation, and cooperation in
different geographic locations, enterprise management extension from within
enterprise to among enterprises and from internal management to external
cooperations. Kingdee’s enterprise social network platform Cloud Hub achieved
rapid growth in Chinese enterprise markets, with over 80,000 registered
companies and over 1 million users. Cloud Hub was recognized by large
enterprises and signed contracts with Haier Group, Vanke and New World
Group. The product won good comments in the industry and received awards
including “Best Application for Enterprise Efficiency”, “2013 Best Social Network
Platform” and “CCID Annual Brand for Enterprise Social Network”.

l 14 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013
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BizChat Mobile Platform & Mobile Apps

During the reporting period, Kingdee successfully launched the BizChat Mobile
Platform, and vigorously developed Mobile Apps based on it. Kingdee Mobile
Apps grew rapidly. The number of paid terminals increased by nearly 5 times
as compared to the same period in 2012, More and more enterprises realized
the improved efficiency of internal collaboration and communication driven by
Mobile Technology. Enterprises are convinced that paid mobile subscription
model is more flexible and efficient for their IT systems.

Youshang.com

Youshang.com is China’s largest online financial service platform, while Kingdee
Wise Note is China’s largest management app by user volume, which target
is to provide internet services for 40 million small and micro businesses in
China. The number of customers of Wise Note is over 2 million and value-
added service income achieved 100% plus growth, and continued to lead in the
micro and small business market. During the reporting period, the number of
customers of Youshang online SaaS exceeded 600,000 and experienced 40%
growth in paying customers, with a high retention rate of 80%.

Kuaidi100

During the reporting period, Kingdee’s Kuaidi100, which was popular among
users, began to collaborate with other projects on Baidu Open Platform,
spanning mobile search, open platforms for mobile applications and Aladdin
data, among others. During the “Double Eleven” in 2013, a total of 467 million
inquiries were generated by Kuaidi100 on the Baidu WebApp Platform, covering
40% of the internet users in China. Kuaidi100 continued to maintain China’s
largest express and logistics information inquiries and service platform position
as its e-commerce products provided services for over 100,000 ecommerce
vendors.

National Enterprise Internet Service Supporting and Software
Engineering Technology Research Centre

During the reporting period, the Ministry of Science and Technology officially
approved the establishment of the National Enterprise Internet Service
Supporting and Software Engineering Technology Research Centre by Kingdee in
April 2013, with certain exclusiveness and uniqueness. This verifies Kingdee's
strength in enterprise Internet service supporting software and demonstrates a
full recognition of its independent innovative capability.
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lll. Business of Subsidiaries

Kingdee Medical and Healthcare Software Business

During the reporting period, the Kingdee Medical Software Company released
a series of new products including the HIP integration platform, HBA analytic
platform, mobile clinic, HRP professional, clinical and other products. Kingdee
Medical also launched LIS new version based on Oracle data center, improved
the standardization of HIS products, released HIS delivery instruments to
improve implementation successful rate and optimize customers’ experience.
Kingdee Medical signed contracts with a number of important customers
including Gansu Chinese Medicine Hospital, Wuhan Youfu Hospital, Foshan
Health Center, Henan Staff Hospital, and delivered 114 projects including
Panyu Community Health Center in Guangzhou, Guangzhou Maternal and Child
Hospital and Nanhua University.

Middleware Business

During the reporting period, domestic infrastructure software received further
attention and support from the government. As the only middleware provider of
“Cloud Computing Standards Working Units of National Information Technology
Standardization Technical Committee in 2013”, Kingdee middleware met new
opportunities. The Group achieved efforts in the key industries including center
ministries, military, and telecommunications. During the reporting period, new
versions of Cloud Computing products and support application server cluster
with surveillance feature were released. Revenue generated from partners
became more significantly as the Group strengthened cooperation with strategy
partners including Chinasoft, Taiji Group, Inspur and Neusoft. The Group also
attracted important new customers including Ministry of Foreign Affairs, Central
Commission for Discipline Inspection of the CPC and The People’s Bank of
China, and concluded projects including China South Industries Group and
Hunan Tobacco.

2. Organization and Personnel Assurance

During the reporting period, the Group further promoted organizational and
personnel structure optimization, while issuing incentive stock options to
key staff members. The Group also provided leadership and professional
competencies training for branch general managers, product management
teams, and entry-level employees. Together with its strategic investments and
new business developments, the Group continued to recruit Internet talents with
Social Networking, Cloud Computing, Mobile Technology and Big Data skills,
and also increased the recruitment of new graduates to infuse new blood into
the company.
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3. Corporate Social Responsibility

During the reporting period, the Group continued to set up scholarships and
teaching funds for the South East University, collaborated with top business
schools in China to promote the Chinese management model, supported the
China Managerial Excellence award, and promoted the new business spirit of
“Walk on ZHENGDAO (right track) and Walk by WANGDAO (noble way)”.

During the reporting period, Kingdee signed collaborative agreements with
over 110 noted universities including Tsinghua University, Renmin University
of China, Suzhou University, Anhui University of Finance and Economics,
Nanjing Normal University, Wuhan University of Technology. The cooperation
included establishment of national engineering education center, a base for
entrepreneurship, a joint lab and a domestic fundamental software training base
and technical center aimed at nurturing personnel in fundamental software
engineering.

During the reporting period, The Group continued support and cooperate with
public organizations including Lin Junjin Charitable Foundation, One Foundation
and Stars Youth Development Center, pushing public welfare services in
China towards more transparent operations. One Foundation project had
been delivered and Phase Two initiated. In the wake of the Ya’an earthquake,
Kingdee provided strong technical support in the rescue and restoration.
Employees of the Group also made donations to China Siyuan Foundation for
Poverty Alleviation and set up “Siyuan-Kingdee education migrant class” in the
earthquake-stricken area of Ya'an.

4, Financial Review

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s turnover amounted
to RMB1,602,125,000, a decrease of 9.3% against 2012 (2012:
RMB1,765,493,000).

During the reporting period, the Group realised revenues from software of
RMB770,491,000, a decline of 11.8% against 2012 (2012: RMB873,578,000);
Services revenue of RMB783,620,000, a decline of 6.8% against 2012 (2012:
RMB840,927,000). The Group’s net cash flow generated from operating
activities was RMB415,144,000 (2012: RMB11,661,000).

During the reporting period, the trade receivables turnover climbed by 1 day to
49 days (the average of the trade receivables balance at the beginning and the
end of the year divided by the total revenue of the year times 365 days) (2012:
48 days).
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For the year ended 31 December 2013, profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company was RMB126,400,000 (2012: loss of RMB140,246,000).
Comprehensive profit attributable to equity holders of the Company was
RMB126,400,000 (2012: loss of RMB53,405,000). During the year, net
profit margin was approximately 7.9% (2012: approximately —7.9%) and
basic earnings per share was RMB0.0501 (2012: basic loss per share of
RMBO0.0557).

Gross Profit

Gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 5.1% from
RMB1,146,967,000 in 2012 to RMB1,205,889,000 in 2013. Gross profit
margin for the year increased significantly to approximately 75.3% (2012:
approximately 65.0%). The increase of the gross margin was mainly driven by
the effectiveness of indirect sales strategy and project profitability management.

Selling and Marketing Expenses

Selling and marketing expenses for 2013 amounted to RMB827,927,000
(2012:RMB1,153,722,000), representing a decrease of 28.2% against last
year. The decline was mainly driven by indirect sales strategy and unprofitable
branches closure and business transformation.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses for 2013 amounted to RMB205,036,000 (2012;
RMB216,866,000), representing a decrease of approximately 5.5%. The
decrease was mainly due to effective cost controls initiatives and a streamlining
of headquarters staffing.

Research and Development costs

R&D costs for 2013 amounted to RMB232,890,000 (2012: RMB200,357,000),
representing an increase of approximately 16.2%. The increase was mainly due
to amortization expenses from previous R&D capitalizations.

Capital Expenditure

For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Group’s major capital expenditure
mainly included R&D capitalised expenses of RMB198,180,000 (2012:
RMB252,045,000), construction fees and machinery and equipment purchasing
of Software Park in the amount of RMB138,927,000 (2012: RMB317,387,000).

Financial Resources and Liquidity

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had cash, cash equivalents and deposits
amounting to RMB1,003,366,000 (2012: RMB918,093,000). The current ratio
was 1.7 (2012: 1.6) and the gearing ratio was 47.3% (2012: 50.0%).
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As at 31 December 2013, the Group had short-term bank loans of
RMB420,215,000 (2012: 227,000,000). As at 31 December 2013, the
Group had long-term borrowings amounting to RMB1,154,985,000 (2012:
RMB1,363,641,000).

As at 31 December 2013, the Group was not subject to any material exchange
rate exposure, and had not entered into any foreign exchange futures contract
to hedge against exchange rate fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2013, the Group did not have any material contingent
liabilities (2012: nil).

5. Future Prospects

With China’s uncertain macro-economy situation and changes in the competitive
environment at home and abroad, cost and efficiency considerations at Chinese
enterprises will speed their transformation and IT upgrades in order to enhance
overall competitiveness. Enterprise cooperation will gradually expand from
within to external cooperation. Social Networking, Mobile Internet and Cloud
Computing technologies will be integrated with traditional IT services, driving
a new round of enterprise informatization. Cloud Management is bringing
innovative changes to enterprise management. The Group believes that Cloud
Service will become the mainstream of enterprises’ future development and IT
applications. China has become the world’s largest mobile internet market, with
its enterprise IT industry entering a golden era. The Group has gained the first-
mover advantages in the market and is expected to capture a more significant
presence in the global Cloud Computing market in the future.

We believe that the Internet will change the world. Looking ahead into 2014,
the Group will adhere to the overall strategy of “Leading-Platform, Partner-First,
Enthusiastic-Professional, Mutual-Success”. The Group will constantly improve
ERP in the Internet Era with the dual-core drivers, while improving product
quality, creating the best user experience and evolving the enterprise Internet
business model, introducing more leading Cloud Management products, working
and growing more closely with customers. We will create greater value for
shareholders and customers, become the Cloud Management leader and lead
the industry in re-imagination. We will share the success with all stakeholders:
to promote career development for staff, to create a win-win for partners,
to grow together with customers and to deliver fair returns to shareholders
sustainably.
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I_The Group has gained the first-mover advantages in the market
and is expected to capture a more significant presence i@
global Cloud Computing market in the future.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEE

DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

XU Shao Chun (#&2> %), aged 51, founder of the Group,Chairman of the
Board. Mr. XU has been awarded the Government Special Expert Allowance
by the State Council. Mr. XU graduated from Southeast University in computer
science and obtained Master of Accounting from Institute of Ministry of
Finance and Executive Master of Business Administration from China Europe
International Business School. He is a member of 9th central committee of
China National Democratic Construction Association, a member of council of
China Siyuan Poverty Alleviation Foundation, deputy director of China Software
Industry Association and a member of Accounting Information Technology
Committee of Finance Ministry. Mr. XU, with his deep realization of business
strategy and operation management and advance technology sensitivity and
accurate grasp of industry trends of global software industry, has always been
committed to “leading the progress of Chinese management model” and to lead
the company to be a global leading management and IT integrated solutions
and service provider. For his outstanding achievements, he has awarded as
“United Nations World Indigenous Entrepreneurs Award”, “China Software Ten
Outstanding Youths”, “The 10 Outstanding Entrepreneurs Award”, “Outstanding
Leader for China’s Information Industry”, “Thirty Affective Economy Persons in
the Thirty Years of Reform and Opening in Shenzhen”and “Shenzhen Science
and Technology Innovation Mayor’s Award” etc.

CHEN Deng Kun ([ & 1#), aged 37, an Executive Director of the Company.
Mr. CHEN graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economic with
a bachelor degree in management, an EMBA degree from China-Europe
International Business School (CEIBS). Mr. CHEN is a member of the Association
of Enterprise Architect (AEA) in USA, a member of the Association of Charted
Certified Accountant (ACCA) in UK, a member of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountant (CICPA). Mr. CHEN also participated in policy making
proposal for local legislatures as a member of National People’s Congress in
Nanshan District of Shenzhen. Mr. CHEN is now serving as adjunct professor
at Zhongnan University of Economics and Law, Anhui University of Finance
and adjunct social mentors for masters. Mr. CHEN joined the group in 2000,
and has been held important positions as head of Audit Department, Assistant
President, Chief Human Resources Officer and Chief Financial Officer.

YANG Jian (43 #2), aged 37, an Executive Director(appointed as Executive
Director on 20 March 2013) of the Company. Mr. YANG graduated from
Guangdong University of Business Studies with a bachelor degree in economics
in 1999 and obtained another bachelor degree in law from China University
of Political Science and Law. After joining Kingdee Software in 2003, he has
been engaged in the areas of Audit, Finance, Operation, IT, Administration
Management. Mr. YANG has extensive experience in management and is a
capable leader.
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Non-executive Director

DONG Ming Zhu (Z B3 Ek), aged 59, an Non-executive Director of the
Company. Ms. DONG obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration
from Zhongnan University of Economics and Law. She is now the chairman
of the board (“COB”) of Zhuhai Gree Group Co. Ltd., the COB and President
of Gree Electric Appliances, Inc. of Zhuhai Co., Ltd. (the subsidiary of Zhuhai
Gree Group Corp.) Ms. DONG had been awarded the “National May Day Labor
Prize”, and had been elected as a Member of the 10th and 11th National
People’s Congress, a Member of the Standing Committee of the China National
Democratic Construction Association and a Member of the 10th Executive
Committee of All-China Women'’s Federation. Ms. DONG has solid experience
in marketing and management of household appliances, and the Regional Sales
Model that she developed has been commended as an “Excellent Achievement
of Modernizing Enterprises’ Management of Guangdong Province”. Ms. DONG
has been dedicated to creating local Chinese brands and was granted the
“Innovation Award of CCTV’s China’s Economic Figures of the Year 2010”.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Gary Clark BIDDLE, aged 62, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company. Mr. BIDDLE is the Accounting Chair and PCCW Chair Professor at the
University of Hong Kong. He received his MBA and PhD degrees at University
of Chicago and has served as professor at University of Chicago, University
of Washington and Dean of the Faculty of Business and Economics at the
University of Hong Kong and Associate Dean of the School of Business and
Management of Hong Kong University of Science and Technology, where he was
a member of the Council, Court, Senate and held the title of Synergis-Geoffrey
Yeh Chair Professor. He has served or is serving as visiting professor at leading
business schools globally, including Columbia University Business School (USA),
London Business School (UK), IMD (Switzerland) and CEIBS (China). Mr. BIDDLE
is a member of the American Accounting Association, American Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Business and Professionals Federation,
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, Hong Kong Institute of
Directors and he is the past President and co-founding Council Member of the
Hong Kong Academic Accounting Association. He is a leading expert in financial
accounting, financial markets, valuation, value creation, corporate management
and performance metrics, including EVAR. Mr. BIDDLE is also an Independent
Non-Executive Director of Shui On Land Limited and a remuneration committee
member at closely-held Chinachem Group.
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HO Ching Hua ({a1#&&#E), aged 57, an Independent Non-executive Director
of the Company. Mr. HO graduated from National Taiwan University in political
science and obtained Master of Arts from National Chenchi University of Taiwan
and Master of Science from University of Maryland of the United States. Prior
to joining the Company, Mr. HO had worked in Sybase Inc. in USA, Oracle
Corp. East Coast Region, UFIDA Software Co. Ltd. and Siebel Systems Inc. Mr.
HO has abundant experience in sales channel operation and management of
international and domestic well-known information technology enterprises.
Mr. HO is now an independent non-executive director of Jess-Link Products
Corporation Limited, a company listed on Gre Tai Securities Market of Japan
and Taiwan Securities Exchange and an executive director and Chief Operating
Officer of Camelot Information System (China) Corporation Limited, a company
listed on New York Stock Exchange.

WU Cheng (&%), aged 74, an Independent Non-executive Director of the
Company, a professor of the Department of Automation of Tsinghua University
and an academician of Chinese Academy of Engineering. Mr. WU is also
the Dean of State CIMS Engineering Technical Research Center. Mr. WU
graduated from the Department of Electrical Engineering, Tsinghua University of
undergraduate course in 1962 and graduate course in 1966. He had been doing
post doctorate researches in USA from 1981 to 1983. Mr. WU has participated
in CIMS projects of 863 Program, and has been appointed as the leader of
CIMS expert group and chief scientist in automation field. He has received a lot
of awards for his contributions to the technology development in the PRC.

YEUNG Kwok On (#E %), aged 53, an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company (resigned as independent non-executive director on
17 March of 2014). Mr. YEUNG received his bachelor and master degrees in
management from the University of Hong Kong, and Ph.D degree in Human
Resource Management from the University of Michigan. Mr. YEUNG now is the
Philips Chair Professor of Human Resource Management and Director of Centre
of Organization and People Excellence at China Europe International Business
School. Mr. YEUNG is also the founder of CEO Learning Association and
Organizational Capability Learning Association. Mr. YEUNG’s research focuses
on building organizational capability for strategic implementation, accelerating
globalization of Chinese firms, growing leadership talent for business growth,
and leading large-scale organizational transformation. Mr. YEUNG is experienced
in enterprises organizational construction, human resources strategy and human
resources training. Mr. YEUNG worked in Acer Inc. as Chief Learning Officer
and Chief Human Resources Officer from early 1999 to June 2002. Mr. YEUNG
was awarded the “2002 China Human Resources Annual Person” by Smart
Fortune Magazine of China and the “2004 China Human Resources Outstanding
Achievement Award” jointly by Asian-Pacific Human Resources Research
Association and Smart Fortune Magazine (China) Co.,Ltd. Mr. YEUNG is now an
independent non-executive director of Trina Solar Limited, a company listed on
the New York Stock Exchange and SITC International Holding Company Ltd., a
company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.
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LIU Chia Yung(£|2RZE), aged 55, an Independent Non-executive Director of
the Company (appointed as Independent Non-executive Executive Director on
17 March 2014). Mr. LIU obtained a Master Degree of Business Administration
from University of Missouri in the United States. Mr. LIU joined Trend Micro
in 2002, and served as the president of the Asia Pacific region and then the
general manager of global services business group, being responsible for the
overall business operation in Asia Pacific region, R&D and Trend Micro’s global
enterprises cyber security outsourcing service planning. Mr. LIU joined Green
and Associates in 2007 and has served as the general manager, focusing on
strategic human resources consulting since then. Mr. LIU has rich experience
in Hi-Tech marketing, business strategy planning and global corporation
management. Mr. LIU used to act as adjunct professors at Soochow University
in Taiwan and Peter F. Drucker Academy in Beijing.

COMPANY SECRETARY

NGAN Lin Chun, Esther (B2 ¥), aged 58, Company Secretary. Ms. NGAN
is a Chartered secretary. She is qualified as a Chartered Secretary in 1982 and
has over 20 years’ experience in the company secretarial field. Ms. Ngan is a
director of WBC Secretaries Limited, which is a secretarial service company and
has served as company secretary of a few listed companies in Hong Kong. Ms.
Ngan is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Company Secretaries.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

XU Shao Chun (%4> %), Chief Executive Officer of the Company — see the
paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

CHEN Deng Kun ([ % ##), Senior Vice President of the Company(resigned as
Chief Financial Officer on 4 January 2013) — see the paragraph under “Executive
Directors” above.

YANG Jian (15 &), Vice President of Kingdee China and Chief Financial Officer
of the Company (appointed as Chief Financial Officer on 4 January 2013) — see
the paragraph under “Executive Directors” above.

TIAN Rong Ju (FH#& £2), aged 42, Senior Vice President of Kingdee China and
Chief Technology Officer of Kingdee China. Mr. TIAN is mainly in charge of R&D
of the Company. Mr. TIAN graduated from Chongging Yuzhou University. He has
abundant experience in program, design, research and relevant profession in
Chinese management software. After Mr. TIAN joined the Company in 1999, he
has been in charge of products program, research, development and testing.
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SUN Yan Fei (& /), aged 40, Senior Vice President of Kingdee China. Mr.  BRRER - 4057 ¢ BT ESREILE  FEAEEEEHTE &
SUN is mainly in charge of marketing of the Company. Mr. SUN graduated from 42 ERBFIRHEAS - USEHA THEEMBASHL - HEER
Macao University of Science and Technology and gained MBA degree of General ~ — ULt FMA%E - TR ETERS A REEE « MHRBGLE
Business Management. After joining the Company in 1997, Mr. SUN has been — ZBfI - EARMSMEHE RS TIEETEZRTS - RELEIN
appoint as General Manager of Nanjing Branch and Southern District of China ~ RAEALESRARCETEEFNET TE  EPECEEEY
and played an important role in the Company’s marketing and sales. Mr. SUN Bl LEH LR EEER -

is committed to using information technology to promote the establishment

of modern enterprise management system. He has a wealth of experience

in marketing and management in the field of Chinese business management

software.

ZHANG Yong (Z B), aged 39, Senior Vice President of Kingdee China. Mr. BB - 3057 - £ BHESREEE TEAEEMEREMNLHEE
ZHANG is in charge of the Company’s business operation and management in 7% - EXAZENPRER THEERER - SLER—ATEM
Eastern Region of China. Mr. ZHANG graduated from China Europe International ~ AZREE - ERET LD ARLLE  FRELEE - ERFAD
Business School. After joining the Company in 1995, Mr. ZHANG has been  SMEHEERSTEETEERTE  ALENTHLHEERER
appointed as the General Manager of Shanghai Branch and Eastern Region % - R EETEfEE T —EHHEE -

of China and played an important role in the Company’s marketing and sales.

He has extensive experience in marketing, sales and team work management.

Mr. ZHANG is a committee member of the 12th Chinese People’s Political

Consultative Conference of Putou District, Shanghai Municipality.
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The directors (“Directors”) of Kingdee International Software Group Company
Limited (the “Company”) Company are pleased to present to the shareholders
their report together with the audited financial statements of Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2013.

Principal Activities and Geographical Analysis of
Operations

The Company (www.kingdee.com) is listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code: 0268).
As a a leader in China’s software industry and a leading provider of cloud
management in the Asia-Pacific region, the Company is dedicated to be a world-
leading cloud management supplier. The Group sees its mission as “Streamline
Your Business”, with core value as “Walk on the Right Track, and Walk on
Kingly Way”, and provides cloud management products and consultation to over
1 million enterprises and governmental agencies around the world.

The total revenue and profit attributable to the equity holders of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2013 were RMB1,602,125,000 and
RMB126,400,000, respectively. Of such revenue, approximately 48.1% was
derived from the sales of software, approximately 48.9% was derived from
the provision of software services and approximately 3.0% from the sales
of computer hardware and related products. For details, please refer to the
consolidated income statement set out on page 57.

The Group has established three software parks which are located in Shenzhen,
Shanghai and Beijing, respectively. As at 31 December 2013, the Group had 58
branches mainly engaging in marketing and service and had approximately 2,391
cooperation partners providing consultation, technical support, implementation
services and distribution of its products and after-sale services to the customers
of the Group.

Results and Final Dividends

The performance for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in the
consolidated income statement on page 57. The board of Directors (the “Board”)
does not recommend the distribution of a final dividend for the year ended 31
December 2013 (2012: nil).

Distributable Reserves

As at 31 December 2013, the retained earnings of the Company attributable to
equity holders were RMB676,736,000 (2012: RMB550,336,000).

l 26 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

SRERRMAEEERAR(ARRDER(EZ])MARBKR
REAQNFARAMBLA (GBI AREBEE-_T—=F1+_A
Zt-BUFEEEEREREELHBRE -

IERBRERBEEHES

$ T(wwwkmgdeecom)xz'if/% BAERSMARRE (B ])) TR

DA (RN 1 0268) - PEBFELEEME  TAESEL
E‘]Fﬁ BREE  BHIRKAZRELNEERRED - REEN
[BEBTERKIAGD - N2REEREME]ARES - U E
IFE - TTELJW?/UFEEE Attt FEBE100E R EAPATAR
REZEEEMRE

AEEHE T —F+ AT HULEFENEERR AN
HEE ARG B A AR1,602,125,0007T K A K #126,400,000
U o HAREERERL48.1% K S EMHHERA + £148.9% K B8R
BYA - ZEO3REEMREBERBEERA - ABZHHRN
FTEAHBERE -

AEBEFEAERER - LE  tR=FEHHE -HE-F
—=FT-A=TH AEEEBSBFAEHARBRATINN X
WRBMA239 KA - 5T - BIERY - 2HERERBH - AAR
AIEPRHUERNERRE -

RERERMRR

HECT-=F1-A=1+—B IrFEXEHENFTAZAHEA
#wRA AR Ti?ﬁ(f§$@bﬂ¥m BHE-T-=F1-
A=T—RALFEZRBRE(ZF—2%F : KES) °

ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
“E=HFtA=1+—R AEERSESEARENENER

ﬂ,ﬁﬁa TR EE A AR 676,736,000 ( ZE——4F : AR
550,336,0007T) °



Closure of Register

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Friday, 2 May
2014 to Thursday, 8 May 2014 (both days inclusive), during which time no
transfer of shares will be registered. In order to be qualified to attend, participate
in and vote at the AGM that is going to be held on 8 May 2014, all transfer
documents accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged
with the Company’s branch share registration and transfer office in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 30 April 2014.

Bank Borrowing

Details of bank borrowing for the year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in
Note 19 to the financial statement.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity
on page 59.

Fixed Assets

Details of movements in the fixed assets of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2013 are set out in Note 7 to the financial statement.

Interests of the Directors in Contracts

None of the Directors had any direct or indirect material interests in any
contracts of significance to the business of the Group to which the Company or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries was a party at any time during the
year ended 31 December 2013.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions regarding pre-emptive rights under the laws of Cayman
Islands or the Articles of Association (the “Articles of Association”) of the
Company, which would oblige the Company to issue new shares to its existing
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholdings.
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Share Capital and Options
e Share Capital

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company for the
year ended 31 December 2013 are set out in Note 16 to the financial
statements.

° Purchase, Sale or Redemption of Shares

During the reporting period ended 31 December 2013, the Company had
not repurchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed securities.

Material Acquisition and Disposal

There was no material acquisition and disposal during the year ended 31
December 2013.

Outstanding share options under the 2001 Scheme, 2002
Scheme and 2005 Scheme

The share option scheme was adopted by the Company to encourage and
reward the contribution of eligible persons to the Company. Eligible persons
include employees, directors, partners, consultants, suppliers and customers of
the Group.

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 30 January
2001 (the “2001 Scheme”), options over an aggregate of 6,880,000 shares
were granted, of which options over 4,010,000 share options were exercised,
2,870,000 lapsed and none remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013. As
no share option granted under the 2001 Scheme was outstanding, the number
of shares under the options was not adjusted as a result of the bonus issue of
shares of the Company effective on 9 May 2011 (the “Bonus Issuge”).

Pursuant to the share option scheme of the Company adopted on 26 April 2002
(the “2002 Scheme”) and the adjustment made thereto due to the Bonus Issue,
options over an aggregate of 232,620,000 share options were granted, of
which options over 125,724,731 shares were exercised, 106,096,288 lapsed
and 798,981 remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013.
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Both the 2001 Scheme and 2002 Scheme were terminated by the Company
on 30 June 2005. At the extraordinary general meeting of the Company
convened on 11 July 2005, the Company adopted a new share option scheme
(the “2005 Scheme”) with a validity period of ten years. As at 31 December
2013, the Company had granted options over 504,501,600 shares pursuant
to the 2005 Scheme and made adjustment thereto due to the Bonus Issue, of
which options over 116,782,741 shares were exercised, 94,274,006 lapsed
and 293,444,853 remained outstanding. According to the scheme limit of the
2005 Scheme as refreshed on the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 10 May 2012 (being options over 251,526,926 shares) less the options
over 82,969,600 shares granted by the Company since the refreshment, the
Company may further grant options over 168,557,326 shares, representing
approximately 6.64% of the issued share capital of the Company as at 31
December 2013,

The maximum number of shares issuable upon exercise of the share options
granted under the 2005 Scheme and any other share option scheme(s) of
the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options) to each
eligible participant in any 12-month period is limited to 1% of the shares of the
Company in issue as at the date of grant. Any further grant of share options
in excess of such 1% limit shall be subject to the issue of a circular by the
Company and the shareholders’” approval of the Company at a general meeting.

The grant of share options to a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, is subject
to the approval in advance by the independent non-executive directors of the
Company, excluding the independent non-executive director(s) of the Company
who is/are the grantee(s) of the share options. In addition, the grant of any
share option to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
director of the Company, or to any of their respective associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue as at the date of grant and with an
aggregate value (based on the closing price of the shares of the Company as
at the date of grant) in excess of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, is
subject to the issue of a circular by the Company and the shareholders’ approval
of the Company in advance at a general meeting. All connected persons of the
Company must abstain from voting in favour at such general meeting.

The granted options can be exercised during the validity period of the respective
share option schemes.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the Board, but may not
be less than the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company as
stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant,
which must be a trading day; (i) the average closing price of the shares of the
Company as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five
trading days immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal value
of the shares of the Company.
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Details of the share options under the 2001 Scheme, 2002 Scheme and 2005  —ZEZ—4:t8 - —FE - F:HE L _ST A EINBERET 2
Scheme are set out in Note 18 to the financial statements. Details of the share  EFEHNARERAH A GBI RREM I8 - BRESBENT ¢
options are included in the table as follows:

Options Options Options
granted exercised lapsed Options
Exercise  Options held during the during the during the held at
price  at1January reporting reporting reporting 31 December
Grant date  Exercise period HK$® 2013 period period period 2013
RIB-=%
Name or RIE-=% RERR HEHN REHR +=A
category of i 213 fiEE® —RA—HZ i fTEm K¥W =t+—-RHZ
participants SHEFA HHAR TEMER #T  BRERE BRERE BRERE BRENE  BRERE
Directors =
Xu Shao Chun "AE 19/11/2008  19/11/2008 to 0.792 6,000,000 - - - 6,000,000
(PRrzE1) 18/11/2018
02/04/2013  02/04/2013 to 1.308 0 2,800,000 - - 2,800,000
01/04/2023
Oriental Gold Oriental Gold 23/04/2010  23/04/2010 1o 2592 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000
Limited (1) Limited 22/04/2020
(FEET) 30/03/2012  30/03/2012 to 1.87 2,500,000 - - - 2,500,000
29/03/2019
Yang Jian B 28/04/2006  28/04/2006 to 0.5438 720,000 - 90,000 - 630,000
27/04/2016
01/08/2008  01/08/2008 to 1.4584 120,000 - - - 120,000
31/07/2018
17/09/2009  17/09/2009 to 1.1417 180,000 - - - 180,000
16/09/2019
23/04/2010  23/04/2010 to 2.5917 360,000 - - - 360,000
22/04/2020
16/03/2011  16/03/2011 to 4275 400,000 - - - 400,000
15/03/2021
30/03/2012  30/03/2012 to 1.87 700,000 - - - 700,000
29/03/2019
22/08/2012  22/08/2012 to 1.15 2,000 - - - 2,000
21/08/2019
22/03/2013  22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 400,000 - - 400,000
21/03/2023
02/04/2013  02/04/2013 to 1.308 0 300,000 - - 300,000
01/04/2023

l 30 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



REPORT OF DIRECTORS E=&# &

Options Options Options
granted exercised lapsed Options
Exercise  Options held during the during the during the held at
price  at1January reporting reporting reporting 31 December
Grant date  Exercise period HK$® 2013 period period period 2013
R-B—-Z=%
Name or RIE-=% RERR HEHR REHR +=A
category of ;213 fiEE®E —RA—HZ i) TR K¥WH =t-RHZ
participants SHEFR RHAR TEHER #T  BRERE BRERE BRERE BRENE  BRERE
Directors R
Chen Deng Kun P& 04/05/2006  04/05/2006 to 0.548 6,720,000 - - - 6,720,000
03/05/2016
08/06/2007  08/06/2007 to 1.507 3,264,000 - - - 3,264,000
07/06/2017
01/08/2008  01/08/2008 to 1.458 2,400,000 - - - 2,400,000
31/07/2018
23/04/2010  23/04/2010 1o 2.592 960,000 - - - 960,000
22/04/2020
16/03/2011  16/03/2011 to 4275 960,000 - - - 960,000
15/03/2021
30/03/2012  30/03/2012 to 1.87 1,300,000 - - - 1,300,000
29/03/2019
22/03/2013  22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 400,000 - - 400,000
21/03/2023
02/04/2013  02/04/2013 to 1.308 0 300,000 - - 300,000
01/04/2023
Ho Ching Hua BEES 23/01/2007  23/01/2007 to 0.779 2,640,000 - 1,700,000 - 940,000
22/01/2017
30/03/2012  30/03/2012 to 1.87 200,000 - - - 200,000
29/03/2019
22/03/2013  22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 200,000 - - 200,000
21/03/2023
Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle ~ 08/06/2007  08/06/2007 to 1.507 480,000 - - - 480,000
07/06/2017
30/03/2012  30/03/2012 to 1.87 300,000 - - - 300,000
29/03/2019
22/03/2013  22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 200,000 - - 200,000
21/03/2023
Yeung Kwok On BE%Z 30/03/2012  30/03/2012 to 1.87 300,000 - - - 300,000
29/03/2019
22/03/2013  22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 200,000 - - 200,000
21/03/2023
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Directors B
Wu Cheng RE 08/06/2007  08/06/2007 to 1.507 480,000 - - - 480,000
07/06/2017
30/03/2012  30/03/2012 o 187 200,000 - - - 200,000
29/03/2019
22032013 22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 200,000 - - 200,000
21/03/2023
Dong Ming Zhu EWRL 22032013 22/03/2013 to 1.34 0 200,000 - - 200,000
21/03/2023
Other employees i~ E At {E & 4288 239,804,044 41200000 17,176,764 6,579,446 257247 834
aggregate
Total &t 273,390,044 46400000 18,966,764 6,579,446 294243834
Note: BisE -
(1) Oriental Gold Limited is wholly owned by Mr. Xu Shao Chun. (1) Oriental Gold Limited &% > & 5L A 2 AR AT «
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Directors

The composition of the Board for the financial year ended 31 December 2013
was as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Chen Deng Kun (Senior Vice President)

Mr. Yang Jian (appointed as Executive Director on 20 March 2013)
(Chief Financial Officer)

Non-executive Director
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle

Mr. Ho Ching Hua

Mr. Wu Cheng

Mr. Yeung Kwok On (resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on
17 March 2014)

Mr. Liu Chia Yung (appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on
17 March 2014)

In accordance with Article 116 of the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”), Mr. Yang Jian as Executive Director, Mr. Gary Clark
Biddle and Mr. Ho Ching Hua as Independent Non-executive Director would
retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“AGM”), and would offer themselves for re-election as directors of the Company
at the AGM. In addition, pursuant to Article 99 of the Articles of Association,
Mr. Liu Chia-Yung as an Independent Non-executive Director shall hold office
until the AGM and shall be eligible for re-election at the meeting. No Director
proposed for re-election at the AGM had entered into a service contract with the
Company which was not terminable by the Company within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

The Company received a written confirmation from each independent non-
executive Director of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”).
The Company considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.
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Change of Information of Directors and Senior
Management

On 4 January 2013, Mr. Chen Deng Kun was appointed as the general manager
of Kingdee Medical Software Technology Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, and
ceased to act as the chief financial officer (the “CFO”) of the Company.

Mr. Yang Jian (“Mr. Yang”) has been appointed as the CFO, with effect from 4
January 2013, and was appointed as Executive Director on 20 March 2013.

Mr. Yeung Kwok On resigned as Independent Non-executive Director on 17
March 2014.

Mr. Liu Chia Yung was appointed as Independent Non-Executive Director on 17
March 2014.

Save as disclosed above, there are no other matters that need to be disclosed
pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Listing Rules.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, the interests and short positions of the Directors and
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), which will be required to
be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which will be required
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the “Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers” (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:

EERBERHERE

REMELE  N_B-=F-ANBREAFARZFRALEE
BEAMRARRARLE CRE  YTBEEARFERIBE
2B -

BREEN-_F-=F—- ANBRREEARRERRBERE 2BH
WRZB-—=F=Z AT HEZERFATNTES -

BERELE R-F-OF=A+LEREFARBUFNITES
2B -

FRERLE  R_F-EFE=ATLARKREEARRBIUIERNT
BB -

B LIFRES - R EFRAIEIRSBNG - EEELENTE
ek -

EEREETHRARRER - HARGKURSFHES
Hi%e

R-F-=#+-A=+-R  ARDEUEFREBTRARE
AATREAEEE (EE B RS G (BEEPEE)
(1% RAE D) ENEH) 0BT - MR R RS
BEESRBREAEVES FTROENRFRBRAKAANE
BRI - MRBES A RO AR RN
iRy SRIE ETRAINSE 2 (LA AR ERTBER SN
BRI ) AT REBAAADNESBRA 2
HIARIT

Long positions in shares/underlying shares of the Company AARARED,HERG 2R
Number of shares/ Percentage
underlying shares of issued
(where appropriate) Types of interests share capital
Name of Bi®E, 1B A0
Directors EERS REETRA(MER) #aKE BoL
Xu Shao Chun %S 764,358,624 Interests of controlled corporation (Note 1)
RIERR AR 2 i (fEE)
4,983,200 Beneficial owner
EmEBA
13,700,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hi,/BRAE (Hi7E2)
Aggregate: B 783,041,824 30.85%
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Number of shares/ Percentage
underlying shares of issued
(where appropriate) Types of interests share capital
Name of Bi®E, kB A
Directors R REETRA(NER) #a4H BoL
Yang Jian B 311,626  Beneficial owner
BE=EAA
3,092,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hit, B (M E2)
Aggregate: B 3,403,626 0.13%
Chen Deng Kun R e 112,000  Beneficial owner
BE=EAA
16,304,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hit, B (M E2)
Aggregate: Ait: 16,416,000 0.65%
Ho Ching hua [P 1,740,000 Beneficial owner
BE=EAA
1,340,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hit, B (M E2)
Aggregate: At 3,080,000 0.12%
Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddle 980,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Htth,/FERRE (Ffit2)
Aggregate: =y 980,000 0.04%
Yeung Kwok On HEZ 250,000  Beneficial owner
ERBEEA
500,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Htth,/FERRE (M it2)
Aggregate: = 750,000 0.03%
Wu Cheng RE 880,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Httr,/FERRE (FiE2)
Aggregate: Bt 880,000 0.03%
Dong Ming Zhu EH% 200,000  Other/Share option (Note 2)
Hth,/HERRIE (FiFE2)
Aggregate: Bt 200,000 0.01%
Notes: BitsE

1.

Of the 764,358,624 shares, 408,472,000 shares were held by Oriental Gold Limited
and 355,886,624 shares were held by Billion Ocean Limited. Oriental Gold Limited and
Billion Ocean Limited are controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun. Therefore, Mr. Xu Shao Chun
is deemed to be interested in those 764,358,624 shares.

Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Outstanding Share
Options under the 2001 Scheme, 2002 Scheme and 2005 Scheme”.

1t 764,358,624 % B 3 b+ 408,472,000 & % 43 £ Oriental Gold Limited 5 4 -
355,886,624 % % 7 £ Billion Ocean Limited #5 7 © Oriental Gold Limited 0 Billion
Ocean Limited39 4R D& 52 AR - Wik DB ST 1 2 1ER #%764,358,6240%
RN A 1 -

FRHHENFEHENRE-TT—F5H8 —TT-FHER-FT
RFABIHARITRRORE |4
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Save as disclosed in this paragraph, as at 31 December 2013, none of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFQ), which
will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO or which will be required, pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
will be required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code.

Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Outstanding Share Options under the
2001 Scheme, 2002 Scheme and 2005 Scheme” above, none of the Directors
or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) was granted
by the Company, or any of its subsidiaries any rights or options to acquire
shares or debentures in the Company during the year ended 31 December
2013.

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31 December 2013, as far as the Directors were aware, the following
persons (other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) had
interests and short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Part XV of the SFO and required to be recorded in the register required to be
kept under Section 336 of the SFO:

BRARFBERNOANA N BHEZT—=F+-A=+—HIt ' &
RABEEZRERTRARREEREES MBS ROIEXVENE
BRNEARNBARBZIRAR AR E AR (REES ALK
PlExvEbeER) 2B in - MEARD HEHFOEL - RERSREE
HFRMEROIENVIET - F8Z - AMEARE LB - FRE
ERRABEABNAGRERT RENECMALEE  IRE
BETAVRAME AR AR LB RS -

EFBMRARRFHET

BEXRE-ST 8 —TS-FHER-_FTTRFHE
HATTENBREIAREEI REE-F-=ZF1t-A=1—
BUEFE  ARFRAMBARBERARRESRAEABEA
(BER LMRADEMR FEBARRBRO R ESRE RN
1

FERRRATAIRBFEGRAFHERRRE

BEEMA NZT-=F+-A=+—H UWTAL(RRTE
ERERTHRABRINRARRRN RAERO P EEREES
NS GO ENBHRETERARARERREEF LA G
FIBHRERAFE L BTMATCHZ EEIAR

Interests in Shares/Underlying Shares of the Company ARRREDHEERD 2B
Number of Shares/ Percentage of
underlying Shares issued share
(where appropriate) Capacity capital
B3
Name '3 £ HRRMBE(MEA) #aKE HERTRFESLL
Oriental Gold Limited  Oriental Gold Limited 408,472,000 (L)  Beneficial owner
(Note 1) (P3E1) EnBmAEA
4,900,000 (L)  Other/share option (Note 2)
Hit, /W10 B (Ff5r2)
SUBTOTAL & 413,372,000 (L) 16.29%
Billion Ocean Limited Billion Ocean Limited 355,886,624 (L)  Beneficial owner 14.02%
(Note 1) (PzE1) BExEAA
JP Morgan Chase &  JP Morgan Chase & Co 1,254,000 (L)  Beneficial owner
Co.(Note 3) (P3E3) BE=EAA
200,783,600 (Lending)  Custodian
(AIEfEE)  FEEAA
SUBTOTAL Bt 202,037,600 (L) 7.96%
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Number of Shares/ Percentage of
underlying Shares issued share
(where appropriate) Capacity capital
BiR,
Name '3 £4° HRRN®E(MER) #aKE HERTRFESL
FIL Limited FIL Limited 1,254,000 (S)  Beneficial owner 0.05%
EnBEA
179,086,885 (L)  Investment manager 7.06%
REKE
Franklin Templeton  Franklin Templeton 152,228,000 (L)  Investment manager 6.00%
Investments (Asia)  Investments (Asia) REKE
Limited Limited
Franklin Templeton  Franklin Templeton 151,367,757 (L) Investment manager 5.96%
Investment Investment Management RELE
Management Limited
Limited
Notes: IE -

The percentage of the total issued share capital was calculated by the number of the aforesaid
interests or short positions divided by the total issued share capital as at 31 December 2013

with total issued

shares of 2,538,106,230.

1. Both Oriental Gold Limited and Billion Ocean Limited are controlled by Mr. Xu Shao

Chun.

2. Details of the share options are set out in the section headed “Outstanding Share

Options

under the 2001 Scheme, 2002 Scheme and 2005 Scheme”.

3. JPMorgan Chase & Co. had interest in a total of 202,037,600 shares (Long position)
and 1,254,000 shares (Short position) in the Company through its various controlled
corporations, the details of which are set out below:

U

(i

(i)

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A, which was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
JPMorgan Chase & Co., held 200,783,600 shares (L) in the Company.

J.P. Morgan Securities plc held 1,254,000 shares (L) and 1,254,000 shares (S)
in the Company. J.P. Morgan Securities plc was a 98.95% owned subsidiary of
J.P. Morgan Chase International Holdings Limited which was in turn a wholly-
owned subsidiary of J.P. Morgan Chase (UK) Holdings Limited. J.P. Morgan
Chase (UK) Holdings Limited was a wholly-owned subsidiary of J.P. Morgan
Capital Holdings Limited which in turn was wholly owned by J.P. Morgan
International Finance Limited. J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited
was wholly-owned by Bank One International Holdings Corporation, being a
corporation wholly owned by J.P. Morgan International Inc. and J.P. Morgan
International Inc. was wholly owned by JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. which was
in turn wholly owned by JPMorgan Chase & Co..

The entire interest of JPMorgan Chase & Co. in the Company included a
lending pool of 200,783,600 shares (L).

4. (L) denotes long position, (S) denotes short position and (Lending) denotes lending pool.

HREARRAEBTRARAOB AL DR B ES AR OEE 2

ARZE—ZF+Z A=+ BNERTARA (R E R 722538,106,230) izt &

D RIBRAARA

1. Oriental Gold Limited#1Billon Ocean Limitedtg 545 L & 55 4 122

2 HEDHENFRERNRE-TE—

Fi8 —TT-FHER-TT

BBl ARITER A REIRE |46

3. JPMorgan Chase & Co.4
1,254, 0001 OX 2 ) BE

0

(i)

i)

4, LERTEAE

SHIRRRA R AR F]#9202,037,600i B3 (178 ) &
s FERNET

JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. 35 7 7K /A 7] 200,783,600 % it (5 (47 &)
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. ZJPMorgan Chase & Co. &% & ff /& 2 &)

JP. Morgan Securities plc %5 8 7% 2 71,254,000 iR ik 17 (47 &) &
1,254,000 % % 13 (3% &) ° JP. Morgan Securities plc /3 J.P. Morgan
Chase International Holdings Limited 3 75 98.95% A% 12 9 Bfi & 2 ]

J.P. Morgan Chase International Holdings Limited 81| % J.P. Morgan Chase
(UK) Holdings Limited &) 2 & Fff /& 72 7] = J.P. Morgan Chase (UK) Holdings
Limited /5 J.P. Morgan Capital Holdings Limited ) & & fit B A &) ©
J.P. Morgan Capital Holdings Limited 8 £ J.P. Morgan International Finance
Limited 2 & # &  J.P. Morgan International Finance Limited 5 Bank One
International Holdings Corporation % & # 4 - 1 Bank One International
Holdings Corporationf!] £J.P. Morgan International Inc. 492 & 1 /& 2 7]
ifir J.P. Morgan International Inc. & 3 JPMorgan Chase Bank, NA. & & #
7 + JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. &Il E3JPMorgan Chase & Co. & & S ©

F#AJPMorgan Chase & Co. FTH B AR B ID =T -
RRAR1D (478 ) BT HfE 2 R AR

£14£200,783,600

QBIFTAR « M(AIHEL) RRAIGHE 2
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to the
best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed
public float under the Listing Rules during the reporting period.

Competing Interest

None of the Directors or their respective associates (as defined in the Listing
Rules) had an interest in a business, which competes or may compete with the
business of the Group.

Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2013, there was no connected transaction
which was required to be disclosed in accordance with the requirements of the
Listing Rules.

Major Gustomers and Suppliers

The percentage of sales and purchases for the year attributable to the Group’s
major customers and suppliers is as follows:

Sales

- the largest customer 0.34%
- five largest customers in aggregate 1.53%
Purchases

- the largest supplier 8.48%
- five largest suppliers in aggregate 24.00%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which to the
knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) had an interest in the major customers or suppliers set out above.
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Corporate Governance Practices

The Group consistently promotes good corporate governance, pursuing the
five principles of ensuring the rights and interests of shareholders, abiding by
the directives of the Board and management, promoting full disclosure and
transparency, ensuring the equal treatment of stakeholders, and strengthening
internal controls and supervision. The Company always endeavors to enhance
its enterprise value, ensure the Company’s long-term and stable development
and safeguard the interests of its shareholders. During the year ended 31
December 2013, the Board devised a board diversity policy in accordance with
a new code provision of the “Corporate Governance Code” (the “Code”) as set
out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules, and reviewed the disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report. The details of the corporate governance practices
of the Company are set out below.

The Company had complied with all the code provisions of the Code throughout
the financial year ended 31 December 2013 except for code provision A 2.1.
Please refer to the section “The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below for
details.

Board of Directors
. The responsibilities of the Board

The Board is the core of corporate governance. Its major responsibilities are as
follows:

(1) To convene general meetings, report to shareholders and implement the
resolutions of general meetings;

(2)  To review and approve the mid- and long-term strategic plans and
management strategies of the Group;

(3)  To review and approve critical investment and acquisition projects, the
issuance and repurchase of securities, and other plans for financings,

amalgamation, compensation, recruitment and dismissals;

(4)  To review and approve the Group’s budget plans, profit distribution plans
and loss remedy plans;

(5)  To draft amendments to the Articles of Association, and to propose
changes in registered capital;

(6)  To approve directors’ remuneration plans as authorized by shareholders;

(7)  To listen to the working report of the CEO and to review the work of the
CEO; and

(8)  To review and approve the share award plan and the share option
scheme.
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The Board shall empower the senior management team to implement the
decisions of the Board and all senior management team members shall be
appointed by the Board. In entrusting management and administrative functions
to the management team, the Board provides clear instructions regarding the
powers delegated to management, and prior approval of the Board is required
before the senior management team makes any key decisions and commitments
on behalf of the Company. The management and the Company Secretary will
report to the Board on updates on legal and regulatory developments, business
and market changes and the strategic development of the Group to facilitate
the performance of the Board's duties. The Board has maintained effective
supervision over the Group's strategic plans and key policies, management
and assessment of risks, and effective controls over business operations. The
members of the Board and senior management have been fully committed to
their roles, have adjusted the Group’s development strategies in accordance
with the changes in the economy and market, and have acted in good faith with
a view to furthering the shareholders’ long-term interests.

Il. Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2013, the Board consisted of eight members, with three
executive Directors, one non-executive Director and four independent non-
executive Directors. The number of independent non-executive Directors
exceeds one-third of the Board. The Directors have professional background
in finance, technology and management, respectively. They have extensive
experience and independent views in their respective areas of expertise so that
they can provide professional advice in respect of the long-term development
of the Company. The list of Directors and their biographies are set out in the
"Directors and Senior Management" section on pages 21 to 24 of this annual
report.

The term of appointment of the Directors is two years. According to the Articles
of Association, each Director shall retire by rotation at least once every three
years and all the retiring Directors are eligible for re-election at the AGM in that
year. At the AGM, three Directors, namely Mr. Yang Jian, Mr. Gary Clark Biddle,
and Mr. Ho Ching Hua will retire by rotation and be eligible for re-election at the
AGM. Mr. Liu Chia Yung, who was appointed as a Director on 17 March 2014
shall hold office until the AGM and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
meeting.
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lll. Board Meeting/General Meeting (Z) EZ8E8E /RRAE
For the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company convened three Board RZZ—=F+_-A=+—RBILEE AATHBHT = E=e
meetings and the 2013 annual general meeting (the “2013 AGM”). The &#R_Z—=-FERZAFAS BRES 2 HEFHEHIID
following table shows the details of Directors’ attendance: e
Attendance/Number of Meetings
HEHER FERE
Board Meetings 2013 AGM
ZE-ZEE
Directors EE EETER BRAEAE
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. Xu Shao Chun BROERE 3/3 11
Mr. Chen Deng Kun BRE s & 3/3 11
Mr. Yang Jian (appointed on 20 March 2013) BREE(N-ZZE—ZF=ZA-1+HEZT) 3/3 11
Non-executive Director FUTES
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu ER%Lt 3/3 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BAFRTEE
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle Gary Clark Biddlez £ 3/3 on
Mr. Ho Ching Hua [BEES S 3/3 0/1
Mr. Wu Cheng RELE 3/3 0/1
Mr. Yeung Kwok On (resigned on 17 March 2014) BEZEERZZ—MF= A+ HEHT) 3/3 0N

Directors were given sufficient notice of Board meetings in accordance with ~ AREEB ETRABAGERAT A TESTHRHELNE
the Listing Rules and the Articles of Association. Directors were consulted in =~ FEEZHAE - EZQRANBZENRAZHZESNER - 2

advance regarding the agenda of Board meetings. Notices of regular Board &% HeZBALEHINE %%Tﬁﬁ‘l‘@%LLFﬁ*ﬁ%% mEMmE
meetings were given to all directors at least 14 days in advance of the meetings. %@@% BRRAERBAZLEN SRR MHEE =8
For all other Board meetings, reasonable notices were given. The agenda and AFZENRERCRAIERZEESE  BUEFHNEEED

other relevant, complete and reliable accompanying materials were sent to the EE}EEH%FHEJJ}%@ZKQE—%%% °
Directors at least three days before each meeting. Each Director is aware of his/
her obligation to allocate adequate time to deal with the Company’s affairs.

At the meetings of the Board held during the year ended 31 December RZE—=F+-A=+—RAUFERARNESET EFSIER
2013, the matters dealt with by the Directors include but are not limited to ~ BAREUATER « 8FF : S AAIRBERERE  BHRIEZ
the following: formulating the overall development strategy of the Company, ZT——FEBRE-_Z-=Fhilins —Z-=-EFREKERT
considering and approving the Company’s 2012 annual report and the 2013 ~ ARMEMBEAZIE - EEEWERZEZT R FLFAREAL
interim report, approving the 2013 grant of share options and discussing other ~ # * ARk B ##R - BEEFSEL 2 —RE - UREFRN
major matters. The secretary of the Board has recorded the proceedings of each ~ 2B =EREE REER(NE) - @RREHEFENERR
Board meeting by keeping detailed minutes, including all decisions made by 77 - FTEEFIEEEHEE  1BFR  RLBRATABRNE -

the Board together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any)

by the Directors. All minutes are kept by the secretariat of the Board and any

relevant files including the agenda, documents and minutes are open for any

Directors’ inspection.
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IV. Measures to ensure the fulfiliment of the responsibilities (M) ARFEEETESEMFNERE

of Directors

To fully comply with the requirements of the Code on the continuous
professional development of Directors, the Company has provided all
Directors with documents and information aiming at developing and
refreshing their professional knowledge and skills, together with other
information (including monthly updates) on the development of business,
operation, activities and corporate governance of the Company from time
to time to assist them fulfill their responsibilities. Each of the Directors
has been provided with induction to ensure that they are fully aware
of the business and operation of the Group, and the responsibilities
and obligations of directors under the Listing Rules and other rules
and regulations. The Company has organized regular trainings for
Directors regarding their roles, functions and duties to assist them in
understanding their responsibilities under the Listing Rules and other
related laws and regulations through real case study; and to ensure the
Directors are timely and completely informed of the operations of the
Company. Pursuant to the requirements of the Code, all Directors should
provide their training record to the Company. According to the training
records provided by the Directors, the training attended by them during
the reporting period is summarized as follows:

Director BE

Executive Directors
Mr. Xu Shao Chun
Mr. Chen Deng Kun

BITESE
HIFERE
BRESREL

Mr. Yang Jian 1

Non-executive Director
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle

Mr. Ho Chinghua

Mr. Wu Cheng

Mr. Yeung Kwok On

42

FHTEE
ERnat

BIUEBTER
Gary Clark Biddle2t 4
AL E
RERE
BEREE
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(2)  When Directors are asked to express their views on the Company's
connected transactions (if any), incentive schemes, internal controls, etc.,
the Company retains auditors, financial advisers and lawyers and other
relevant independent professionals to provide independent professional
advice to assist Directors in fulfilling their responsibilities.

(3)  With regard to insurance cover in respect of possible legal actions
against the Directors when performing their duties, the Board entered
into a “Liability Insurance Contract of Directors, Supervisors and Officers”
with Huatai Insurance.

Board Committees

The Board has set up four specialized committees, namely the Audit Committee,
the Remuneration Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Corporate
Governance and Strategy Committee to oversee particular aspects of the
Company’s affairs. These committees mainly consist of the independent non-
executive Directors and non-executive Directors. The meeting procedures follow
the statutory procedures for these Board meetings.

Audit Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee of the Company (“Audit
Committee”) comprised three independent non-executive Directors namely,
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle, Mr. Wu Cheng and Mr. Yeung Kwok On. Mr. Gary Clark
Biddle was the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Board adopted the revised Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the
Audit Committee on 16 March 2012. In particular, the major roles and functions
of the Audit Committee are as follows:

(1) making recommendations to the Board on the appointment, re-
appointment and removal of the external auditor, approving the
remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditors, and
resignation or dismissal of the auditors, reviewing and monitoring the
external auditor’s independence, the objectivity and the effectiveness of
the audit process in accordance with applicable standards;

(2)  reviewing the interim and annual financial reports, the financial reporting
system and internal control procedures, and ensuring that management
has discharged its duty to establish an effective internal control system;
and

(3)  reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, and material
queries raised by the external auditor to management in respect of the
accounting records, financial accounts or systems of control as well as
management’s response to the points raised; ensuring that the Board
responds promptly to the matters raised by the external auditor in the
management letter.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT % &34

@  ARREREFERALREERS(WE)  BEFR A
HEHESERRERE  MEREZES  UBBEHLE
MSIHEEEATNBUEEER  BYHESEITEELT .

3 %%@ﬁé%%E”HﬁET%%EﬁW%&”QWﬁA
i BERMERRERAARMIDARNBE (8
EREREEARBRERBR)AR -

ETeRAe

EXSRUTNEEMZES  BRERZES HHZES R
FREENERELARBBEEE  URETRRENDAEH -
ZESBAZHHEFNTESAFATESEL  HediEd
SRERgERATEANT -

Ewéﬁé

—E-ZF+-AZF+-B ARRERZES([ERZEE])
da:%?mik%ﬂﬁi%ﬁﬁ B ¥EGary Clark Biddleft £ ~ REK AR
BB LA - Gary Clark Biddle e £ R ERE BT -

BeZRARE &@%ﬁfﬂﬂ —ZF=A+RBEE

() BINERESANERE ERRERERAESSRIES
BHOMEGEE M LB RS - RERENABARE
BB SERZ R BANEE  WERNRERN RERN
BREMEERUEBRETEFREAN  RERERNE
AT TERGAT T BN BEN S iz B B B B R
HEM:

O EREERDEOHHERE  RHRDANHHER P
ERRAREEHY  BREDECEIRERIANNHA
BELFG R

Q) BEIEGEMRTERENERREE INERBHHE

i MBIRE AERRGMEREREMEMEKRRM

REEEBFLIODE  BREFSHINSLBMANEER
EERHNOEEELREEE -

SRERRNEEERAT —T=FFR 43




CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT %%

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Audit Committee held
three meetings, at which the Audit Committee:

(1) reviewed the Company’s annual financial report and internal control
report for the year 2012, and submitted them to the Board for approval;

(2)  discussed the company’s internal control system and reviewed the
Company’s interim financial report of 2013, and submitted it to the
Board for approval; and

(3)  communicated with the auditor regarding the 2013 annual audit work
and audit plans.

Details of attendance at Audit Committee meetings during year 2013 are set out
below:

Audit Committee Members

Mr. Gary Clark Biddle (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Cheng
Mr. Yeung Kwok On

Remuneration Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Remuneration Committee of the Company
(“Remuneration Committee”) comprised two independent non-executive
Directors and one executive Director namely, Mr. Yeung Kwok On, Mr. Wu
Cheng and Mr. Chen Deng Kun. Mr. Yeung Kwok On was the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Board adopted the revised Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the
Remuneration Committee on 16 March 2012. In particular, the major roles and
functions of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

(1) making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s policy
and structure of remuneration, long-term incentive and performance
management of the Directors and senior management, the establishment
of formal and transparent procedures for developing such policy and
structure, the principles and criteria of remuneration, and long-term
incentive plans;

(2)  as authorized by the Board, drawing up proposals for and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of Directors, and
salaries of individual executive Directors and senior management;
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reviewing and assessing the annual performance of Directors and senior
management, and reviewing and approving their remuneration, by
reference to the corporate goals and objectives set by the Board;

drawing up and reviewing proposals for remuneration and making
recommendations to the Board on the adjustment of such remuneration
from time to time, by reference to the Company’s development strategies
and goals approved by the Board and the operating strategies as
adjusted by the Board from time to time;

considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group;

reviewing and approving compensation arrangements (if any) to Directors
and senior management relating to any loss or termination of their office
or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to ensure that
they are consistent with contractual terms and are otherwise reasonable
and appropriate; and

ensure that no Director or any of his/her associates is involved in
deciding his/her own remuneration, and that the remuneration of a non-
executive Director who is a member of the Remuneration Committee
shall be determined by the other members of the Remuneration
Committee.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings to review the remuneration package of Directors
and senior management, discuss the grant of share options pursuant to the
Company’s share option scheme, and submit proposals to the Board.

Details of attendance at Remuneration Committee meetings during year 2013
are set out below:

Remuneration Committee Members

Mr. Yeung Kwok On (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Cheng
Mr. Chen Deng Kun
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Nomination Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee of the Company
(“Nomination Committee”) is comprised of one executive Director and two
independent non-executive Directors namely, Mr. Xu Shao Chun, Mr. Wu
Cheng and Mr. Yeung Kwok On. Mr. Xu Shao Chun was the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

The Company has adopted the Board Diversity Policy in August 2013. The policy
sets out the approach to achieve diversity in the Board which will include and
make good use of the differences in skills, experience background and industry
experience, gender, knowledge and other qualities of the members of the board.
These differences will be considered in determining the optimum composition
of the Board and all board appointments will be based on merit, having due
regard to the overall effective functioning of the board as a whole. The Company
believes that diversity can strengthen the performance of the Board, promote
effective decision-making and better corporate governance and monitoring.
The nomination committee also monitors the implementation of this policy
and reports to the Board on the achievement of the measurable objectives for
achieving diversity under this policy.

The Board adopted the revised Terms of Reference and Modus Operandi of the
Nomination Committee on 16 March 2012. In particular, the major roles and
functions of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

(1) reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the skills,
knowledge and experience) of the Board at least annually;

(2)  identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Directors, and
selecting or making recommendations to the Board on the selection of
individuals nominated for directorship;

(3)  making recommendations to the Board on any proposed changes to the
Board to implement the Company’s corporate strategy;

(4)  assessing the independence of the independent non-executive Directors;
and

(5)  making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or
reappointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors.

During the financial year ended 31 December 2013, the Nomination Committee
held one meeting to determine the policy for the nomination of Directors,
review the structure of Board and make recommendations to the Board
on the nomination of the non-executive Director. The criteria of selecting
and recommending candidates for directorship adopted by the Nomination
Committee are the qualifications and skills of talent, coupled with the goals and
development strategy of the company.
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Details of attendance at Nomination Committee meetings during year 2013 are
set out below:

Nomination Committee Members

Mr. Xu Shao Chun (Chairman)
Mr. Wu Cheng
Mr. Yeung Kwok On

Corporate Governance and Strategy Committee

As at 31 December 2013, the Corporate Governance and Strategy Committee
of the Company (the “Strategy Committee”) comprised two executive Directors,
one non-executive Director and one independent non-executive Director namely,
Mr. Xu Shao Chun, Mr. Chen Deng Kun, Ms. Dong Ming Zhu and Mr. Ho Ching
Hua. Mr. Xu Shao Chun was the chairman of the Strategy Committee.

The main responsibilities of the Strategy Committee set out in the rules of the
Board are as follows:

(1) considering and formulating the mid- and long-term strategies of the
Company;

(2)  assessing the effects of the implementation of the Company’s strategies;

(3)  making recommendations on critical issues prescribed in the Articles of
Association and other issues requiring approval from the Board, including
those related to investments, financings, etc; and

(4)  performing the duties in relation to corporate governance set out in code
provision D.3.1 of the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

During the reporting period, Mr. Xu Shao Chun assumed the roles of both the
Chairman and CEO of the Company. The Board considers that Mr. Xu Shao
Chun, as one of the main founders of the Company, has abundant knowledge
of the IT industry and unique strategic perspectives. The Board believes that he
can lead the Company to formulate effective strategies and react promptly to
market changes. His continual service in both roles is beneficial to the stable
and healthy development of the Company. However, the Board will review and
make appropriate changes when necessary in order to enhance the level of
corporate governance.
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Adoption of Code of Conduct Regarding Director’s
Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted a code of conduct (the “Code of Conduct”) regarding
Directors’ securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard set out in the Model Code of Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules.
The Company, having made specific enquiry of all Directors, confirms that
the Directors have complied with the Code of Conduct and the Model Code
throughout the accounting period covered by this annual report. The Code
of Conduct and the Model Code are also applicable to other specified senior
management of the Company.

The details relating to the securities of the Company held by the Directors are
set out in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests or Short
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures” of the “Report of
Directors” on pages 34 to 35 of this annual report.

Internal Control

During the reporting period, the Company identified five strategic initiatives,
including continuing to build cloud management open platform, innovating the
020 mode and speeding the mobile Internet transformation; improving the
product quality with dual-core drivers; promoting the distribution transformation
and strengthening channel partner management; making the transformation
from sales-oriented style to delivery-oriented style; and promoting service
transformation with our partners and improving the customer satisfaction in
order to ensure the implementation of the Company’s strategies. The Company
further improved the internal control and risk management standards by
adjusting its business structure, speeding up the whole distribution process
and improving the management quality; the Company promoted institutional
restructuring, strengthened the operation of service partners’ ecosystem,
integrated the external resources to promote the transformation of project
delivery; the Company also further reduced the labor costs in order to reduce
and control costs through the promotion of the optimizing the staff, so as to
ensure the financial and operational risks can be effectively controlled.

Regarding the disclosure of inside information and internal control measures,
the Company understands its duties under the Listing Rules and SFO, and
adheres to the important principle of timely publication of the inside information.
The Company abides by the “Guide on disclosure of price-sensitive information”
published by the Securities and Futures Commission, and has developed a
complete system of internal procedures and internal control measures for
processing and publication of information in order to ensure the timely, accurate
and appropriate disclosure of relevant information to the shareholders and
regulatory authorities.
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Investor Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining good relations with investors. The
Company has set up a specialized department with staff to attend to investor
relations affairs. The Company actively participates in various investor forums
physically or via conference calls, provides investors with the information
necessary for them to form their views on the Company’s performance and
reports investors’ feedback to management in a timely manner in order to
improve operations and corporate governance of the Company. To promote
transparency, the Company has announced its operating performance to
shareholders and other stakeholders. These disclosures include: (1) publishing
interim and annual reports; (2) making press releases; (3) meeting regularly with
investors; (4) publishing analysts’ reports on the Company; and (5) conducting
market consultations.

The Company firmly believes that increased transparency in the capital
market will improve corporate governance and be beneficial to the long-term
development of the Company. The Company welcomes suggestions from
investors and shareholders in relation to the development of the Company to the
Company’s investor relations team via email or telephone.

Shareholders’ Rights

The shareholders’ rights are set out in the Articles of Association. Pursuant to
Article 72 of the Articles of Association, general meetings shall be convened on
the written requisition of any two or more members of the Company deposited
at the principal office of the Company in Hong Kong or, in the event the
Company ceases to have such a principal office, the registered office specifying
the objects of the meetings and signed by the requisitionists, provided that such
requisitionists hold as at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-
tenth of the paid up capital of the Company which carries the right of voting at
general meetings of the Company.

If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition
proceed duly to convene the meeting to be held within a further 21 days, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more than one-half of
the total voting rights, may convene the general meeting in the same manner,
as nearly as possible, as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held after the expiration
of three months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) in convening the meeting as a result of
the failure of the Board to convene the meeting shall be reimbursed to them by
the Company.
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Any inquiry is welcome to be presented to the Board by shareholders and any
proposal relating to the business, strategy and management of the Company
is welcome to be presented at general meeting for review and discussion.
Shareholders’ inquiries and relevant proposals to the Board can be submitted
in written form to the Company secretary, and will be dealt with by the CEO or
the chairman of the relevant board committees or other senior management
members.

The contact information of the Company secretary is as follows:
19/F, MassMutual Tower, 38 Gloucester Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
Fax: (852)2861 3757

Email: estherngan@wongbros.com.hk

During the year ended 31 December 2013, the Company held the annual
general meeting on 8 May 2013. All shareholders were given at least 21 days’
(and 20 business days’) notice for such annual general meeting. The chairman
of the Board, executive Directors and the auditor attended such annual general
meeting to communicate with shareholders and answer questions from
shareholders.

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, all resolutions of the general meetings should
be voted on by poll on the basis that one vote is attached to one share (except
where the chairman, in good faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter to be voted on by a show of
hands), and the poll results would be published on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company (www.kingdee.com).

Amendments Made to the Articles of Association

During the reporting period, no amendment had been made to the Articles of
Association.

External Auditor

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as the external auditor of the Company
for the year of 2013, and there has been no change in the company’s auditor
in any of the preceding three years. During the year ended 31 December
2013, PricewaterhouseCoopers provided audit services to the Company, the
remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers was RMB 2,350,000 for
audit service. A resolution for re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
auditor of the Company will be proposed at the AGM.

50 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

AARBABRRAABREANESSHEHIEH  TEUORREZSR
BAREEY RELEEZRINBRAE LR o BRI
BBARNENEENAREASHREHEERITESS  &117
BERI AR EER R RARRERAR TURE -

RAMEZBRFENT

EEETETITES R EEEAAE10E

fEE : (852) 2861 3757
B : estherngan@wonghros.com.hk

ARAIREE-Z =+ A=+—-RAFEN R-T—-=%F1
ANBBRASEREAR  REAFAGBAMRFECREANT
PR —B(R-TEZXBR)BERR - TR HITEZLEH
MEHFE —T - —BRAFAGERRBBLDMEMRRAE -

BELTHRE MECREASRENAZEZOB/N—R—F
BEFARRABEEABRECANRAEL AT - AFHEE
HRFAITREENRZRUABFRMN) BRERRERY
ZRERR R A D B 55 7 B AT 49 Uk (www.hkexnews.hk) Bz 2 &) 49 Uk

(www.kingdee.com)A %5 e

LREREH
BEMA - DEFREF(FMET -
e

ARERZE-ZFMINEREM AR IR EGHERM - I
RBE=FREF—F  REZAREH - REE-T—=F+1=
A=+—BEER  BREESHMSHAANGEEREET
%, B/ R ERRACEEHMEBANETREEARAR
BobE T - AARRRABBITNRRAFAE LIRZEHNERE
BEFUGESEENEHME AR ARHEAORER -



The Board is responsible for ensuring the appropriate preparation of
accounts, and the accuracy, fairness and comprehensiveness of the financial
statements of the Company. The statement by the auditor about their reporting
responsibilities is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” section on pages
52 to 53 of this Annual Report.

Company Secretary

The Company engages an external service provider as its Company secretary,
and Ms. Esther Ngan has been appointed as the main contact person of the
external service provider. The Company secretary may contact Ms.Yi Wei, the
Board secretary of the Company pursuant to code provision F.1.1 of the Code.

Improving Corporate Governance

The Company will continue to regularly review its corporate governance
measures and practices to ensure that they are on par with the corporate
governance standards of international corporations and in light of the changing
regulatory requirements and investors’ needs. This will also help in the long
term to continuously develop the Company, and enhance its corporate value.

Appreciation

The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation to its shareholders,
customers, suppliers and bankers for their continued support to the Group. The
Board also wishes to thank the Group’s management and staff for achieving
remarkable progress in the Group’s business and their dedication and
commitment to improving the Group’s management.

On behalf of the Board

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
Xu Shao Chun

Chairman

Shenzhen, the People’s Republic of China, 17 March 2014
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Kingdee International
Software Group Company Limited (“the Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) set out on pages 54 to 144, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2013, and the consolidated
income statement, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT % 32 # (Al 3R &

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well
as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 December 2013,
and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly
prepared in accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Other Matters

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for you, as
a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 17 March 2014
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

EHEEAER
As at 31 December
BR+=RA=+—H
Note 2013 2012
L= RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TR AREFT
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FEREEE
Land use rights T b A 6 135,488 138,849
Property, plant and equipment TEE  IRERE 7 760,218 791,216
Intangible assets B EE 8 597,514 637,183
Investments in associates BERE 9 2,143 -
Investment properties BEEEE 10 826,623 825,575
Entrusted loan ZHAER 1 25,800 26,000

2,347,786 2,418,823
Current assets nEEE
Inventories FE 12 3,936 3,936
Trade and other receivables FEUBR 0 K E A FE LR 11 276,516 313,458
Prepaid income tax B SR - 712
Due from customers on implementation contracts EREPERE R 13 296,197 326,328
Pledged bank deposits BEHIRIER 14 4,420 5,591
Short-term bank deposits RERRITIEN 14 140,500 14,500
Cash and cash equivalents ReRBLZEY 14 858,446 898,002

1,580,015 1,562,527
Total assets BEE 3,927,801 3,981,350
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET &t & E & EX

As at 31 December

R+=RA=+—H
Note 2013 2012
Bt RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®%TR AREFTL
EQUITY #a
Capital and reserves attributable to FOTHSREBAEN
owners of the Company BERGEE
Share capital A 16 64,435 64,059
Share premium BARE 16 480,253 435,460
Other reserves HiEE 17 528,988 528,988
Retained earnings RE&F
— Others —H 17 676,736 550,336
1,750,412 1,578,843
Non-controlling interests FERFRES 15 4,466 11,459
Total equity HER 1,754,878 1,590,302
LIABILITIES ff
Non-current liabilities FERBAR
Borrowings =5 19 1,154,985 1,363,641
Deferred income tax liabilities-net REMERARE 20 66,022 61,911
Long term payables REERT - 7,388
1,221,007 1,432,940
Current liabilities ik =R
Trade and other payables FERER TR E A FE A TR 21 362,860 537,633
Due to customers on implementation contracts ENEEEHARN 13 72,442 73,642
Borrowings = 19 420,215 227,000
Current income tax liabilities EHMEHERE 10,492 -
Deferred income ETMA 22 85,907 119,833
951,916 958,108
Total liabilities HaR 2,172,923 2,391,048
Total equity and liabilities BREREE 3,927,801 3,981,350
Net current assets RBEERE 628,099 604,419
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRDAR 2,975,885 3,023,242

The notes on pages 61 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 54 to 144 were approved by the board of

directors on 17 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf.

Xu Shao Chun

#®OE
Director

EZE

FOIEEIMENM AN BERENERI D -

FUARIMENTBERRCHEFEN T NFE=A+LA#L

% IRKEFERE

Yang Jian

iR
Director

EF
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BALANCE SHEET

EERER
As at 31 December
BR+=-A=+—H
Note 2013 2012
(=3 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®%TR AREFTL
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in and loans to subsidiaries HFRRIMBERER 15 590,020 547,137
590,020 547,137
Current assets nBEE
Trade and other receivables P M B 0 % L A PR MR 11 27,616 28,488
Cash and cash equivalents RekBReEED 14 18,245 17,557
45,861 46,045
Total assets BEE 635,881 593,182
EQUITY a2
Capital and reserves attributable to EAFESRE AEN
owners of the Company BER R
Share capital AR AN 16 64,435 64,059
Share premium AR B 16 482,021 437,228
Other reserves HAfAE 17 619 619
Retained earnings REBEF
— Others —Hh 17 87,887 90,100
Total equity HiEs 634,962 592,006
LIABILITIES af
Current liabilities mHEE
Trade and other payables TER BRI R E e~ 2% 21 919 1,176
Total equity and liabilities BEARARE 635,881 593,182
Net current assets RBEERE 44,942 44,869
Total assets less current liabilities HEERTHAR 634,962 592,006

The notes on pages 61 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated 618 Z1448 M B8 & RE RS o
financial statements.

The financial statements on pages 54 to 144 were approved by the board of  Er4BEZ1MENB K RECREEeN _E—NF=-A++Hit
directors on 17 March 2014 and were signed on its behalf. %o TRERETERE -

Xu Shao Chun Yang Jian
#®o8 o]
Director Director
= EE
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CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

apfiEsER
Year ended 31 December
BET-A=T+—HLEE
Note 2013 2012
Bt RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Revenue BEE 23 1,602,125 1,765,493
Cost of sales HEKA 24 (396,236) (618,526)
Gross profit X 1,205,889 1,146,967
Selling and marketing expenses HEREEKA 24 (827,927) (1,153,722)
Administrative expenses THER 24 (205,036) (216,866)
Research and development costs W7 MBI EE A AR 24 (232,890) (200,357)
Fair value gains on investment properties REMEHEARBELEKE 10 1,048 60,958
Other gains, net Hip A\ —FE 25 297,485 260,083
Operating profit/(loss) EBR27,/(B1R) 238,569 (102,937)
Finance income BEWA 27 8,788 6,813
Finance costs BERA (110,659) (65,896)
Finance costs — net BEMAK—FE 27 (101,871) (59,083)
Share of loss in associates FEBERENERNE 9 (119) -
Profit/(loss) before income tax HIRFERAET(BR) 136,579 (162,020)
Income tax expense G ER 28 (17,172) (1,955)
Profit/(loss) for the year FERT/(BR) 119,407 (163,975)
Attributable to: FE{k
Owners of the Company AARERFBA 30 126,400 (140,246)
Non-controlling interest JEES R (6,993) (23,729)
119,407 (163,975)
Earnings per share for profit/(loss) FATHESHFARGERT(BR)
attributable to owners of the Company HERET,(BR)
(expressed in RMB cents per share) (UBBRAR%SH)
— Basic earnings per share 2N 30 RMB A E #5.01 RMB A R ¥ (5.57)
~ Diluted earnings per share —#E 30 RMB A B #4.82 RMBAR#(5.57)

The notes on pages 61 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
aftRaRER

Year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+—HLEE

Note 2013 2012
BisE RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®TRT AREFT
Profit/(loss) for the year FEEAN/(58) 119,407 (163,975)
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss HETeBnEEE=MER
Fair value change of owner-occupied land and buildings Tt RIEFREARE N
before being transferred to investment properties, RBHiER 2 EHFE - MERFHE
net of tax 17 - 87,753
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss HANeEs BEER0EE
Fair value change of available-for-sale financial assets, AtHESREEERFE -
net of tax MERTIE 17 - 913
Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets, net of tax BREAHLESREE  NBRFE 17 = (1,825)
- ©12)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FEERMGARE (Bi|)
net of tax MRRIE - 86,841
Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year, FEERRARE (FR)
net of tax 119,407 (717,134
Total comprehensive income/(loss) attributable to: Hizaws (HiE)REBR :
Owners of the Company AAREREEE 126,400 (63,405)
Non-controlling interest FEE IR (6,993) (23,729)
119,407 (77,134)

The notes on pages 61 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated 61 E £ 1M4B KT AT EHRERMNEEILS o
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

2L
EHESEER
Attributable to owners of the Company
FNFRSKEAER
Non-
Share Share Other  Retained controlling Total
Note  capital  premium  reserves  earnings Total interest equity
FERRE
i f BF BRFRE HUEE FEERA Akt #a A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETFT ARE®TT ARETT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARTR
Balance at 1 January 2012 —Z2-_5—f—-HER 63,941 405,730 436,023 703,600 1,609,294 34316 1,643,610
Comprehensive income Falka
Loss for the year FEER - - - (140246)  (140246) (23729  (163,975)
Other comprehensive income HinfrA W - - 86,841 - 86,841 - 86,841
Total comprehensive income Redka - - 86,841 (140,246) (53,405) (23,729) (77,134)
Transactions with owners HERKFENXS
Employees share option scheme: EEEREE
—value of employee services - EERBHER 16 - 28,787 - - 28,787 - 28,787
— proceeds from shares issued —BIIRMDATER 16 136 4013 - - 4,149 - 4149
Repurchase and cancellation of G- Rl e)
own shares (18) (1,302) 18 (18) (1,320) - (1,320)
Transactions with non-controlling izglgu gy Tt 0peg !
interests 17 - - (6,894) - (6,894) 872 (6,022)
Acquisition of treasury shares BAEEZR 16 - (1,768) - - (1,768) - (1,768)
Capitalisation of retained earnings B R - - 13,000 (13,000) - - -
Total transactions with owners ~ 2 IEERBZHFENTS 118 29,730 6,124 (13,018) 22,954 872 23,826
Balance at 31 December 2012 —E-"%+ZH
=+—BR#Ee 64,059 435,460 528,988 550,336 1,578,843 11,459 1,590,302
Balance at 1 January 2013 —E2-Z5—f—HER 64,059 435,460 528,988 550,336 1,578,843 11,459 1,590,302
Comprehensive income ReET
Profit/(loss) for the year EERF/(FR) = - - 126,400 126,400 (6,993) 119,407
Total comprehensive income HeuEs - - - 126400 126,400 (6,993) 119,407
Transactions with owners HERKEINXS
Employees share option scheme: EERRETE
— value of employee services - EERBHER 16 - 28,804 - - 28,804 - 28,804
— proceeds from shares issued —BIIRMFTER 16 376 15,989 - - 16,365 - 16,365
Total transactions with owners ~ 2BERESHFENHZS 376 44,793 - - 45,169 - 45,169
Balance at 31 December 2013 —E&-=F+=AH
=+—R#Ee 64,435 480,253 528,988 676,736 1,750,412 4,466 1,754,878

The notes on pages 61 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated 61 EZ144E R AU BHRKNEERS -
financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

ABRERBE
Year ended 31 December
BE+T-A=1+—HLEE
Note 2013 2012
(=3 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities BETBMNALRE
Cash generated from operations BEEANES 31 524,340 71,901
Interest paid (excluding interest paid capitalised) ERFME(TEEEREMFIL) (108,338) (54,273)
Income tax paid BRMER (858) (5,967)
Net cash generated from operating activities SEIHELENTHE 415,144 11,661
Cash flows from investing activities REEHNHALRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BETHE  THEHRE (138,927) (253,129)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  HETENE « THRREMER 31 16,274 9,105
Purchases of intangible assets BEEWEE (199,843) (255,537)
Cash paid for contingent and deferred consideration =588 RiEILER
for business combination THERE (17,402) (74,234)
Pledged bank deposits withdrawn BIRRTEREH 3,570 6,011
Pledged bank deposits placed ERRITEREA (2,399) (570)
Short-term bank deposits withdrawn RERIRITF 5L 4,000 1,990
Short-term bank deposits placed RERTEIEA (130,000) -
Disposal of subsidiaries, net of cash disposed of HEFAR  MBALENRSE 3,307 -
Payment of establishment of associates U= YNIbd (1,333) -
Principal received from entrusted loan ZiERAgE 200 -
Interest received BUCHLE 8,788 5,634
Payments for land use rights S+ (F R - (62,036)
Purchases of investment property BERBAUEMWE - (64,258)
Payments for entrusted loan BAZRER = (26,000)
Purchases of available-for-sale financial assets EETHEESREE = (101,000)
Proceeds from sale of available-for-sale HEAHNESHEEMER
financial assets - 114,041
Interest paid capitalised FIEER(L = (19,771)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMARES (453,765) (719,754)
Cash flows from financing activities MEERHZHERE
Proceeds from share options exercised RDITREGR 16 16,365 4,149
Repurchase of own shares PeEl 16 = (1,320)
Proceeds from borrowings BERBER 385,000 1,027,141
Repayments of borrowings BEER (402,300) (54,000)
Acquisition of treasury shares BABETR 16 - (1,768)
Cash paid for acquisition of non-controlling interest ~ B& & JEie |z - (1,519
Net cash generated from financing activities METBELNIHRE (935) 972,683
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ReRASERNBIBM (39,556) 264,590
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year FUBELRELESEY 14 898,002 633,412
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year ERBERACEREY 14 858,446 898,002

The notes on pages 61 to 144 are an integral part of these consolidated 561 EE144B MK A BHREOBELLS -
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

General Information

Kingdee International Software Group Company Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands in 1999 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of its office is Kingdee
Software Park, 2 Keji 12th Road South, Hi-tech Industrial Park, Nanshan
District, Shenzhen, Guangdong Province, The People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”)
are developing, manufacturing and selling of enterprise management
software products and provision of software-related technical services in
the PRC.

The Company has its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited since 15 February 2001.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
(“RMB”), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial
statements have been approved for issue by the board of directors on 17
March 2014,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise
stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS). The consolidated financial statements have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified
by the revaluation of investment properties, which are carried at
fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgment in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated
financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures
(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
The following standards have been adopted by
the Group for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2013, are relevant
but have no significant impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

° Amendment to IAS 1, ‘Financial statement
presentation’ regarding other comprehensive
income. The main change resulting from
these amendments is a requirement for
entities to group items presented in ‘other
comprehensive income’ (OCl) on the basis
of whether they are potentially reclassifiable
to profit or loss subsequently (reclassification
adjustments).

° IFRS 10, ‘Consolidated financial statements’
builds on existing principles by identifying
the concept of control as the determining
factor in whether an entity should be
included within the consolidated financial
statements of the parent company. The
standard provides additional guidance to
assist in the determination of control where
this is difficult to assess.

° IAS 27 (revised) includes the provisions on
separate financial statements that are left
after the control provisions of IAS 27 have
been included in the new IFRS 10.

° IAS 28 (revised) includes the requirements
for joint ventures, as well as associates, to
be equity accounted following the issue of
IFRS 11.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)

(@  New and amended standards adopted by the Group
(continued)

[FRS 12, ‘Disclosures of interests in
other entities’ includes the disclosure
requirements for all forms of interests in
other entities, including joint arrangements,
associates, structured entities and other off
balance sheet vehicles.

IFRS 13, ‘Fair value measurement’, aims to
improve consistency and reduce complexity
by providing a precise definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value
measurement and disclosure requirements
for use across IFRSs. The requirements,
which are largely aligned between IFRSs and
US GAAP, do not extend the use of fair value
accounting but provide guidance on how it
should be applied where its use is already
required or permitted by other standards
within IFRSs.

IAS 36 (Amendment) ‘Impairment of assets’
on recoverable amount disclosures, this
amendment addresses the disclosure of
information about the recoverable amount
of impaired assets if that amount is based
on fair value less costs of disposal. The
amendment is not mandatory of the Group
until 1 January 2014, however the Group
has decided to early adopt the amendment
as of 1 January 2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

(continued)
() New and amended standards not yet adopted by
the Group

A number of new standards and amendments
to standards and interpretations are effective for
annual periods beginning after 1 January 2013,
and have not been applied in preparing these
consolidated financial statements. None of these
is expected to have a significant effect on the
consolidated financial statements of the Group.

° IAS 32 (Amendment) ‘Financial instruments:
Presentation’ on asset and liability offsetting
is effective for annual periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2014

. Amendments to IFRS 10, 12 and IAS 27
on ‘Consolidation for investment entities’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2014

° IAS 39 (Amendment) ‘Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’ — novation
of derivatives is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2014

° IFRIC 21 ‘Levies’ is effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January
2014

° IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, the effective
date is to be determined

° IFRS 11 “Joint arrangements’ is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2013

° IAS 19 (Amendment), ‘Employee benefits’ is

effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continved) 2 EEGHBFBE2)
2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 REEEE)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 EHERNRENEE(E)

(continued)
() New and amended standards not yet adopted by
the Group (continued)

° IFRS 7 (Amendment) ‘Financial instruments:
Disclosures’ on asset and liability offsetting is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

° IFRIC Int 20 ‘Stripping costs in the
production phase of a surface mine’ is
effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2013

Management does not anticipate that the application of the
revised standards will result in a material impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries
2.2.1 Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and
has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

(@  Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the
fair values of the assets transferred, the liabilities
incurred to the former owners of the acquiree
and the equity interests issued by the Group. The
consideration transferred includes the fair value
of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are measured
initially at their fair values at the acquisition date.
The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition
basis, either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interest’s proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continuead)

@)

Business combinations (continued)
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is re-
measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement
are recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the
fair value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with IAS 39 either in profit or loss
or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the
fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is
recorded as goodwill. If the total of consideration
transferred, non-controlling interest recognised
and previously held interest measured is less than
the fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary
acquired in the case of a bargain purchase, the
difference is recognised directly in the income
statement (Note 2.9).

Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported by
subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with
the group’s accounting policies.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.2 Subsidiaries (continued)

2.2.1 Consolidation (continuead)

() Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries

without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control are accounted for
as equity transactions — that is, as transactions
with the owners of the subsidiary in their capacity
as owners. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses
on disposals to non-controlling interests are also
recorded in equity.

(c)  Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured to its
fair value at the date when control is lost, with the
change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for
the purposes of subsequently accounting for the
retained interest as an associate or financial asset.
In addition, any amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities. This
may mean that amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to
profit or oss.

2.2.2 Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost also includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the Company on the basis of dividend and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required upon receiving dividends from these investments
if the dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income
of the subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared or
if the carrying amount of the investment in the separate
financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets including goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continved) 2 EEGHBFRHE2)
2.3 Associates 23 e

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant
influence but not control, generally accompanying a shareholding
of between 20% and 50% of the voting rights. Investments
in associates are accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or
decreased to recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of
the investee after the date of acquisition. The Group’s investment
in associates includes goodwill identified on acquisition.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised
in the income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in
other comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to
the carrying amount of the investment. When the Group’s share
of losses in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group
does not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal
or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is
any objective evidence that the investment in the associate is
impaired. If this is the case, the Group calculates the amount of
impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of
the associate and its carrying value and recognises the amount
adjacent to ‘share of profit/(loss) of an associate’ in the income
statement.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream
transactions between the Group and its associate are recognised
in the Group’s financial statements only to the extent of
unrelated investor’s interests in the associates. Unrealised
losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies
of associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.4 Segment reporting

25

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for
allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating
segments, has been identified as the executive directors of the
company that makes strategic decisions.

Foreign currency translation

(@

(b)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(“the functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Company’s
functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at
the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are
re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting
from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in the income statement.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented
in the income statement within ‘Finance income or costs’.
Al other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented
in the consolidated income statement within ‘Other gains
—net’.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in profit or loss as part of the
fair value gains or losses. Translation differences on non-
monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as
available for sale, are included in other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

25

2.6

Foreign currency translation (continued)

(¢) Group companies
The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

().  assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

().  income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of
the transactions); and

(il).  all resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income.

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings comprise mainly offices. Property, plant and equipment
are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised.
All other repairs and maintenance are charged in the consolidated
income statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs to their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, as follows:

- Buildings 15-40 years

- Computer and related 5 years
equipment

- Office equipment 5 years

- Motor vehicles 5 years

- Leasehold the lower of the lease term and
improvements the useful lives
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.6

2.7

2.8

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents property and plant under
construction and is stated at cost. This includes cost of
construction and other direct costs. Construction in progress is
not depreciated until the relevant assets are completed and put
into operational use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than
its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.10).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within
‘Other gains — net” in the consolidated income statement.

Investment property

Investment property, principally comprising leasehold land
and buildings, is held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by the Group. It
also includes properties that are being constructed or developed
for future use as investment properties. Land held under
operating leases are accounted for as investment properties
when the rest of the definition of an investment property is met.
In such cases, the operating leases concerned are accounted
for as if they were finance leases. Investment property is initially
measured at cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs. After initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at fair value, representing open market
value determined at each reporting date by external valuers. Fair
value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition of the
specific asset. If the information is not available, the Group uses
alternative valuation methods such as recent prices on less active
markets or discounted cash flow projections. Changes in fair
values are recorded in the income statement as “Fair value gains
on investment property”.

Land-use rights

Land-use rights represent lease payments paid or payable for the
land use rights less accumulated charges and are recognised as
an expense in the income statement on a straight-line basis over
the lease period of the land use rights.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.9 Intangible assets

(@)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries and
represents the excess of the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value of any
previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the cash-
generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUs, that is
expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination.
Each unit or group of units to which the goodwill is
allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at
which the goodwill is monitored for internal management
purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately as an
expense and is not subsequently reversed.

Research and development expenditure and web
site development costs

Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as
incurred. Costs incurred on development projects (relating
to the design and testing of new and improved products)
or expenditures incurred in the development of a web site
related to the application and infrastructure development
are recognised as intangible assets when the following
criteria are met;

- it is technically feasible to complete the software
product so that it will be available for use;

- management intends to complete the software
product and use or sell it;

- there is an ability to use or sell the software
product;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

29

Intangible assets (continued)

(b)

(©

(d)

Research and development expenditure and web

site development costs (continued)

- it can be demonstrated how the software product
will generate probable future economic benefits;

- adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
software product are available; and

- the expenditure attributable to the software product
during its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised include the
software development employee costs and an appropriate
portion of relevant overheads.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these
criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense is
not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Capitalised development costs are recorded as intangible
assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives not exceeding 3 years.

Acquired licenses and copyrights

Separately acquired licenses and copyrights are stated
at historical cost. licenses and copyrights acquired in
a business combination are recognised at fair value at
the acquisition date. Licenses and copyrights have a
finite useful life and are carried at cost less accumulated
amortisation. Amortisation is calculated using the straight-
line method to allocate the cost of licenses and copyrights
over their estimated useful lives not exceeding 5 years.

Computer software for own use

Computer software licenses for own use are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire and bring to use
the specific software. These costs are amortised over their
estimated useful lives not exceeding 5 years.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

21

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill or
intangible assets not ready to use, are not subject to amortisation
and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject
to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for
the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of
an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the
purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows
(cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill
that suffered impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the
impairment at each reporting date.

Financial assets

2.11.1 Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in loans and
receivables. The classification depends on the purpose for
which the financial assets were acquired. Management
determines the classification of its financial assets at initial
recognition.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted
in an active market. They are included in current assets,
except for maturities greater than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as non-current
assets. The Group’s loans and receivables comprise ‘Trade
and other receivables’ and ‘Cash and cash equivalents’ in
the balance sheet (Note 2.15 and Note 2.16).

2.11.2Recognition and measurement

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade-date — the date on which the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments
are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs
for all financial assets not carried at fair value through
profit or loss. Financial assets are derecognised when
the rights to receive cash flows from the investments
have expired or have been transferred and the Group
has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of
ownership. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.
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2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

212

213

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention
to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of financial assets

Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting period whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired and impairment losses are incurred
only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one
or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an impact
on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group
of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors
or a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments,
the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is
a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such
as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding
future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is
recognised in the consolidated income statement. If a loan or
held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate, the
discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current
effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the
basis of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market
price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement.
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2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.14

215

2.16

217

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined on weighted average basis. Net realisable
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less the estimated costs of completion and applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for software
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in one year
or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as
non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value
and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, less provision for impairment.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with
banks, other short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafts, but
excludes pledged bank deposits. In the consolidated and
Company balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in
equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any group companies purchases the Company’s share
capital (treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any
directly attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes) is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’s owners
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such shares
are subsequently reissued, any consideration received, net of
any directly attributable incremental transaction costs and the
related income tax effects, is included in equity attributable to the
Company’s owners.
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2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

218

2.19

2.20

Trade payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from
suppliers. Accounts payable are classified as current liabilities if
payment is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-
current liabilities.

Trade payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at amortised
cost; any differences between proceeds (net of transaction cost)
and the redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group
has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at
least 12 months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of
those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets
is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred
tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

(@) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of amounts
expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

(b)  Deferred income tax
Inside basis differences
Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, the
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises from
initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit
or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates
(and laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted
by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that

it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies continved) 2 EEGHBFBE2)
2.21 Current and deferred income tax (continued) 221 EHREZERSESH(E)
(b)  Deferred income tax (continued) () EEFER(E)
Outside basis differences IMEER
Deferred income tax liabilities are provided on taxable HTRAR BERBELANESHEREZE
temporary differences arising from investments in BRELMEHAE  BTEEREE LT
subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income tax HIE R E NSRRI RS ERER
liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary BRERRAGETEEENETAEHEE -
difference is controlled by the Group and it is probable that —BmE  AEEELEHHENEREEE
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable HEE - REEE AR TASEFE NS
future. Generally the Group is unable to control the reversal TR EROREE S T THER -
of the temporary difference for associates. Only where
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the
ability to control the reversal of the temporary difference
not recognised.
Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible BFAR - BENEEREEENAMRER
temporary differences arising from investments in HERBEIELEMEHEE  BERBRAERE
subsidiaries and associates only to the extent that it is ERRUEEERER  WEREHERTF
probable the temporary difference will reverse in the future HEETANGREER -
and there is sufficient taxable profit available against which
the temporary difference can be utilised.
(c) Offsetting € &8

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxed assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied
by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity
or different taxable entities where there is an intention to
settle the balances on a net basis.

2.22 Employee benefits

(@

Retirement benefits

The Group provides defined contribution retirement plans
based on local laws and regulations. The plans cover full-
time employees and provide for contributions at certain
percentage of salary as determined by the respective local
government authorities. The Group has no further payment
obligations once the contributions have been paid. The
contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense
when they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as
an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.22 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is
terminated by the Group before the normal retirement date,
or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy
in exchange for these benefits. The Group recognises
termination benefits at the earlier of the following dates:
(@) when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of IAS 37 and
involves the payment of termination benefits. In the case
of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number
of employees expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling
due more than 12 months after the end of the reporting
period are discounted to their present value.

2.23 Share-based payment

(@

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
The Group operates a number of equity-settled, share-
based compensation plans, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of the
employee services received in exchange for the grant of
the options is recognised as an expense. The total amount
to be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value
of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions;

o excluding the impact of any service and non-market
performance vesting conditions (for example,
profitability, sales growth targets and remaining an
employee of the entity over a specified time period);
and

o including the impact of any non-vesting conditions
(for example, the requirement for employees to
save.)

Non-market performance and service conditions are
included in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to vest. The total expense is recognised over
the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the
specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.23 Share-based payment (continued)

(@

(b)

()

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
(continued)

In addition, in some circumstances employees may
provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore
the grant date fair value is estimated for the purposes of
recognising the expense during the period between service
commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group revises its
estimates of the number of options that are expected to
vest based on the non-marketing performance and service
conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to
original estimates, if any, in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the Company issues
new shares. The proceeds received net of any directly
attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital
(nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among Group
entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity
instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings
in the Group is treated as a capital contribution. The
fair value of employee services received, measured by
reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to
equity in the parent entity accounts.

Social security contributions on share options gains
The social security contributions payable in connection
with the grant of the share options is considered an
integral part of the grant itself, and the charge will be
treated as a cash-settled transaction.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.24

2.25

Provision

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation; and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any
one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase
in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest
expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of goods and services in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is presented
net of value-added tax, returns, rebates and discounts and after
elimination of sales made within the Group.

The Group recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can
be reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits
will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been met for
each of the Group’s activities as described below. The amount
of revenue is not considered to be reliably measurable until all
contingencies relating to the sale have been resolved. The Group
bases its estimates on historical results, taking into consideration
the type of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of
each arrangement.

The Group’s turnover includes, separately or in combination,
revenues from sales of software, sales of hardware, provision
of implementation services (including sales of software with
significant modification or customisation), maintenance services,
customer support services, upgrade services and other services.
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2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(@

(b)

Sales of standard software and hardware

Sales of standard software, hardware and related
products, including those distributed via distributors,
are recognised when a group entity has delivered the
products to an end customer; the customer has accepted
the products and collectability of the related receivables is
reasonably assured.

Software implementation contracts

An implementation contract is a contract specifically
negotiated for the implementation of software or a
combination of different software products that are closely
interrelated or interdependent in terms of their design,
technology and functions or their ultimate purpose or use.

The Group uses the percentage of completion method to
determine the appropriate amount of revenue to recognise
in a given period. The stage of completion is measured by
reference to the contract costs incurred up to the balance
sheet date as a percentage of total estimated costs for
each contract. Costs incurred in the year in connection
with future activity on a contract are excluded from
contract costs in determining the stage of completion.
They are presented as inventories, prepayments or other
assets, depending on their nature.

Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments
are included in contract revenue to the extent that would
have been agreed with the customer and are capable of
being reliably measured.
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2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

(b)

(©)

Software implementation contracts continuead)
Contract costs for software implementation are recognised
as expenses as they are incurred and contract revenue,
being costs incurred plus recognised profits (less
recognised losses) are recognised progressively over the
period of the contract. When the outcome of a contract
can be estimated reliably and it is probable that the
contract will be profitable, contract revenue is recognised
with profits. When the outcome of the contract cannot be
estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised only to
the extent of contract costs incurred that are likely to be
recoverable. When it is probable that total contract costs
will exceed total contact revenue, the expected loss is
recognised as an expense immediately.

The Group presents as an asset, the gross amount due
from customers for contract work for all contracts in
progress for which costs incurred plus recognised profits
(Iess recognised losses) exceed progress billings. Progress
billings not yet paid by customers are included within ‘trade
and other receivables’.

The Group presents as a liability the gross amount due to
customers for contract work for all contracts in progress
for which progress billings exceed costs incurred plus
recognised profits (less recognised losses).

Software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrading,
training, subscription for online management services,
and other supporting services

Software solution consulting, maintenance, upgrading,
training, subscription for online services and other
supporting services are provided in the form of fixed-
price contracts. Sales of these services are recognised
in the period the services are provided, using a straight-
line basis over the term of the contract excluding software
solution consulting services, which are recognised on a
percentage-of-completion basis similar to (b) above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

2  Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
2.25 Revenue recognition (continued)

2.26

(d)

(e

Multiple element arrangements

The Group offers certain arrangements whereby a
customer can purchase software together with certain of
the related implementation or other services as discussed
above. When such multiple element arrangements
exist, the total arrangement consideration is allocated
to each element based on their relative fair values, as
determined based on the current market price of each of
the elements when sold separately. The revenue relating
to the service elements, which represent their relative fair
value in relation to the fair value of each of the elements
in the arrangement, are recognised on a percentage-of-
completion basis over the service period.

Where the Group is unable to determine the fair value
of each of the elements in an arrangement, it uses the
residual value method. Under this method, the Group
determines the fair value of the delivered element by
deducting the fair value of the undelivered element from
the total contract consideration.

To the extent that there is a discount on the arrangement,
such discount is allocated between the elements of the
contract in such a manner as to reflect the fair value of the
elements.

Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the income statement on a straight-line basis over the
term of the lease.

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate
of the instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as
interest income. Interest income on impaired loan and receivables
is recognised using the original effective interest rate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

2

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

2.27

2.28

2.29

Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. Payments made under operating lease (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The Group leases certain property, plant and equipment.
Leases of property, plant and equipment where the Group has
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified
as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s
commencement at the lower of the fair value of the leased
property and the present value of the minimum lease payments.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
charges. The corresponding rental obligations, net of finance
charges, are included in other long-term payables. The interest
element of the finance cost is charged to the income statement
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of
interest on the remaining balance of the liability for each period.
The property, plant and equipment acquired under finance leases
is depreciated over the shorter of the useful life of the asset and
the lease term.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value
where there is a reasonable assurance that the grants will be
received and the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants
and are credited to the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the expected lives of the related assets.

Dividend distribution

Dividends distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s
financial statements in the period in which the dividends are
approved by the Company’s shareholders.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

3  Financial Risk Management
Financial risk factors

3.1

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including foreign exchange risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance. The directors review and agree policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised as

follows:

(@) Market risk

U

Foreign exchange risk

The functional currency of the Company and major
subsidiaries is RMB. The majority of the revenues of
the Group are derived from operations in the PRC.
The financial instruments of the Group are mainly
denominated in RMB. As at 31 December 2013,
cash and cash equivalents of RMB60,816,000
(2012: RMB59,632,000) were denominated
in Hong Kong Dollars (“HKD”). Apart from this,
the Group does not have significant exposure to
currency risk. The conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies for the purpose of dividends is subject
to the rules and regulations of foreign exchange
control promulgated by the PRC Government.

The Group does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management of the
Group monitors foreign exchange exposure and
will consider hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should the need arise.

At 31 December 2013, if the RMB had weakened/
strengthened by 5% against the HKD with all other
variables held constant, profit before tax for the
year would have been RMB3,049,000 higher/lower
(2012: loss before tax for the year would have been
RMB2,989,000 lower/higher), mainly as a result
of foreign exchange gains/losses on translation of
HKD-denominated cash and cash equivalents.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

3 Financial Risk Management (continued) 3 HMERREER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HEERRZE)
(@)  Market risk (continued) @ TEERRGE)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises from short-
term and long-term borrowings. Borrowings
obtained at variable rates expose the Group to
cash flow interest rate risk which is partially offset
by cash held at variable rates. There is no other
written policy on managing the interest rate risk
and management will take appropriate steps to
minimise its impact on the income statement.

Except for the borrowings and bank deposits,
fluctuation of market rates does not have significant
impact on the Group’s cash flows.

During 2013 and 2012, the Group’s borrowings at
variable rate were denominated in RMB.

As at 31 December 2012, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the net loss before
tax for the year would have decreased/increased by
RMB12,190,000 respectively, as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on borrowings.

As at 31 December 2013, if interest rates on
borrowings had been 1% higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the net profit before
tax for the year would have decreased/increased by
RMB12,976,000 respectively, as a result of higher/
lower interest expenses on borrowings.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

3  Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk

The carrying amounts of cash and cash equivalents,
pledged and short-term bank deposits, trade and other
receivables, and available for sales financial assets
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in
relation to its financial assets.

The management manages the credit risk of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposits and available
for sale financial assets by transacting with state-owned
financial institutions and reputable commercial banks
which are all high-credit-quality financial institutions in the
PRC and Hong Kong.

In relation to trade receivables, the Group has policies in
place to ensure that a certain percentage of the contracted
sales amounts have been received as deposits upon
agreeing the related sales contracts with customers. The
credit quality of the counterparties is assessed by taking
into account their financial position, credit history and other
factors. The trade debtors of the Group are numerous
small and medium-sized corporates. Individual credit limits
are set based on the assessment of credit quality. It also
undertakes certain monitoring procedures on an individual
customer basis to ensure that proper follow-up action is
taken to recover overdue debts. Nevertheless, the Group
might suffer from certain amounts of trade receivables
which cannot be recovered due to default and unexpected
financial difficulties of customers from time to time. The
Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in
trade receivables and the balance of trade receivables
is composed of numerous individual small items and the
exposure spreads over a large number of customers.
The Group regularly performs ageing analysis, assesses
credit risks and estimates the recoverability of groups
of trade receivables bearing similar credit risk based on
historical data and cash collection history. The estimates
are assessed at each year end in order to ensure that
adequate impairment provision is made.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to
credit risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

3 Financial Risk Management continued) 3 HMERREER®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 BREBREZE)
(¢) Liquidity risk © FanEk
The Group exercises prudent liquidity risk management AEERNEZEEMEHRSHE - tH
by reviewing forecast cash balances on a quarterly basis TEEMTDESEREE  #EEANERE
to maintain sufficient cash levels and the availability of ERENRABNEERENERERE RN
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to EHEHEEBELPTAEEROMELR
ensure the availability of sufficient cash flows to meet MHREHK - AEETEEXNRBERR

any unexpected and material cash requirements in the
course of ordinary business. The Group has no significant
exposure to liquidity risk.

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities TRETAEERA RN & ERRAEN
that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity DEAER)  RIEREEBRZ ARSI ROFS
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance R - ERARBOEBASNOER
sheet to the contractual maturity date. The amounts BRI SN E - ARBERNFETX - #t
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted TE12ME A RS IR A RS R A IR E(E -

cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not

significant.
Less than Between 1 Between 2
1 year and 2 year and 5year Over 5 years
—&£LR —EmE MELF AL
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR AE®TT AE®TR AE®TR
Group &8
At 31 December 2013 RIE-=%+-RA=1+-H
Borrowings (including interests) BN (EEATFIZ) 515,883 389,997 835,925 -

Trade and other payables (excluding  JENBRZ R EMEN T
advance from customers and VAT (T2EFRE

and business tax payable) [ERHEER R EERH) 268,206 - - -
Total At 784,089 389,997 835,925 -
At 31 December 2012 R-B-Z%+-RA=+-H
Borrowings (including interests) BR(GENFIE) 328,388 448,225 1,093,521 25,293
Long term payables, Trade and REOERT - BRER

other payables (excluding LEMENR(TE

advance from customers and VAT PR  EEERK

and business tax payable) BEH) 422,821 7,388 - -
Total At 751,209 455,613 1,093,521 25,293
Company NG
At 31 December 2013 A_E-=Ff+-RA=+—-H
Trade and other payables JERTBR I S E 0 919 - - -
At 31 December 2012 R-B--%+-A=+-H
Trade and other payables EREFREMEMAR 1,176 - - -
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Financial Risk Management (continued)
3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for owners and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of
capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to owners, issue new shares
or sell assets to reduce debt.

Kingdee Software (China) Co., Ltd. (“Kingdee China”), a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company completed the issuance of the
first tranche of the Medium-term Notes in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”) on 16 July 2012. The first tranche of the
Medium-term Notes was issued in the amount of RMB0.48
billion, at the interest rate of 6.0% per annum, and with a term
of three years. The proceeds raised from the issuance of the first
tranche of the Medium-term Notes would be used to meet the
needs of part of the Company’s construction-in-progress project
and to provide working capital for the Company. The gearing ratio
decreased from 50.01% in 2012 to 47.30% in 2013 was mainly
due to profit for the year and repayment of bank borrowings. The
intention of the directors is to maintain the gearing ratio at below
55%. The gearing ratios at 31 December 2013 and 2012 were as
follows:

3
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AEENELERHREREEEESEES IR
BRRHEBAAEMNER A ARGNE - AEg
RRENERNERUREESRA -

ATERIAEERER  FEETRERENE
RRORBEE  BITHRSR EEERERETS -

EENZETRRSEEMH(RRH)BRAR K=
—ZELAHABEFRBEEATN T BB HEE
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#950.01% & 220135 £)47.30% * TERAEREET
ERRAERT - EEBME A B R EL%IA
T EZZE—=ZFR-F-—-F+-A=+—-0 'K
EEMMBGEHLERINT -

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR AREF T

Total borrowings (Note 19) BER(H19) 1,575,200 1,590,641
Total equity B 1,754,878 1,590,302
Total capital WEK 3,330,078 3,180,943
Gearing ratio BELE 47.30% 50.01%
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4  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year are addressed below.

(a) Fair value of investment properties
The fair value of investment properties is determined by
using valuation technique. Details of the judgments and
assumptions have been disclosed in Note 10.

(b)  Revenue recognition

The Group uses the percentage-of-completion method in
accounting for its fixed-price contracts to deliver software
implementation services. Use of the percentage-of-
completion method requires the Group to estimate the
services performed to date as a proportion of the total
services to be performed. If the proportion of services
performed to total services to be performed were to
differ by 10% from management’s estimates, the
amount of revenue recognised in 2013 would have been
higher/lower by approximately RMB48,169,000 (2012:
RMB53,376,000).

(c) Estimated impairment of trade receivables
Determination of impairment of trade receivables requires
management to estimate the present value of future cash
flows. This estimate is made on group basis and based
on the credit history of its customers and the current
market condition. It could change significantly as a
result of change in financial positions of customers. The
impairment of trade receivables for the as at 31 December
2013 would have been approximately RMB5,790,000 (as
at 31 December 2012: RMB7,284,000) lower/higher if
the actual present value of expected cash flows arising
from settlement of receivables were to differ by 5% from
management’s estimates.
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4  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

(d)

(€)

U]

Estimated useful lives of capitalised development
costs

The useful lives of capitalised development costs are
estimated based on historical experience, which include
actual useful lives of similar assets and changes in
technology. If the estimated useful lives of capitalised
development costs were to differ by 20% from
management’s estimates, the amortisation charge for
2013 would have been approximately RMB48,563,000
higher (2012: RMB35,860,000) or RMB35,925,000 lower
(2012: RMB23,907,000).

Share-based payments

The fair value of options granted is estimated by
management based on various assumptions on volatility,
life of options, dividend paid out rate and annual risk-
free interest rate, excluding the impact of any non-market
vesting conditions, which generally represent the best
estimate of the fair value of share options at the date of
grant.

If the estimated fair value of the options granted were
to differ by 10% from management’s estimates, the
administrative expense and the change in equity for 2013
would have differed by approximately RMB2,880,000
(2012: RMB2,879,000).

Estimated impairment of goodwill

The Group tests annually whether goodwill has suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in Note 2.9. The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units (“CGU") have been determined based on
value-in-use calculations. These calculations require the
use of estimates (Note 8).

According to the valuations results produced by
management of the Company based on the above
assumptions, management considered that no impairment
charge was required against goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Kingdee Medical Software Technology
Co.,Ltd (“Kingdee Medical”) as at 31 December 2013.
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4  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

U]

(@

Estimated impairment of goodwill (continued)

If the estimated cost of capital used in determining the
pre-tax discount rate for the CGU had been 1% higher
than management’s estimates (i.e.17% instead of
16%), there would have been an impairment charge of
RMB10,100,000 against goodwill.

If the revenue growth rate for the CGU had been 1%
lower than management’s estimates (i.e.23% instead of
24%), there would have been an impairment charge of
RMB26,024,000 against goodwill.

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in numerous
jurisdictions. Significant judgment is required in
determining the worldwide provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due.
Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different
from the amounts that were initially recorded, such
differences will impact the current and deferred tax assets
and liabilities in the period in which such determination is
made.

Kingdee China and Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware Co.,
Ltd. (“Shenzhen Middleware”) were qualified as national
important software enterprises and were entitled to a
preferential enterprise income tax rate of 10% for year
2013 and 2014. Management believes that Kingdee
China and Shenzhen Middleware will continuously be
qualified and recognised as national important software
enterprise in the future based on past records; therefore,
it is appropriate to apply the preferential tax rate of 10% to
calculate the deferred tax assets and liabilities of Kingdee
China and Shenzhen Middleware as at 31 December
2013.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

4  Critical Accounting Estimates and Judgments (continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and assumptions
(continued)

((¢)]

Income taxes (continued)

According to the applicable PRC tax regulations,
withholding tax will be levied on the dividends distributed
by a company established in the PRC to a foreign investor
with respect to profits derived after 1 January 2008.
Deferred income tax liabilities of RMB51,577,000 (2012:
RMB39,778,000) had not been recognised for the
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings of RMB515,770,000 (2012: RMB397,780,000)
of certain subsidiaries in PRC. The directors of the
Company believe that the Group has sufficient funds in the
overseas companies within the Group and therefore the
Company will not require its PRC subsidiaries to declare
dividends in the foreseeable future out of their profits
earned from 1 January 2008 onwards to 31 December
2013. Accordingly, the Group considered that there was
no need to provide withholding tax liability for profits
retained by its PRC subsidiaries for the years from 2008 to
2013.

4.2 Critical judgment in applying the entity’s accounting
policies

(@

Capitalisation of development costs incurred on
upgrading of existing software products

Costs incurred in upgrading existing software products
(primarily relating to upgrade of the existing features or
additions of new features/modules) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria as detailed
in Note 2.9(b) are fulfilled. Management has applied
its professional judgement in determining whether
these software products could generate probable future
economic benefits to the Group based on the historical
experience of the success of the existing products and the
prospects of the markets. Any severe change in market
performance or technology advancement will have an
impact on the development costs capitalised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS %&&

Segment Information

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as executive
directors of the Company. The executive directors review the Group’s
internal reporting in order to assess performance and allocate resources.
Management has determined the operating segments based on these
reports.

The executive directors consider the business from product perspective.
Upon the adoption of IFRS 8 “Operating Segments”, the Group has
identified the following operating segments:

Enterprise Management  —  sales and implementation of enterprise
Software Business management software, provision of other
related services and sales of hardware
related to enterprise management

software arrangements

Middleware, — sales of middleware software business
E-commerce service and provision of E-commerce and other
and others online management services

Investment Properties — operation of investment properties

The chief operating decision-maker assesses the performance of the
operating segments based on the operating profit of each segment.
Substantially all of the businesses of the Group are carried out in the
PRC.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

5  Segment Information continued) 5 SBER®
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2013 is as ZE—=F+ZA=+—BHHERT
follows:
Enterprise  Middleware,
management E-commerce
software  service and Investment The Group
business others Properties Total
SEEE s
BiEE STEBREfM RALELE K4
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARRTR AR®TT AR®TT AR%TT
Revenue (from external customers) R EINBR WA 1,550,972 51,153 - 1,602,125
Operating profit/(l0ss) LERF,/(BB) 206,482 (7,706) 39,793 238,569
Finance costs BB (110,608) (51) - (110,659)
Finance income BEWRA 8,632 156 - 8,788
Finance (cost)/income - net BR(EE)BA-BE (101,976) 105 - (101,871)
Share of loss in associates FHEBEREBBENHE = (119) - (119)
Profit/(loss) before income tax HIRFRESRITETR(5]) 104,506 (7,720) 39,793 136,579
Income tax credit/(expense) FEHEL/(BA) (13,193) - (3,979) (17,172)
Segment results PEWER 91,313 (7,720) 35,814 119,407
Segment assets PBEE 3,018,881 82,297 826,623 3,927,801
Segment liabilities PMAE 2,030,578 91,358 50,987 2,172,923
Redugctions to non-current assets BOERBDEE(TRE
(other than financial instruments ERIARBEREAE)
and deferred tax assets) (70,627) (1,458) 1,048 (71,037)
Material non-cash EXFREZTH WA
expenses/income
Depreciation and amortisation TEREH 293,042 647 - 293,689
(Written-back)/allowance for doubtful —~ RIEZRE(H),/5HE
trade and other receivables (7,252) 6,225 - (1,027)

SRERRNEEERAT —T=FFR 97 l




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

5  Segment Information (continued)
The segment information for the year ended 31 December 2012 is as

5 SBREE)
“E- A= T-BAWENNT

follows:

Enterprise Middleware,
management  E-commerce
software service and Investment The Group
business others Properties Total
EER HEM -
XS EFHBERAEMN REMFHE SEEE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFT AREFL AREFT
Revenue (from external customers) EBINPE PRI 1,710,169 55,324 - 1,765,493
Operating (loss)/profit L (ER) /B (148,642) (42,327) 88,032 (102,937)
Finance costs BERKA (65,833) (63) - (65,896)
Finance income BEWA 6,288 525 - 6,813
Finance (cost)/income - net BE(EF) A —PE (59,545) 462 - (59,083)
(Loss)/profit before income tax HKRFRERA(GE) 2% (208,187) (41,865) 88,032 (162,020)
Income tax credit/(expense) FiisRiER/(BR) 6,848 - (8,803) (1,955)
Segment results DHER (201,339 (41,865) 79,229 (163,975)
Segment assets ABAE 3,053,710 102,065 825,575 3,981,350
Segment liabilities ABER 2,224,387 116,657 50,004 2,391,048
Additions to non-current assets (other ~ #iE3EmEEE (T EIESRT
than financial instruments and AENEERIBEE)
deferred tax assets) 404,466 (875) 328,650 732,241
Material non-cash EXERETH (KA)
expenses/income
Depreciation and amortisation E R 238,703 1,117 - 239,820
(Written-back)/allowance for doubtful — RIZBR(his), 512
trade and other receivables (2,226) 3,041 - 815

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands while the Group
mainly operates its businesses in the PRC. The result of its total revenue
from external customers from the PRC is RMB1,572,786,000 (2012:
RMB1,752,146,000), and the total of revenue from external customers
from other countries is RMB29,339,000 (2012: RMB13,347,000) for the
year ended 31 December 2013. All the Group’s non-current assets are
located in the PRC.

There is no single customer that contributed to over 10% of the Group’s
revenue for the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Land Use Rights — Group 6 LiERE-£@E
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
Opening net book amount HRREFE 138,849 83,683
Additions BN - 62,036
Transfer to investment properties (Note 10) BAREMEE (F310) - (2,904)
Amortisation charges (Note 24) BB (M) (3,361) (3,966)
135,488 138,849
The Group’s interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating AEEEIFARNESRREEESH LIbFRERM
lease payments and their net book values are analysed as follows: e ERS  ERMFELTOT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT ARETT
In the PRC, held on: TEHEPEARE
Leases of between 10 to 50 years HEFI0FE0F 135,488 138,849

SHEMHAEEARAR 2 =558 0Q




NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

7  Property, Plant and Equipment — Group 7 TBE- - IRREHE-KH
Computer
and related Office Motor Leasehold  Construction
Buildings equipment equipment vehicles  improvements in progress Total
BF EEREMEE  WORE E§ HAOnRRE HRIR fit
RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000
AREBTT  ARETR  ARETT AREBTR  ARETR  ARETRT  ARETR
Year ended 31 December 2012 #E-S-F1CR
=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BSREE 294,362 59,618 13,048 20,166 12545 118371 518,10
Additions R % 5249 2,968 3205 1617 344,075 357,209
Revaluation surplus before ransfered to BAREEEHENY
investment properties, credited to resene G ARR 97,503 - - - - - 97503
Transfer to investment properties (Note 10) & \RBIERIE(TEF0) (136,168) - - - - - (136,168)
Transfer from construction in progress fobuldings AR TREAETAE 462,446 - - - - (462,446) -
Disposals RE (19) (3,464 (1,500 2.09) (3,863) - (10938
Depreciaion i (10282 (14,966) (4054 (488) 817 - (34500
(Closing net book amount HRRERE 707,868 46,437 10,462 16,467 9,982 - 791,216
At 31 December 2012 RZZ-Z£+ZAZ+-A
Cost AR 743,035 108425 20,664 3,745 19,538 - 926,407
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (35,167) (61,988) (10.202) (18.278) 9.556) - (135,191)
Net ook amount BESE 707,868 443 10462 16,467 9982 - 96
Year ended 31 December 2013 HEZZ-ZE+CR
=t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BEEFE 107,368 46,437 10,462 16,467 9,982 - 791,216
Additions =5 11817 18,347 3,063 2,269 2,060 - 37,556
Disposas (ote 3) EE (K1) (364) (8.953) 2) (3621) - - (1713%)
Depreciaton (Note 24) WE(HEA) (21,963) (14,667) (3,789) (4,469) (6,528) - (51,416)
Closing net hook amount HREERE 694,080 41,164 8814 10,646 5514 - 760,218
At 31 December 2013 RZ3-Z%+ZR=1+-A
Cost A 751,192 103,269 21873 29,880 21,598 - 927,812
Accumulated depreciation ZitinE (67,112) (62,10) (13,059) (19.234) (16,084) - (167,594)
Net book amount FERE 694,080 41,164 8,814 10,646 5,514 - 760,218

ANE 158400007 (ZT— =% : AR#13,209,000 7T ) £
NEBRFTABEREREERAT - ARM10,694,000T(=F
—Z%F : ARM8,329,00070) MITE B AT AR RFERK
AR AR 248820007 (2 —— 4 : AR12,962,000
TLMTEE R ATTRERT -

Depreciation expense of approximately RMB15,840,000 (2012:
RMB13,209,000) has been charged to selling and marketing expenses,
RMB10,694,000 (2012: RMB8,329,000) to research and development
costs, and RMB24,882,000 (2012: RMB12,962,000) to administrative
expenses.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

8 Intangible Assets — Group 8 EREE-%£E

Acquired Computer
Development  licensesand  software for Customer

Goodwill costs  copyrights ownuse relationship Total
RiEH BR
il RBRE  RbEEE BERHE EFRRE &t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETR ARMTR

Year ended 31 December 2012 §E-E-"%4+CH

=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount HEmTE 84,311 386,188 106,818 4307 6,240 587,864
Additions #R - 262,045 1,316 1,992 - 255,353
Disposal RE - - (4,680) - - (4,680)
Amrtisation charge(Note 24) BHEE () - (169,264) (26,366) (3,.456) (1,769) (201,354)
Closing net book amount IR BE 84,311 468,969 76,588 2,843 4,472 637,183
At 31 December 2012 R-ZB--%+-RA=+-H
Cost B 109,871 1,073,096 152,092 16,348 6,240 1,357,847
Accumulated amortisation 2t - (604,127) (75,704) (13,505) (1,768) (695,104)
Accumulated impairment ZitHE (25,560) - - - - (25,560)
Net book amount REPE 84,311 468,969 76,588 2,843 4472 637,183
Year ended 31 December 2013 #$E-_E-ZH1ZR

=Z+-ALEE
Opening net book amount BOEEEE 84,311 468,969 76,588 2,843 4,472 637,183
Additions by - 198,180 - 1,663 - 199,843
Disposal EE - - (600) = = (600)
Amortisation charge (Note 24) BEER (M) = (205,401) (30,134) 2129 (1,248) (238912
Closing net book amount HRIRERE 84311 461,748 45,854 2,317 3,224 597,514
At 31 December 2013 R-B-=%+ZA=1+-H
Cost A 109,871 1,211,276 151,602 18,011 6,240 1,557,090
Accumulated amortisation Exig- i - (809,528) (105,338) (15,634) (3,016) (934,016)
Accumulated impairment ZitHE (25,560) - - - - (25,560)
Net book amount FESE 84311 461,748 45,854 2,317 3,224 597,514
Amortisation charge of RMB33,511,000 (2012: RMB32,090,000) has ARE3351,000m (=2 —=F : AR32,090,00070) 2 %
been included in administrative expenses, and RMB205,401,000 (2012: HEBEREFATHERS - ARK205401000L(=Z2—=
RMB169,264,000) in research and development costs. F 0 AR¥169,264,00070) < B SEE B E 5 ATE RFEK

ARef e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

8 Intangible Assets — Group (continued) 8 HBEEE-%EH2)
Impairment tests for goodwill BB R E R
Goodwill acquired through business combinations has been primarily HeREBRHUREERAA([SREEANELENTE
allocated to the CGU of Kingdee Medical Software Technology Co., Ltd BRBARSELETET TRENR - HEMRE LT
(“Kingdee Medical”) for impairment testing. The carrying amount of RO

goodwill is as follows:

Opening Addition  Impairment Closing
k) i i X
2012 & 2013 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREFT AREFT
Kingdee Medical SRR 84,311 - - 84,311
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on value-in- ReERETNTRESBREFAERTE - FEFRF
use calculations. These calculations use pre-tax cash flow projections AR eRERA - KEEREHEN - F R KEE
based on financial budgets approved by management covering a seven- ERENAEHAATANERERRESEBEORRER
year period. Management determined projection period as seven years BRUARTESIEME - BBZTFHNRERERAMN
based on expected development trend of Kingdee Medical and industry THILA B A KBS REELHEE - ZERETERRS
experience. Cash flows beyond the seven-year period are extrapolated EHETLENCERERHEBORBTIERE - &5
using the estimated terminal growth rates stated below. The growth rate BENRSENETATEEERFEBTE D RN
does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the Enterprise fne
Management Software Business in which the CGU operates. The Kingdee
Medical CGU is a component of the operational segment of Enterprise
Management Software business.
The key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations for 2013 are as “E-CFREAEGRANEZERENT
follows:
2013 2012
Average EBITDA rate () FHERMERHAINER(a) 10% 20%
Average growth rate — within first 7 years TR R _F+F 24% 23%
Terminal growth rate after 7 years KERR R FR 3% 3%
Pre-tax discount rate TBTALR X 16% 15%
These assumptions have been used for the analysis of the CGU of HEBRRAUSME S RENTERSELET -
Kingdee Medical.
(@ EBITDA rate equals to earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and a) BT ESHEIMSERETEETE « TE R HFFER
amortization divided by total revenue. AR .
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Investments in Associates 9 HBERSE
2013
RMB’000
IN: S
At 1 January ®—A—H -
Interest in newly set-up associates () YIRS A RERQ) 1,333
Interest retained in partially disposed subsidiaries (b), (Note 32) DR EME N BURDEZR) © (FH5E32) 929
Share of loss in associates FEBERENBRNE (119)
At 31 December »+=B=+—-H 2,143

In the opinions of the directors, all associates are immaterial to the
Group. The share of loss and total comprehensive loss of these associates
is RMB119,000.

(@  Setout below are the newly set-up associates incorporated in the
PRC of the Group as at 31 December 2013 (Note 32).

Details of the newly set-up associates as at 31 December 2013
are as follows:

Name of entity

Shaoxing Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Daging Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Xinxiang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Nanyang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Yichang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Xiangyang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Ganzhou Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

Beijing Kingdee Yunchuang Software Technology Co.,Ltd.

(b)  Setout below are former subsidiaries of the Group incorporated in
the PRC, which were partially disposed of and held as associates
of the Group as at 31 December 2013 (Note 32).

Details of the associates as at 31 December 2013 are as follows:

Name of entity

Xuzhou Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.
Luoyang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd.

EREEEEKERA 2HBENRUEEYRELEAY
g2 BeEREBRNTREAARK119,0007T

@  WTRNREBE_E-ZF+ A=+ BRI
AREEHE AT -

BE-2=F+- A=+ BRRUBERAKRE

FAEFMT

% of ownership

interest

3 £4 11 %EHER
RESERHBRAF 19.9%
RESGERHBRAF 19.9%
R ERHBRAF 19.9%
HEeRHTARAR 19.9%
HESRHHERAT 19.9%
EHEERABRAF 19.9%
EMSGERHBRAF 19.9%
IR EGEERHRMERAT 19.9%

0  WTFIRBE_Z-Z$T_A=T-HRATA
A EARE RO REMEE AlE AR (FEE32) -

HE-Z—=5t_A=t—HEHIREBREAF

REFMERWT -
% of ownership
interest
LEEE %RHER
M EERHERAF 19.9%
BEeERHERAT 19.9%
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10 Investment Properties — Group 10 BENEHE-$£H
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT ARETT
At 1 January ®»—A—H 825,575 496,925
Addition R - 131,524
Transfer from land use rights (Note 6) fle L fF FREEE A (KT5E6) - 2,904
Transfer from building (Note 7) feammEsA(MED) - 133,264
Fair value gains AR EEEE 1,048 60,958
At 31 December ®+=R=+—H 826,623 825,575
The following amounts have been recognised in the income statements THFBECEARNEERNERE -
of the Group:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Rental income HERA 38,921 27,161
Direct operating expenses that generate rental income ~ E4ARSMALBREHEHEL
HELEER (176) 87)
38,745 27,074

As at 31 December 2013, the Group had no unprovided contractual
obligations for future repairs and maintenance (2012: Nil).

Assets carried at fair value are categorised by level of the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are
categorised into three levels within a fair value hierarchy, as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived

from prices)
Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs)

Level 2:

Level 3:

For the Group, only investment properties are carried at fair value
that has been derived from unobservable Level 3 inputs to valuation
techniques.

l 1 04 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

ZE-EZFTA=TH  ARERRREEREETE
REBNARER(ZT——F &) -

AR EBEFENEERRHBERMNBASNER &
UHAERABERRPREAD AT =EER :

F1E HREEREEEEZRTSHBRE(CKE
HE)

£ BRTSIBMEROREN  ZBEME
ENTEENEMBA - TRER(Bf
IER) R (ANRE B1)

FIE - BENABYFKRENBEETHEENE

INGIEDE S PN

HRNGEME - EARENKEROABETE  ZONE
EREHEERMETEENE=EHA



10
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Investment Properties — Group (continued) 10

The following table analyses the investment properties carried at fair
value.

Fair value hierarchy
Description it
Recurring fair value measurements BEURAREEFE
Investment properties: REAMEE
— Office units — PRC —PAE—rh

RALELE - KB
TRAEARBEARHRELRIE

Fair value measurements at
31 December 2013 using
Significant unobservable

inputs (Level 3)
—2-=£+”A=1+—H
ERAUTHANAREERE
BROFATHRRGA (E3E)

RMB’000
ARETIT

826,623

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out
of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in
circumstances that caused the transfer.

There were no transfers between Levels 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

FEENBRANERBENEHIBRRENAS - B2
RAEBEERZANEE -

FRE 2 3B 2 W EER o
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10

Investment Properties — Group (continued) 10 REMERE-RE =)
Fair value measurements using significant unobservable FMRAERFUEERANAABETE(EIE)
inputs (Level 3)
China
HE
RMB’000
AREFL
Opening balance s 825,575
Net gains from fair value adjustment DR EBEFAENFHE 1,048
Closing balance HRER 826,623
Total gains or losses for the year included in profit or loss for FREANBENFELTGIIEX -
assets held at the end of the year, under ‘Fair value gains on BREEFBRNRBEEHEAAERE
investment properties’ EElies | 1,048
Change in unrealised gains or losses for the year included in EFBERPERNEERERFIGN
profit or loss for assets held at the end of the year Bk E 1,048
Valuation processes of the Group REBHGER

The Group’s investment properties were valued at 31 December 2013
by independent professionally qualified valuers who hold a recognised
relevant professional qualification and have recent experience in the
locations and segments of the investment properties valued. For all
investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best
use.

The Group’s finance department includes a team that reviews the
valuations performed by the independent valuers for financial reporting
purposes. This team reports directly to the chief financial officer (CFO).
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held between the
CFO, the valuation team and valuers at least once every six months,
in line with the Group’s interim and annual reporting dates. As at 31
December 2013, the fair values of the properties have been determined
by Guangheng Xingyue Asset Appraisal Company Limited.

At each financial year end the finance department:

o Verifies all major inputs to the independent valuation report;

o Assesses property valuations movements when compared to the
prior year valuation report;

° Holds discussions with the independent valuer.

FEENRENEHENBUEXRENE-_T—=F1
A=1+—BfE  kEEHSEEERIERER - LA
HENRETFHENENBRFIRER - SIAERE
HEME  HEANERASRESSNRERR

AEEHMBEHRE @ SRR BRE BNEELRE
BRI EETTIRG « Ut/ MEBE R E I E (CFO)ER -
REAAEENTHNFEREBY - CFO - fHE/ERRE
ENRIEAEARE R SREEREMEEER - 1®
“E-ZFTRA=T—H WENENAREBEEREY
HBEENEBERARET -

ESEMHERER  BHHEE
o REUBUMERSHAEERBA

o HEMEAERELFEAERSLETHE

o BBUMEMETHR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Investment Properties — Group (continued)

Valuation techniques

For completed office units, the valuation was determined using direct
capitalisation method based on significant unobservable inputs. These

inputs include:

Future rental cash inflows

Capitalisation rates

Estimated vacancy rates

Annual total expenses

Based on the actual location, type and
quality of the properties and supported
by the terms of any existence lease,
other contracts and external evidence
such as current market rents for similar
properties;

Based on actual location, size and quality
of the properties and taking into account
market data at the valuation date.

Based on current and expected future
market conditions after expiry of any
current lease.

Including necessary annual expenses
to maintain functionality of the property
for its expected useful life, including
maintenance expenses, administrative
expenses, tax and other expenses.

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during the year.

10

RRMENE-KE2)

3=k 30

EERREROMEENBEREMOE  REATABRERA
B - LA

AFBEERENE REVEOERLH BENER
Y EMRFRENGER - R AR
MONBE R (PIINBUDEN RIS
SHIRME)PTSH

BAfEE RENENERLE  BENER
W B E RO THHE -

At EEX RECAREEENNHEK - ZAME
B AR IRTN ¢
FRBER BEREERNEEETERFHRNYD

RMLAER BREEER TR
B MEBEREM -

FRMBERIMLESE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

10 Investment Properties — Group (continued) 10

The investment properties of the Group are in similar risk
and nature. Information about fair value measurements
using significant unobservable input (Level 3)

Fair value at
31 December
2013  Valuation Unobservable
Description (RMB’000)  technique(s) inputs
—Zz-=f
+=-RA=+—-H
[REE
fHit (AE%TR) (HEREE FARR@HA
Office units — PRC 826,623  Direct capitalisation  Future rental cash inflows
WRE—HE method AREEBLTE
BRARNME

Capitalisation rate
BARLE

Estimated vacancy
rates
iR

Annual total expenses
FELER

l 1 08 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013

RALELE-KE 5

AEENEHREMEHENERERIIEM - €A
EXTABRBANDABETENEN(FIE)

Range of unobservable
inputs

AUERBANEE

81.5RMB-109.5RMB
per month per square meter
(95.5 RMB per month
per square meter)
BYHRGAARSS15
— ANRE1095(8F H %
FAARH%.5)

7%-8%

5%-8%

24%-25%

Relationship of
unobservable inputs
to fair value

AUERBA
HARREMRE

The higher the rental value,
the higher the fair value
BELE  DAEELS

The higher the capitalisation rate,
the lower the fair value
BAMEEYS  RAEEME

The higher the vacancy rate,
the lower the fair value
ZEXHE  DABEVE

The higher the annual total expenses,
the lower the fair value
FEABRNS  DABEUE



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Trade and Other Receivables — Group and Company 11 EREFRREMELR-KERLE

Group Company
5E 27
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBFL ARBTT ARETT
Trade receivables (a) JEU R () 199,437 234,045 - -
Less: allowance for impairment (b) B EUGREEE®) (83,632) (90,000) - -
Trade receivables — net JEUBR TR — 558 115,805 144,045 - -
Notes receivable JEWEE 21,563 12,556 - -
Advances to employees (c) mESREERE(0) 24,297 37,572 - -
Prepayments SEEN 40,983 47,062 - -
VAT recoverable liRE 7 I ER 36,718 41,633 - -
Other receivables H Uk 37,150 30,590 27,616 28,488
276,516 313,458 27,616 28,488
Add non-current portion: MIERER -
Entrusted loan (d) ZEET) 25,300 26,000 - -
302,316 339,458 27,616 28,488
The fair values of trade and other receivables approximate their carrying UERREMERGZ DA BERLEERAGE -
amounts.
The Group’s trade and other receivables are all denominated in RMB. A& BRUGRR R E M EUFIIUAAREEHE o
The credit quality of trade and other receivables that are neither past due HNEZ AR ERENENER  22BHREFHE
nor impaired are assessed by making reference to historical information HE - BE - REENEMIBENNELERIGHERRF
about counterparty default rates, reputation, liquidity and other financial REE
information.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

11 Trade and Other Receivables — Group and Company 11 EBRERREMEKS-SERAF 2

(continued)

(@  Sales are generally made without prescribed credit terms in the @ AREEHEARTHENERERTEHAS  EX
sales contracts but customers usually take 1 to 3 months to settle FRABE-E=ERAANINHE - AREH=EAN
the receivables. Trade receivables aged more than 3 months had FEENERFE Z R AR ELERE o EUCRRA IR
been considered for impairment. The ageing analysis of trade DT -

receivables is as follows:

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN: S AR¥EFT
0-90 days 0-90K 59,390 84,257
91-180 days 91-180K 22,845 37,145
181-360 days 181-360% 21,064 25,495
Over 360 days B18360K 96,138 87,148
199,437 234,045
All trade receivables were past due as at 31 December 2013 had BE-Z-=F1+-A=1+—0 AEEMBEIE
been considered for impairment. FTHE RS EHYEE BTN EERE
() Movement on the allowance for impairment of trade receivables is b  EUERREEZHIITOT
as follows:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
UN: & AR®EFT
At1 January R—B—H (90,000) (93,392)
Reversal/(allowance) for impairment — net REEEER(GHE) —FE
(Note 24) (PizE24) 1,027 (815)
Written off as uncollectible TEEER R ERERR 5,341 4,207
At 31 December ®+=R=+—H (83,632) (90,000)
The origination of allowance for impaired receivables and other SR MR TR A R R BB E ST AT
receivables has been included in administrative expenses. The BERT - RERCRREAMRKHIN  BRURRRE
other classes within the trade and other receivables balance do RN RROEMBRTEENREELE -
not contain any significant impaired assets.
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the ERERE  FERRNESEAREES REHE
carrying amount of each class of receivables mentioned above. WREREEE - AEBTFEEAEREROER

The Group does not hold any collateral as security. o °
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11 Trade and Other Receivables — Group and Company 11 BRESRREMEKSZ-SERLF 2

(continued)

(c)  The amounts advanced to employees were restricted for business © FEERENERSERRATELY  JIMAREE
purpose only, such as advance for selling expenses, such R ZERe % e  BEARERERKEE -
advances are interest free, unsecured and repayable on demand. RIZ-ZFAEERNESES THR ' ZHEIHB
During the year, the Group also advanced some cash to an FEER - EARAKEE - EEEFMEANT :
executive director restricted for business activities, the information
is as below.

Advance to director
EEHER
Maximum
At the outstanding
beginning of At the end of during
Name of key management the year the year the year Term Interest rate
WREEEARMSE MR HXREE FAREHHE REGH FilzE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT ARBTT
2013
—T-=F
Mr. Xu Shao Chun - - 214 Repayable on demand 0%
®"OF REKEER
2012
—ZT——F
Mr. Xu Shao Chun - - 321 Repayable on demand 0%
®"OF REKEER
(d  The entrusted loan as at 31 December 2013 represented the 0 BEZZ-Z=Ft+-B=t—H KEEZIEFA

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Group’s interests in a trust investment through a third party trust
company. The underlying assets of the trust are loans extended
to other companies. The entrusted loan has a maturity date
of 18 July 2015 with a fixed beneficial rate of 9% per annum,
subject to deduction of 0.55% management fee per annum. The
entrusted loan is measured at amortised cost. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying
amount of the investment. The entrusted loan is not past due or
impaired as at 31 December 2013. The fair value of the entrusted
loan approximates their carrying amount. The fair value hierarchy
of the entrusted loan is level 2. The interest accrued was due
in 12 months and included in other receivable. The principal of
RMB200,000 was received during 2013.

SEBBE-FERRAETNETER - ZET
EMNREHSABERRNETEN - ZETER
IMAA—S—AFtA+N\B BEFhixs
9% FEEBR055% o ZE T R ENGRIERE K
KitE - RIER - FERRNG=EBREERZE
AERMEAEBE  ZZTERTEOLIRE - %
ZREFNDABERARAEERR - ZTERN
DABENEBREFEE - AEEIFEE 28R
WHERRE M ENGR A o B - g AR200,0007T
ER-E—ZFYE o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

12 Inventories — Group 12 HFE-%H
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFIT
Raw materials JRAT#} 660 596
Finished goods B 3,276 3,340
3,936 3,936
The cost of inventories recognised as expense and included in FERATFERBBRUFIANEENA NS BEIA
cost of sales amounted to approximately RMB79,321,000 (2012: R#79,321,0007( ZZ— =4 + AR%133,309,0007T) (FizE
RMB133,309,000) (Note 24). 24) o
13 Implementation Contracts — Group 13 ERSR-%E
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Contract costs incurred BEEZARKA 175,351 235,743
Contract profit recognised BERRARFE 508,529 469,962
Less: progress billings o BHERE (460,125) (453,019
Net balance sheet position for ongoing contracts ARIAR-FREH 223,755 252,686
Represented by: WRE:
Due from customers on implementation contracts EWNEFEHARN 296,197 326,328
Due to customers on implementation contracts ERNEFEHARN (72,442) (73,642)
223,755 252,686

14 Cash and Cash Equivalents — Group and Company 14 BeRBEEERV-SERLF

Group Company
%m N

2013 2012 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AE®TR ARETT AE®TT ARETT

Cash at bank and in hand (a) RITREFH 20 1,003,366 918,093 18,245 17,557
Less: Short-term bank deposits (b) B RERRTTE D) (140,500) (14,500) - -
Pledged bank deposits () ERIRITEE) (4,420) (5,591) - -
Cash and cash equivalents ReMReEEY 858,446 898,002 18,245 17,557

l 112 KINGDEE INTERNATIONAL SOFTWARE GROUP COMPANY LIMITED ANNUAL REPORT 2013



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

14 Cash and Cash Equivalents — Group and Company 14 HR&RESEEW-SERLF (2

(continued)
(@  Cash at bank and in hand denominated in the following @) BOKEFRENUTERE:
currencies:
Group Company
%E N
2013 2012 2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TR ARETT AR®TT ARETT
Renminbi AR 941,550 857,243 2 -
Hong Kong Dollars R 60,316 59,632 17,775 17,308
US Dollars Ev 536 242 468 249
Singapore Dollars T 435 660 - -
New Taiwan Dollars e 29 316 - -
1,003,366 918,093 18,245 17,557
(b)  The effective interest rate on short-term bank deposits was 3.26% b RERTERNERMEARINER(ZF-—_F:
(2012: 3.08%). 3.08%) °
()  The bank deposits were pledged to banks as required in certain 0 BORBESRIEER - ERESESNBELR
project tendering. Such pledged deposits will be released upon BREBR IR o

the closure of the processes

15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries — Company 15 HFAFRMREIRER-LFH

Company
47

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FR AREFT
Cost %N 422,064 393,260
Allowance for impairment REER (5,300) (5,300)
416,764 387,960
Loans to subsidiaries (b) T RRIKET(D) 15,000 15,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries (b) WA R FRIA(D) 81,838 84,124
Capital contribution relating to share-base payment BN BEROS N EBHEREA 76,418 60,053
590,020 547,137

SRERRNEEERAT —T=FFR 113 l



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries - Company 15 HFAFMBRBERER-2F %)

(continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @) MTARZE—=F+tZA=t—HFXEFRA 5
2013, all of which are limited liability companies: REREMEAF :
Place of Registeredand  %lnterest
Name incorporation Principal activities paid-up capital held
£ it TEEHR HEMRBERF *BHHHER
Directly held
EERE:
Kingdee Software (China) Co., Ltd. PRC Sales of software products, development, RMB280,000,000 100%
SEREM(RE)BRLA R manufacturing and selling of software A R #280,000,0007T
and hardware products and provision of
software-related services
PHERFE  HE  ZEREER
HREHER - URIRHE AR
HRH
Kingdee International Software Group (H.K.) Hong Kong Sales of software products USD1,000,000 100%
Co, Ltd. (*Kingdee HK") e YHEREE %711,000,0007T
SREBERE(EB)ERAR(2EEE])
Caterton Group Limited BvI Investment holding USD1,000,000 80.2%
RBgRES  RERR TAEWEEE F71.1,000,0007T
Kingdee International Software Group (Singapore) Singapore Sales of software products S6D100,000 100%
Pte Ltd. Hnsk YHERHE FA08% 7100,0007C
SREBEEECTNE)BRAF
Crotona Assets Limited BVI Marketing and promotion of software USD50,000 100%
EBHAHE products 37T50,000
YHENTSHE
Indirectly held
HEHE
Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware Co., Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB30,000,000 66.25%
Fm e EFREBRAR H YHERHE AR 30,000,000
Shanghai Kingdee Software Co., Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 100%
LEsBERHBRAR H YHERHE AR #20,000,0007C
Beijing Kingdee System Technology Co., Ltd. PRC Sales of software products USD540,000 100%
TReGZRBEMER AR H YHERHE Z7T540,0007C
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15

Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries — Company 15

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

(continued)

@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @
2013, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued)

Name
£

Indirectly held (continued)
MERs: (4)

Shenzhen Kingdee E-commerce Service Co., Ltd.
(formerly known as Shenzhen Kingdee Mobile
Internet Technology Co., Ltd) (Note (i)

AmeBREEFEBREERAR(ZA
AR M BB EHRITERAR))

Xiamen Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.
EFEERHERLH

Shanghai Kingdee Software Technology Co., Ltd.
e GERHRBEAR AT

Sichuan Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.
m)l| & E&HHBRAR

Chongging Kingdeg Software Co., Ltd.
BEEQREMABRAF

Beijing Kingdee Middleware Software System Co., Ltd.

ERERTEAR G ZRERAT]

Kingdee E-commerce Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.

EREFEBRMORINERAF]

Jiangsu Kingdee Software Co., Ltd.
PR E YN

Shanghai Kingdee Middleware Software Systems
Co., Ltd.
HEeGRREERERGERAR

Beijing Kingdee Government and Public Software
Co., Ltd. (Note (i)
bR BEEREER DA

Place of
incorporation
it

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

PRC
i

HFLFHRBRER -7 (2)

REREELRA : (£)

Principal activities
TEER

Provision of online financial services

ERMTHIR

Sales of software products
BHEREE

Sales of software products
PHERHE

Sales of software products
BHEREE

Sales of software products
PHERHE

Sales of software products
BHEREE

Provision of online financial services
TR 5 RIS

Sales of software products
YHEREE

Sales of software products

BHERHE

Sales of software products
YHERHEE

SHERBHENERAR T =55% 115 l

Registered and
paid-up capital
HEfREERE

RMB12,000,000
A #12,000,0007C

RMB300,000
AR H300,0007

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

RMB10,000,000
A #10,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
A #10,000,0007C

RMB2,000,000
AR #2,000,0007T

RMB30,000,000
AR #30,000,0007

RMB20,000,000
A #20,000,0007C

RMB2,000,000

AR #2,000,0007C

RMB50,500,000
AR #50,500,0007C

UTRRZZE—=F+-A=T—HEEFRA 9

%Interest
held
%IFFRER

N/A

Nam

100%

90%

100%

100%

66.25%

80.2%

100%

66.25%

N/A
NER



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries - Company 15 HFAFMBRBERER-2F %)

(continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @) WTARZE—=F+ZA=t—HFXEFRA 5
2013, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued) BERETAR : (&)
Place of Registered and ~ %lnterest
Name incorporation Principal activities paid-up capital held
£ et TEEB EMRBERF *%FAER
Indirectly held (continued)
MgEwE : (4)
Guangdong Kingdee Software Technology Co.,Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB30,000,000 100%
EReHRHREERLR HE YU ERHE AE#30,000,0007C
Beijing Kingdee Management Software Co.,Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 100%
tREBERRHERATF HE PHERHE AR 20,000,000
Zhuzhou Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 100%
N REHERAR HE YHERHEE AE10,000,0007C
Zhongshan Kingdee Business and Management PRC Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 100%
Consulting Co. Ltd. H YHERHEE AR 10,000,000
RLmeRAEERZAHBRAR
Shanxi Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 100%
RE QRS BRAFE H BHERHEE AR 20,000,007
Tianjin Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 100%
RETERRHERAR H PHERHE AR 20,000,000
Zhuhai Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 100%
HETEREMARAR H YHERHE AR 10,000,007
Taiwan Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd Taiwan Sales of software products TWD10,000,000 100%
BESREMERAF aE YHERHE £%10,000,0007C
Yiyang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd PRC Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 100%
HERREABRAF H BHERHEE AR 10,000,007
Ningho Kingdee E-commerce Service Co., Ltd (Note ()~ PRC Provision of online financial services RMB20,000,000 N/A
EReREFEBRBERRA) H ERRBERG AR 20,000,000 TiEHA
Shanghai Kingdeg Qixiao Technology Co.,Ltd PRC Sales of software products RMB3,000,000 81.48%
FEeRENEREMERD A H YHERHE AEH3,000,0007
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries - Company 15 HFAFMHBERER- 282

(continued)
(@  The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December @ HUTARZE-—Z=F+-A=+-HEB2TRA Y
2013, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued) BEREARAR : ()
Place of Registered and ~ %lnterest
Name incorporation Principal activities paid-up capital held
£ it TERE HEMR#ERF %A
Indirectly held (continued)
MEwE : (2)
Shanghai Kingdee Software Technique Co., Ltd. PRC Sales of software products RMB20,000,000 100%
HESEHERMBRAR H YHERHEE AR #20,000,0007C
Dongguan Kingdee Management Software Co.,Ltd PRC Sales of software products RMB10,000,000 100%
SEmeRERRGERLR H YHERHEE AE#10,000,0007C
Shanghai Kingdee Medical Software Co.,Ltd PRC Sales of software products RMB30,000,000 100%
e RERGEEHARAT H YHERHEE AR #30,000,0007C
Kingdee Medical Software Technology Co.,Ltd PRC Sales of software products RMB57,500,000 81.48%
SRERRMHRBEERLA H YHERHEE AR #57,500,0007C
Zhejiang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd PRC Sales of software products RMB35,000,000 100%
WML RRGBRAT H YHERHEE AR #35,000,0007C
Note (i): Bizx() -
Shenzhen Kingdee E-commerce Service Co., Ltd. (“E-commerce Service”) was SER-ZTNFHL T -HELEBR MeBREEFEK
established by the Group in 2009 for providing value-added telecommunication PRI AR AR (B EF i iR ) A BE iR B R A r
services in the PRC. Beijing Kingdee Government and Public Software Co., BIBERS - SER-_T—TFRU T —HELERILLATEE
Ltd. (“Kingdee GPS”) was established by the Group in 2010 for providing BB AR A R (B EF IS ) AR ER A R R EE
government management software service in the PRC. The Group does not R - SEHETEBREREFRBUERETEMEE - &
have legal ownership in equity of E-commerce Service and Kingdee GPS. The BEKARE MR ELERBRERRTIE TS %%
Group has entered into several contractual arrangements with E-commerce BT AHE A G EER -

Service and Kingdee GPS and their equity holders since their incorporation.
These contractual arrangements are irrevocable and enable the Group to:

. exercise effective financial and operational control over these two . IS S B R AT IR SO T R A TR
operating companies;

. exercise more than one half of the equity holders’ voting rights of . HMRELERATEBBTEA LORRRE
these two operating companies;

. receive substantially all of the economic interest returns generated . HMREEERETERIHUMRGHELEENR
by these two operating companies in consideration for the business R
support;

. obtain an irrevocable and exclusive right to purchase the entire equity . HMRELEBNREAE T BENBRBERE

interest in these two operating companies from the equity holders;
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R& B #5 s R Mt =

15 Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries — Company
(continued)

(@)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December
2013, all of which are limited liability companies: (continued)

Note (i): (continued)

. obtain a pledge over the entire equity interest of these two operating
companies from their equity holders as collateral security for all the
payments due to the Group and to secure performance of obligations
under the contractual arrangements.

In 2010, Ningbo Kingdee E-commerce Service Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo
E-commerce”) was subsequently established by E-commerce
Service as a wholly-owned subsidiary.

The Group does not have any equity interest in E-commerce
Service, Kingdee GPS and Ningbo E-commerce. However,
as a result of the Contractual arrangements, the Group has
rights to variable returns from its involvement with these three
operating companies and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over them and is considered to control them.
Consequently, the Company regards E-commerce Service,
Kingdee GPS and Ningbo E-commerce as indirect subsidiaries
under IFRSs. The Group has included the financial position and
results of these three operating companies in the consolidated
financial statements.

Nevertheless, the contractual arrangements may not be as
effective as direct legal ownership in providing the Group
with direct control over these three operating companies and
uncertainties presented by the PRC legal system could impede
the Group’s beneficiary rights of the results, assets and liabilities
of these three operating companies. The Group believes that
these contractual arrangements are in compliance with relevant
PRC laws and regulations and are legally binding and enforceable.
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15 HFLFAHRARER-LF @)

(@)

UTFRRZZ—=F+-A=+—HEEFRA
REREARA : (£)

PHEE() : ()

. RERREGEZRRELERNRRIFSHATRNE
EFR R -

FREGETHHRBERAD BRI FRETH
BOR-F-TEMETERRBA LA BLLE
FRR

TEEYRHETABRY  ETHELERE LT
BITmHE Al REGROOT  AREZEY
W=RELERNUEER BFENEREHDH
WENFEELERIMEREN - Hit - EERE
BREENTASERETHERY  EFTRBELE
KGR AFERENTAR - FEEAHETBHRR
A =FELEROMBEARREERR -

FR AR I WAL BB EE A EERER
E-FELERAN  THERBANTEEMER 8
PETSEHZ-RELEROLENRR BE &
BN EE - FEER X IBEERTETERRE
BERLABERM -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

Investments in and Loans to Subsidiaries — Company
(continued)

()  These balances are unsecured interest-free investment in nature
and not expected to be repayable.

(c)  The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as
at 31 December 2013 are RMB4,466,000 and are not material to
the Group.

Share Capital and Premium - Group and Company

15 HELFHRARER-LF @)

b HBELSEER  REMREN YTREEE -

O BIEEST-SHE+-AS—RREHESAT
ARB4660007T - HIAHIERRHEET = 6T
EP

16 BRENEFRR-KERLFR

Number of Ordinary Share
Group Issued shares shares premium Total
£ 2.3 | BAREE RiriR{E &t
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(Fi) ARETFT ARETFT ARETT
At 1 January 2012 —E-"E—R—H# 2,513,752 63,941 405,730 469,671
Employee share option scheme B TR Bt &)
— Value of services provided (Note 26) — 12t BRIEHIE(E (F13126) - - 28,787 28,787
— Exercise of share options —BIIRMATER 6,237 136 4,013 4,149
Repurchase and cancellation of Byl
own shares (a) (850) (18) (1,302) (1,320)
Acquisition of treasury shares (b) B8 \ETF A% () - - (1,768) (1,768)
At 31 December 2012 Z2-“§+ZRA=+—RA#ER 2,519,139 64,059 435,460 499,519
Employee share option scheme B SR 2
— Value of services provided (Note 26) — 12t IR#S & E(E (FiE26) - - 28,804 28,804
— Exercise of share options —BIRMEER 18,967 376 15,989 16,365
At 31 December 2013 Z2-Z¥+ZA=+—RER 2,538,106 64,435 480,253 544,688
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16 Share Capital and Premium - Group and Company

16 BFEHNERFRRE-KERLF S

(continued)
Number of Ordinary Share
Company Issued shares shares premium Total
NG BFHE BiAIRmEE RiigE &t
(thousands) RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
(FH) AREFT ARET AREFT
At 1 January 2012 —E-_§—A—-A#&% 2,513,752 63,941 405,730 469,671
Employee share option scheme {E SR 2
— Value of services provided (Note 26) — 12t IRIEHE(E (F113126) - - 28,787 28,787
— Exercise of share options —BIRIDFER 6,237 136 4,013 4,149
Repurchase and cancellation of EIEE W R D)
own shares (@) (850) (18) (1,302) (1,320)
At 31 December 2012 ZE-"F+-HB=1+—H&RK 2,519,139 64,059 437,228 501,287
Employee share option scheme 1B B R E
— Value of services provided (Note 26) — (& B 12t HEE (KizT6) - - 28,804 28,804
— Exercise of share options —BIROIER 18,967 376 15,989 16,365
At 31 December 2013 ZE-ZH¥+-HA=1+—HER 2,538,106 64,435 482,021 546,456

The total authorised number of ordinary shares as at 31 December 2013
is 4,000,000,000 (2012: 4,000,000,000) shares with a par value of
HKDO0.025 (2012: HKD0.025) per share. All issued shares are fully paid.

(@ During 2013, no shares (2012: 850,000 shares) were
repurchased by the Company on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

(b)  In 2012, 1,500,000 shares were purchased by a subsidiary on
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange through an agent at an aggregate
consideration of approximately RMB1,768,000 during 2012
which were recorded as treasury shares. These shares were
subsequently sold in January 2014.
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Other Reserves and Retained Earnings — Group and 17
Company

HfttiERGERH -KERLF

(@) Other reserves (@ EHftif#E
Group £8
Statutory
surplus Capital
Merger Capital reserve Revaluation redemption
reserve reserve fund reserve reserve Total
EERES RinEE
afiE #FFOH LEe  EERE 11 =113
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETRT
Note (i) Note (i Note (i)
() B P3G
Balance at 1 January 2012 A_E—-_F—F—H&R 6,570 247,382 138,762 42708 601 436,023
Fair value surplus of investment properties  #% & 14 st A £ BE S
(Note 7) (M5E7) - - - 97,503 - 97,503
Deferred tax relating to investment ERREURHEETRET
properties revaluation reserve (Note 20)  BR/ER:(FE20) - - - (9,750) - (9,750)
Fair value surplus of available-for-sale AHHESREEAR
financial assets BEkE - - - 1,015 - 1,015
Deferred tax relating to available-for-sale BRI HESREEEE
financial assets revaluation reserve EREFTEH(FI5E20)
(Note 20) - - - (102) - (102)
Recycle fair value surplus of available-for- R & @ el ftH &4 5
sale financial assets upon disposal BEN BEKE - - - (2,028) - (2,028)
Recycle deferred tax relating to available- REMEDEGIELE
for-sale financial assets revaluation SREEEERERSEH
reserve upon disposal (Note 20) (Ff+20) - - - 203 - 203
Transaction with non-controlling Interest (¢) E2ZEHE I 1535 5 (¢) - (6,8%4) - - - (6,894)
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) EIERD (F3E16) - - - - 18 18
Capitalisation of retained earnings FERid g - 13,000 - - - 13,000
Balance at 31 December 2012 and R-=-"%+ZAH
1 January 2013 Z+—-ARRZS-Z%
—P—B#&e 6,570 253,488 138,762 129,549 619 528,988
Balance at 31 December 2013 R-E-=%+ZH
=+—H&e 6,570 253,488 138,762 129,549 619 528,988
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17 Other Reserves and Retained Earnings — Group and 17 Et#BRESEH -SEARLF 2
Company (continued)

(@) Other reserves (continued) (a EHtuEEE)
Company G|
Capital
Redemption
Reserve
e 73 [0 il i
RMB’000
AREFT

Balance at 1 January 2012 —E——F+-A=+—H#&R 601

Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) B1n I8 (FiEE16) 18

Balance at 31 December 2012 and 31 December 2013 —E——%#+-A=+—-H%

ZZ2-ZF+ZRA=+—R#ER 619

()  The merger reserve represents the difference between the ) ANRBENBARRAARMEEANER
carrying amounts of the capital of the subsidiaries at the SREANERIEETHROEENZE -
date on which they were acquired by the Company and
the nominal amounts of the Company’s shares issued as
consideration for the acquisitions.

(i) The capital reserve arose mainly from the reinvestment of i)  BEAREFEEGHERAFARNRIER
dividends into the PRC subsidiaries and capitalisation of o
reserves of certain subsidiaries.

(i)  The Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC are required i)  AREMFERBAREKEFBEEERR
to follow the laws and regulations of the PRC and their ERBEENAREREA - HEPENBAR
articles of association. These subsidiaries are required TAREFEAFPRIT D0 AREE
to allocate at least 10% of their net profits to the reserve T BEERREESHERSENEZMELRN
fund until the balance of such fund has reached 50% of 50% c BEESETARE RARERGHE
their registered capital. The reserve fund can only be used, B RIEmRE Rt B EIIEMER -

upon approval by the shareholders’ meeting or similar
authorities, to offset accumulated losses or increase
capital.
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17 Other Reserves and Retained Earnings — Group and 17 Et#GRES2H -SEARLFE 2
Gompany (continued)
(b) Retained earnings ) HREEA
Group Company
%E NG|
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTL
At 1 January 2012 A _E—-_§—F—H 703,600 95,167
Loss for the year (Note 29) FEBHE(HIFE29) (140,246) (5,049)
Repurchase of own shares (Note 16) A 2188 (Bi5E16) (18) (18)
Capitalisation of retained earnings (Note a(ii)) AR AR (BfTEa (i) (13,000) -
At 31 December 2012 R-E--%+-A=+-—H 550,336 90,100
At 1 January 2013 R-ZE-=%—H—H 550,336 90,100
Profit/(loss) for the year (Note 29) FEFE,/(B8)(H7529) 126,400 (2,213)
At 31 December 2013 R-Z2-=%+-HB=+—H 676,736 87,887

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

18 Share-Based Payment — Group

(@)

Share option schemes

As at 31 December 2013, the Company has two share option
schemes with outstanding granted options, namely, the 2002
Option Scheme (adopted on 24 April 2002) and the 2005
Option Scheme (adopted on 11 July 2005), under which the
directors may, at their discretion, grant options to any qualifying
participants to subscribe for shares in the Company, subject to
the terms and conditions stipulated therein. No further options
could be granted under the 2002 Option Scheme as it had been
terminated by the Group.

In respect of 2005 Option Scheme, the exercise price of the share
options is determinable by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the shares of the Company
as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock Exchange on
the date of grant, which must be a trading day; (i) the average
closing price of the shares of the Company as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and (jii) the nominal
value of the shares of the Company. The validity period of 2002
and 2005 Option Schemes are both ten years from the grant
date.

18

LI RERNHZARS - %KH

(@)

BT

BE-_ZT-—=-61+-A=1—8 ARFRCRMAME
BRENE - DRAZST G LREREERIET
(AN BT EMA+NA) AR _EBRE
DHERZBRETE (AR _SZAF+A+—
B) Bt EFUHERTNEERSEERDE
i - URBADARD - WAZRRZEEIRNE
AR - AR NERIE-SE - FLMAEMRANE
AT BB R LT A RE AR o

R-FTRFARERRBRE S THEERES
SETEMERATRSE © (REBREES A (Y
BAREXR)EBZMERARERMINARRN
Wi (WEBERDBREE B LA R RS %A £
R RARERAIOAD BRI FIPWRTE + K
ARRARMEE  —ET_FE_TTRFAHER
BRRRETENEENATENBRER L AME&0
FHRORE—R -
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18 Share-Based Payment — Group (continued) 18 LDEMAERHIAXSH-KE2)
(a) Share option schemes (continued) (a) BREEE)
(i)  Movements in share options ) BRESH
Movements in the number of shares under the options WARTTERREIRES B REA B INET91T
outstanding and their related weighted average exercise BENEFHNT
prices are as follows:
s Es
2002 Option Scheme 2005 Option Scheme
20028 €% 2005R R
Total
No. of No. of No. of
Average shares Average shares shares
exercise under exercise under under
price  the options price  the options  the options
SEFY BEET SETFY  BERET BERET
fHER KRB TR BBE RERBESH
HKD thousands HKD thousands thousands
(1) (F&t) (B%) (F&) (F&h)
At 1 January 2012 R-E-"%—H—-H 0.61 4172 1.66 252,135 256,307
Granted BERE - - 1.40 56,570 56,570
Exercised B 045 (679) 0.86 (5,558) (6,237)
Lapsed BAM 0.55 (1,012 2.90 (32,238) (33,250)
At 31 December 2012 R-Z-"%+ZA8
=+-H 0.61 2,481 1.16 270,909 273,390
Currently exercisable as at R-=--%+Z-A8
31 December 2012 =t+—BATE 0.51 2,481 1.43 106,310 108,791
At 1 January 2013 R-Z2-Z%—A—H 0.61 2,481 1.16 270,909 273,390
Granted BERE - - 1.34 46,400 46,400
Exercised [REBid 0.50 (1,528) 1.14 (17,438) (18,966)
Lapsed B 043 (154) 2.35 (6,426) (6,580)
At 31 December 2013 RZE-=%+ZA
=t+—H 0.54 799 141 293,445 294,244
Currently exercisable as at RZE-=%+ZA
31 December 2013 =+—AWfTE 0.54 799 1.42 141,997 142,796
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18 Share-Based Payment — Group (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

(@)

(i)

(ii)

Movements in share options (continuea)

During the year ended 31 December 2013, options over
5,200,000 (2012: 2,300,000) shares were granted to
directors of the Company.

In 2012, options over 2,500,000 shares were granted to
a related party, which is a company wholly owned by Mr.
Xu Shaochun, the chairman and executive director of the
Company, in exchange for the director’s service. In 2013,
there is no such share option granted.

As a result of the options exercised during the year ended
31 December 2013, 18,967,000 ordinary shares (2012:
6,237,000 ordinary shares) were issued by the Company.
The weighted average price of the shares at the time these
options were exercised was HKD1.09 per share (2012:
HKDO0.82 per share).

Outstanding share options

Details of the expiry dates, exercise prices and the
respective number of shares under the options which
remained outstanding as at 31 December 2013 and 31
December 2012 are as follows:

18 LIBORSERNEARS KB 2)
(a BREEE)
iy BRESEE)
BUE-T-Z6+-A=+-0 £AR7E
EJER5,200,00017 R IE (R —T——F% :
2,300,000{7 BB ASAE ) -

P-4+ ££2,500,00017 B AR rm BARE A
AR TRKE  ZEBLRARAEERIR
BOBREERE  ERESNRBEM - 1=
T=F REBLBBRENRT -

RIZZB—=FE » T{ENBRESEAREE
718,967, 0008% @A (=T —=FF : 17{F K
SR AR BN A ) 3£ 776,237,000 0% L @AY ) ©
RSB RRERN METIRE SRS
109L(ZE—=FF : FRB%082T) °

(i)  RITHEHRE
R-E—=F+-fF=+—-BR-Z——#
+T-A=Z1+—B ' ARTEOBERENDIH
A {TEEREEMBEFABOT

Number of shares under options

MRRRHE TRORREY
Range of
exercise price
after the bonus
issue of the shares 2013 2012
iR &
Expiry date within BHA ShiTHEREE —z-=f —T-f
HKD per share (thousands) (thousands)
(A%) (&) (F&h)
2013 “E—=F 0.35-0.51 - 787
2014 —E-NF 0.51-0.66 799 1,694
2016 “E—REF 0.65-0.66 84,598 87,078
2017 —E—+tF 0.94-1.81 11,414 14,208
2018 —E-N\F 0.95-1.75 28,500 34,526
2019 —E-hEF 1.156-1.87 74,403 83,752
2020 “E-TF 3.11-4.25 27,190 28,735
2021 —E-—F 3.75-4.28 20,940 22,610
2023 —E-=fF 1.31-1.34 46,400 -
294,244 273,390
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18 Share-Based Payment — Group (continued)
Share option schemes (continued)

(a)

(iii)

Fair value of options

The weighted average fair value of options granted during
the year determined using the Binomial valuation model
was HKD0.52 (2012: HKD0.49) per share under the
option. The significant inputs into the model were weighted
average share price of HKD1.34 (2012: HKD1.40) at
the grant date, the exercise price shown above, volatility
0f 53% (2012: 53%), expected dividend paid out of
HKD0.078 per share (2012: HKD0.060), an expected
option life of 10 years (2012: 7 years) and an annual risk-
free interest rate of 0.15% (2012: 0.13%). The volatility
measured at the standard deviation of expected share
price returns is based on statistical analysis of daily share
prices over the period from the end of the locking period to
the grant date of share options.

The share options granted on 22 March 2013 are only
one set. In the set, 43,000,000 shares were divided into
4 tranches on an equal basis. The first tranche can be
exercised after one year from the grant date, and the three
remaining tranches can be exercised respectively over the
following three years.

The share options granted on 2 April 2013 are only one
set. In the set, 3,400,000 shares were divided into 4
tranches on an equal basis. The first tranche can be
exercised after one year from the grant date, and the three
remaining tranches can be exercised respectively over the
following three years.
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19 Borrowings — Group 19 ER-%H

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFT

Non-current JERE
Long-term bank borrowings, unsecured REFITER - BEAF 677,985 888,500
Medium-term Notes (a) FHIEE @) 477,000 475,141
1,154,985 1,363,641

Current wE

Current portion of long-term borrowings, unsecured RESRITEFR PRS0 - EER 420,215 227,000
1,575,200 1,590,641

At 31 December 2013, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as

TR A=t+-H - AREEFNERPOT

follows:
Bank borrowings
MITHER
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR AREFT
Within 1 year 1R 420,215 227,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 343,420 364,833
Between 2 and 5 years 2EHF 811,565 998,808
1,575,200 1,590,641

The Group’s bank borrowings bear average interest rate of 6.86% (2012:
7.09% annually) per annum and are fully repayable upon maturity.

Expect the Medium-term Notes mentioned in Note(a), borrowings are at
floating rates and the exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest-rate
changes and the contractual repricing dates at the balance sheet dates
are within 1 year (2012: within 1 year).

The fair value of the non-current borrowings as of 31 December 2013
is RMB1,076,449,000 (2012: RMB1,377,258,000), which is based on
cash flows discounted using a rate based on the borrowing rate 6.32%
(2012: 6.49%) and is within level 2 of the fair value hierarchy.

The fair value of the current borrowings equals their carrying amount,
as the impact of discounting using a current borrowing rate is not
significant.

AEENRTEFNERTIERFRER68%(—F—
F:709%)  HRRHEFEEIHARE

i EafTiR R HER SN REER  AEERNER
REZHFE  EHXREHLANENTERHITAENR
BAE—FURN(ZE—ZF : —FNRA) o

BEZZ—=F+-A=+—HFERDEFNLAEBES
AR #1,076,449,000 ;L (ZZF—=F + ARH1,377,258,000
) ERAE—BAABENE  RERESREUETA
E6.32%( =T —ZF : 6.49%)MEATE ©

HRABEENERFRNZESIA  RBEFROEDERL
RAEERL -
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19 Borrowings — Group (continued) 19 ER-%£H2)
(@  Kingdee China, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company @) ARFZZEMBTLRSRFEAZT——FLA
completed the issuance of the first tranche of the Medium-term TAARPEAREMBE KBTS —HPHEE -
Notes in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) on 16 July F-HTBRERSEAARKLSET - BT FEFE
2012. The first tranche of the Medium-term Notes was issued 6.0% HIRA=F - #NE—HMPHEEMEECE
in the amount of RMBO.48 billion, at the fixed interest rate of SHEFERRAR LIRS REHEEETIENELS
6.0% per annum, and with a term of three years. The proceeds T RREARIEEESHEN o
raised from the issuance of the first tranche of the Medium-term
Notes would be used to meet the needs of part of the Group’s
construction-in-progress project and to provide working capital
for the Group.
The Group’s borrowings are all denominated in RMB. AEBNER2ERAREE -
20 Deferred Income Tax — Group 20 REMRSBR-$FE
The analysis of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities is as EXFEHEAEMELHBREMTIT
follows:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT AREFT
Deferred tax assets: BEFTEHERE
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after —BB12(E AR KR EERIEEE
more than 12 months 32,894 43,583
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered within —ENREARKEMELERIEEE
12 months 4,614 6,417
37,508 50,000
Deferred tax liabilities: ERmEHERE :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after —BE1EARKEMEETIEGE
more than 12 months (101,867) (108,372)
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered within —TEREARKEMELERIEEE
12 months (1,663) (3,539
(103,530) (111,911)
Deferred tax liabilities EEAMEHAR (66,022) (61,911)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

20 Deferred Income Tax — Group (continued) 20 EERFR-%E2)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year are as EEFEHEFEHEIIMT
follows:
Credited/ Credited/
(Charged) to Credited/ (Charged) to
the income  (Charged) to At theincome At
At1 January statement Reserves 31 December statement 31 December
2012 (Note 28) (Note 17) 2012 (Note 28) 2013
EREX HEAH R-Z--f EHRg% N-T-=%
RZZB-2& AK/(MR) AR/ (k) +ZA AR/(fk) +=R
—-B-H (Mik2s) (M&x17) =+-H (Mt8) =+-H
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARETT  ARETR ARBTT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Deferred tax assets BEMEHAE
~Provision for payroll ~-TE%HE - 3830 - 3,830 (3,830) -
— Allowance for bad and doubiful debts -RERER 10,668 (1,418) - 9,200 (859) 8,391
- Deferred income —ERHA 11,061 (11,061) - - - -
— Amortisation of computer software —-EE B 2711 2,057 - 4,834 1,215 6,049
— Accumulated loss recovered within five years ~ — RERAEEK REHEE - 32,086 - 32,086 (9,018 23,068
24,506 25,494 - 50,000 (1249 37,508
Deferred tax liabiities BEAMEHER
— Deferred development costs —EERERA (38,620) (8,276) - (46,89) 721 (46,175)
— Fair value surplus of intangible assets ~ERARLE 1113 265 177 (671) 187 (484)
— Fair value gains on investment properties - REMEMELN S BELE (32,752) (7,502) (9,750) (50,004) (983) (50,987)
—Recycle fair value surplus of avallable-for-sale  — A HELBBERL BED
financial assets upon disposal (101) - 101 - - -
~ VAT refund —BERER - (14,340 - (14,340) 8456 (5,884)
(72,580) (29,853) (9,472 (111,911) 8,381 (103,530)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carry-forwards to the
extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through the future
taxable profits is probable. Due to the fact that the directors are not
certain of whether future taxable profit would be available, the Group did
not recognise deferred tax assets RMB107,452,000 (2012: RMB103,
857,000) in respect of tax losses amounting to RMB495,300,000 (2012:
RMB455,828,000) that can be carried forward to offset against future
taxable income, all of which will expire in 2014 to 2018 respectively.

As stated in Note 4.1(g), deferred income tax liabilities of
RMB51,577,000 (2012: RMB39,778,000) had not been recognised for
the withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted earnings of
RMB515,770,000 (2012;: RMB397,780,000) of certain subsidiaries in
PRC.

& TF 1 B A AT ER A LA B LA AT BRI M) & RS A0 7]
BNBERBOMNE - EZNRRUAETADER - b
BERDECHEREE - ARAFEEEBELHTR
THELANMRZFEALE  AEEWLEREITHENKLEE
AR 49530000070 ( =T ——F + AR#455,828,0007T) #
ERLFTSHEREARKEI07452000( —2——F : AR
103,857,0007T) * BABIR-ZB—MEE T~ \FLH -

METE4ITR  RZE—=F+-A=1+—0 ' £&£EY
ARETFRAHRERTEARES5770000T (=%
— % ARHE397,780,0007T) BT X M MBIRFITEF R
EEFMEREEHARES 577000 (ZB——4F : AR
39,778,0007T ) ©
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21

Trade and Other Payables — Group and Company

PSR R M

21 EAERRAMEGR-KERLT

Group Company
@ 27

2013 2012 2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AEBTR ARETT AR®TR AREFT

Trade payables (a)(b) FERBRZX @)(b) 43,923 29,290 - -

Amounts due to related parties (Note 34)  FEf< Bk 7 28 (Mi534) 937 - - -

Salary and staff welfare payables L 3NE? é& BTERF 69,035 50,891 - -

Advances from customers XPEe 47,363 84,770 - -

VAT and business tax payable JERISEF R EER 47,291 30,042 - -

Accrued expenses JBIREHR 34,901 66,779 - -

Construction fee payable B TR250B 57,242 158,613 - -
Contingent consideration for business Iﬁm%’éﬁﬁ@(s)

combination (c) 4,940 35,170 - -

Deferred consideration for business BRCEWELE

combination 5,888 8,832 - -

Deposits of distributors IEHERES 26,391 33,262 - -

Interest payable FERTFIB 14,400 14,400 - -

QOthers Hit 10,549 25,584 919 1,176

362,860 537,633 919 1,176

(@  The fair values of trade and other payables approximate their
carrying amounts.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade and other payables are
mainly denominated in RMB.

() At 31 December 2013, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
based on invoice date is as follows:

@ EERAREMENRZAABERINSEREE
B

ARRZRTEBENRR REAMENFIRRE
BEEAARKE -

(b) —F-ZF+-A=1+—B ' KEBEMRIRE
X%ia,ﬁ;ﬁaﬁﬁﬁw DT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

AER®TR AREFT

0-180 days 0-180K 36,214 22,059
181-360 days 181-360K 2,934 5,453
Over 360 days B18360K 4,775 1,778
43,923 29,290

(c)  The contingent consideration is a fixed amount agreed in the
acquisition agreements if certain conditions are met. As a result of
the assessment of the Kingdee Medical’s performance indicators,
RMB23,160,000 (2012: RMB13,012,500) was recognised as
other gains (Note 25).
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22 Deferred Income — Group

2 ERERA-5H

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR AREFT

Deferred service fee income (a) IEIE B 4 RIS WA (@) 67,767 83,384
Deferred government grant (b) EREBUTIE B D) 18,140 36,449
85,907 119,833

(@  The amount represents service fees received in advance from
customers for software maintenance services to be provided in

periods beyond the financial year end.

@  FEAEERESEERERAMKENE PR
2 REHREASMBEE -

() Movement of deferred government grants is as follows: b ETHEERARMEEMT
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARETT
At 1 January »—B—A 36,449 48,128
Additions R 51,819 34,255
Recognised in the income statement B RIER (70,128) (45,934)
At 31 December »+=-B=+-—H 18,140 36,449

The amount represents cash received from government for
financing various research and development projects conducted
by the Group. These cash received will be recognised as income
when certain stipulated conditions required by government
are met (usually when after the related development project is

ZE AR B NFEE B MR ER -
LRRRAERRN RS AR CBR SERBNRAE
TR B FEpk iR ) HER AR B s o

completed).
23 Revenue 23 EX#
The Group’s turnover includes, separately or in combination, revenues SEMEXHEOFECAEESEEN )  BHHE B
from sales of software, sales of hardware, software implementation E BEBHRRB « BT R L R 8
services, software solution consulting and support services and sale B MAEERNE - SEECMBERNTEIEER - &
of computer and related products. Revenue is stated net of applicable EBRENTEE:
value-added tax (“VAT”) in the PRC and comprises the following:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARBFT
Sales of software HHHEE 770,491 873,578
Software implementation services HHERRSKIA 431,194 486,750
Software solution consulting and support services B R RS R 352,426 354,177
Sales of computers and related products BRMEBERHEE 48,014 50,988
1,602,125 1,765,493
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24 Expenses by Nature 24 EHEFENHER
Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing expenses, FIRREERA - HEREEER - AR RAEKARITR
research and development costs and administrative expenses are BERANEBRAMITIT

analysed as follows:

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
IN: 5 AREFTT
Research and development costs W R BB AR

Amounts incurred BExHeE 225,669 283,138
Less: development costs capitalised L B 2 BB (198,180) (252,049
Add: amortisation (Note 8) s BRI FEB A (FIS) 205,401 169,264
232,890 200,357
Employee benefit expenses (Note 26) BT X (HT3E26) 1,071,333 1,416,633
Less: amount included in development costs o BERHARRERA 2R (194,205) (230,030)
877,128 1,186,603
Depreciation (Note 7) e (FfizE7) 51,416 34,500
Less: amount included in development costs B BERTRARRRERAZ 28 (10,694) (8,329)
40,722 26,171
QOutsourcing services IVBRREE 113,923 129,912
Cost of inventories consumed (Note 12) ERFERAR(HF2) 79,321 133,309
Sales promotion SHEHERER AR 65,702 86,185
Rental and utilities HeRAREEER 49,944 59,718
Traveling EIRE 41,925 78,005
Advertising BENA 30,154 89,500

Amortisation of acquired licenses and copyrights W E R (P 5Es)

(Note 8) 30,134 26,866
Other tax and surcharge HipFi e K 28,120 39,698
Office WNE 22,663 43,732
Professional service HERBER 15,429 22,935
Training b= k= 6,019 6,239
Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) T3 R R 8 (P 3E6) 3,361 3,966
Auditors’ remuneration il 2,350 1,600
Amortisation of computer software for own use (Note 8) 5 FEE IS & 54 ([ 218) 2,129 3,456
Amortisation of customer relationship (Note 8) EPMEEE () 1,248 1,768
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment EETEE  ITHRDEER 864 1,833

(Note 31) (P5E31)

Impairment of receivables (Note 11) FENBRZURE (FTFE11) (1,027) 815
Others Hib 19,090 46,803
Total Fo s 1,662,089 2,189,471
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25 Other Gains — Net % RttfIH -8
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT
VAT refund (a) HETRE@R) 142,612 161,068
Government grants ERAIE B #8h 84,776 56,861
Rental income — net (Note 10) RS WA —FEF10) 38,745 27,074
Re-measurement of the contingent consideration for A B E L (FfiE21)
business combinations (Note 21) 23,160 9,639
Gains from sale of available-for-sale financial asset HETHNESRHEERS - 2,028
Gains on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32) HETFRARIR M (FE32) 5,188 -
Others Hity 3,004 3,413
297,485 260,083
(@  According to the current tax regulations in the PRC, the @)  BREBRTPEFHBHE SRS RENEERR
development and sales of computer software are subject to VAT 1% RGMIEET - RZT——F - BBERERE
with an applicable rate of 17%. In 2011, the State Department B SRR EENERERELEREE TR
issued a circular regarding the “Taxation Policy for Encouraging REBA (BB 2011) 5450 X fF) o (KERRZBA - 1
the Development of Software and Integrated Circuits Industry” (Guo T ——FRE - BER-RATABEELATTHRE
Fa [2011] No.4). Pursuant to the Circular, software enterprises EEMEHER  ZRITOHEEUULETE - HE
engaged in the sales of self-developed software in the PRC and BRENRERT S BB%NBOETRMERREE -
pay VAT at a rate of 17% are entitled to VAT refund to the extent
that the effective VAT rate of the sales of the software in the PRC
exceeds 3% of the sales amounts.
26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’ 26 MBIBfAX(AE=NL)
Emoluments)
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTFT
Wages, salaries and bonus I8 2ENiES 757,648 1,030,929
Commissions SHERRK 119,601 140,878
Staff welfare B T r2F 19,581 35,130
Pension scheme contributions (a) RIREHEIE @) 145,699 180,909
Share options granted to directors and EEREEERERE
employees (Note 16) (Kizx16) 28,804 28,787
1,071,333 1,416,633
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26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’
Emoluments) (continueq)

(@)

(b)

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
schemes organised by the relevant local government authorities
in the PRC. The Group is required to make monthly contributions
to the retirement schemes at rates ranging from 8% to 22.5%,
depending on the location of the subsidiaries, based on the basic
salaries of eligible employees. The local government authorities
are responsible for the pension liabilities to retired employees.
Forfeited contributions made by the Group on behalf of employees
who leave the scheme prior to full vesting of the contributions
cannot be used by the employer to reduce the existing level of
contributions.

Directors and Chief executive officer’s emoluments

The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31
December 2013 is set out below:

Name of Directors Fees
EERR fdk
RMB’000
AR®FT
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (CEOQ) 150
BAOBEE(BRITE)
Mr. Chen Deng Kun 150
BREHEA
Mr. Yang Jian(i) 150
1ot 5t 4 (WIEE())
Mr. Ho Ching Hua® 150
(B E
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu® 150
BAKZ L
Mr. Wu Cheng® 150
Mr. Yeung Kwok On® 200
HEZ L
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle® 200
Gary Clark Biddle 4t &*

2% RIBIAX(SETH®) 9

@)

(b)

Salary

3
RMB’000
AR®TFT
1,293

791

520

&R EETERNARRARRESRNTRER
BINEHE - AEEEABKAERERNELAT S
HI8% = 22.5% (1R T M B 2 Bl 2 s e ) iR ik &
SRR - EHBTREE R ERRSEARE A
BiR e - FEEREENEERG2EERAELZ
SRR - NG hETAERRRBHFK

%o

EERERITENHSE
BE-T =F+-A=1-AL5E BuEER
BREBTENFHMNOT -

Employer’s

contribution

Discretionary to pension
bonuses Share options scheme
BREFEHRIE

miERe R EEH®
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AR®TT AR®TR
145 2,953 25

87 749 25

29 749 25

- 216 =

- 216 -

- 216 -

- 216 =

- 216 -

(i) Mr. Yang Jian was appointed as executive director of the
Company on 20 March 2013.
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26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’ 26 BIBHRX(AEEML) 2
Emoluments) (continueq)

(b) Directors and Chief executive officer’s emoluments ) ESREEITENMEE)
(continued)
The remuneration of each Director for the year ended 31 BE-T-——F+-A=+—HILFE BUEEN
December 2012 is set out below: T
Employer’s
contribution
Discretionary to pension
Name of Directors Fees Salary bonuses  Share options scheme
RG]
BEMY e B [l fERE EEHRK
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFTT AREFTT AREFT AR¥FTT AREFT
Mr. Xu Shao Chun (CEQ) 150 1,556 465 3,790 22
BOBRE(ERRITE)
Mr. Chen Deng Kun 150 796 168 1,971 22
BB A
Mr. Ho Ching Hua® 150 - - 303 -
(BEETE
Ms. Dong Ming Zhu®(j) 150 - - - -
ERTRL L ()
Mr. Wu Cheng® 150 - - 303 -
SEAE
Mr. Yeung Kwok On® 200 - - 455 -
1BEZ
Mr. Gary Clark Biddle® 200 - - 455 -
Gary Clark Biddle 2t &*
()  Ms. Dong Ming Zhu was appointed as non-executive ) AREARZE-——FNAZT-—HEGERLK
director of the Company on 21 August 2012. HTARREIMIEITES -
During 2013, no director or supervisor of the Company (1) —E-ZFEALETEAMESRERE)KEIT
received any emolument from the Group as an inducement to join ARRAMATEE A E S0 ABE 2 - kQUEEIE
or upon joining the Group; or (2) received any compensation for AFAEREESHERERA METORE Q)
loss of office as a director or management of any member of the HEXRAEREAAEHS  (ZT—ZF : §)
Group; or (3) waived or agreed to waive any emoluments (2012:
Nil).
Those directors marked asterisk (4 are independent non-executive DPERBINRARARE—=F+ A=+~
directors of the Company as at 31 December 2013 and 2012. AMN-—Z——F+-_A=+—BBUFHITES -
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26 Employee Benefit Expenses (Including Directors’ 26

Emoluments) (continueq)
(c) Five highest paid individuals

©

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include three (2012: two) directors whose

RIBHRAZ(SEEHS) @)

UGB HEMAL
AERARBAUKSHFMOALEE=U(=F
D ZDES  MNFHME X2 RO

emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented above. kB e AEE ST NESBRUAL(ZE—=F : =f1)
The emoluments payable to the remaining two (2012: three) ATEEBT
individuals during the year are as follows:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER®TT ARETT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EA%s  BEZH -
other allowances and benefits in kind Hip 2B B YIS 2,108 2,797
Bonuses #e 295 928
Pension scheme contributions RIREHEIER 111 100
Share options HEARE = -
2,514 3,825
The emoluments fell within the following bands: EHME TFIEEEEA
Number of individuals
AB
2013 2012
Emolument bands FHsEE
HKDNil-HKD1,000,000 0785 %1,000,000/8 & 3 1
HKD1,000,001-HKD1,500,000 1,000,001 21,500,000/ = 1
HKD1,500,001-HKD2,000,000 1,500,001/& % 22,000,000/& % - 1
27 Finance Costs — Net 21 MENE-PBE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREFT
Interest income (Note 31) ASCONCED) 8,788 6,813
Bank charges (Note 31) BITFEB (P3E31) (506) (897)
Net foreign exchange loss ERIBLTE 44 16
Interest on borrowings (Note 31) [ESRIE R fE M 2 (HEE31) (110,197) (86,214)
Less: interest capitalised in construction W EEIREREAE
in progress (Note 31) (P7E31) = 21,199
(101,871) (59,083)
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28

Income Tax Expense 28 MBREH

RERBHRBRRBEETEARAMERAEROEER
L WERFEEOEFHANEER ETHEN -

Taxation on the PRC profits is calculated on the estimated assessable
profit for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing in the PRC.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 4R & B %5 sk it &

2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT AREFT
PRC income tax FEIREMEH

— Current income tax —EHIFEN 13,061 3,512
— Over-provision in previous year - FFE%E = (5,916)
— Deferred income tax (Note 20) —IBEFTEH (Fi3E20) 4,111 4,359
17,172 1,955

@  No provision for profits tax in the Cayman Islands and Hong Kong @ ARAEERZEFERNERSHE B BLEER

has been made as the Group has no income assessable for profits
tax for the years in those jurisdictions.

Kingdee China and Shenzhen Kingdee Middleware Co., Ltd. ()
were qualified as national important software enterprise and is

entitled to the preferential tax rate of 10% for the year ended 31

December 2013.

As at February 2009, according to Cai Shui Zi [2009] No.1 issued ©
by relevant tax authorities in the PRC, Shanghai Kingdee Software

Co., Ltd. was qualified as an approved software enterprise in Feb

2011 and was entitled to be exempted from enterprise income tax

from year 2009 to year 2010 and a 50% deduction of income tax

rate from year 2011 to year 2013. So Shanghai Kingdee Software

Co., Ltd. applied tax rate of 12.5% in 2013 (2012: 12.5%).

According to Cai Shui Zi [2008] by Ministry of Science and ()
Technology, Ministry of Finance and tax authorities in the PRC,

Kingdee Medical Software Co., Ltd was qualified as national

important software enterprise from 2011 to 2014 and is entitled

to the tax rate of 15% to calculate income tax expense.

Other PRC subsidiaries of the Group applied the tax rate of 25%. ©)

B - %S R EEHZE ARG
Bitkfs -

ERPERRY ERFRHERRANAERESN
BHOCENRE  RULEEEE_T-—=F1_A4
=T HHAHBRRTEAINNEBER LA E RS
FR1SH -

1R 1% BB B Sp PR A0 B 7 200018157 + £
BLEHUARAINR - E——F - FRATATA
BREGCEERIZZ_TTNFE_T-TFE
TEEFREH  —2——F2 T =FRFEke
EHEH 0 ANEEBRB12%MEEHR KA
ERBH(ZE—ZF :125%)

BERHED - MERSHERHE AR A BHONE
F[008] - EBEIUHNBEERABNZE——F
EE-NFHREFAEREIMRMEEER -
IR E SR 15% R B R TS -

Hhh TR A BRI TE o
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28 Income Tax Expense (continued) 28 MBREA®)
The taxation on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the AEEERAFEER LA ENAEHBEREBREARL
theoretical amount that would have arisen using the principal rate of the MECEMEHEAER RN ENTEENTR - £8BF2R
PRC enterprise income tax due to the following: T&:
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT AREFT
Profit /(loss) before tax BRI, (B518E) 136,579 (162,020)
Tax at the statutory tax rate of 25% (2012: 25%) EETEM R 5% E R =
(ZT——% : 25%) 34,145 (40,506)
Effects of: 7%
— Preferential tax rates —EREEHE (28,525) 11,899
— Tax losses not recognised — B ERREEMEHEEN
HBER 17,432 37,107
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — R AHIBHER 3,814 5,969
— Additional deductible allowance for research and — AR HEE R
development expenses (9,694) (12,514)
17,172 1,955
29 Loss Attributable to Owners of the Company 29 FAFESHEARKGERT 8
The loss attributable to owners of the Company is dealt with in the FARRARBBRE 2 AL ERESA ARERFAARK
financial statements of the Company to the extent of RMB 2,213,000 2,213,0007L( = —ZF AEE AR 5,049,0007T) °
(2012: loss of RMB 5,049,000 ).
30 Earnings Per Share 0 SERES
(@) Basic (@ E=X
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit EABRUBZRERBAALDBNMEENFE - BRI
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted average FREBTLBROMETOHEE -
number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.
2013 2012
Profit/(Loss) attributable to owners of B/ (BR)BBRARAMES
the Company (RMB’000) (AR®EFT) 126,400 (140,246)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BETLERAIETS & (T
in issue (thousands) 2,523,742 2,516,344
Basic earnings/(loss) per share EXERET (R (AR%S)
(RMB cents per share) 5.01 (5.57)
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30 Earnings Per Share (continued) 0 BwSEERE
(b) Diluted b ®HE

Diluted (loss)/earnings per share is calculated by adjusting RESREBRBRIMEIRENET T ARW LR
the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding % BEESBITLBRMOIMETIREGETE - AF)K
assuming the conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. TEARREFTECHEN - B EREEER
The Company’s outstanding share options are potentially dilutive. BARITEEREMRER EEEE  BEEURE
A calculation is done to determine the number of shares that NFEEMRABRNAATRD THIMEMEE )BT
could have been issued at fair value (determined as the average ZIRNEE - BERLEARFENRNEE - BERE
market price of the Company’s shares during the periods). The BRETEMEE B TNROBE AL - EREE
number of shares so calculated is compared with the number of SIENT  ERARFREMBIT L EER

shares that would have been issued assuming the exercise of the
share options. The difference is added to the denominator as the
number of ordinary shares issued for no consideration.

2013
Profit attributable to owners of the Company (RMB’000) FIEBRBRARRMEE(ARETT) 126,400
Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue BETERRAIE T 98 (Fat)

(thousands) 2,523,742
Adjustments for — share options (thousands) AR (TR 98,055
Weighted average number of ordinary shares TEREGRKEN

for diluted earnings — per share (thousands) Emike - SRFHE(TE) 2,621,797
Diluted earnings per share (RMB cents per share) wESRkE(ARES) 4.82
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31 Cash Generated from Operations 31 BEEENAS
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AE®TT AREBTT
Profit/(loss) before income tax MNBAERAEH,/(FE) 136,579 (162,020)
Adjustments for: HEIER
— Depreciation of property, plant and —TEE - TR MREITE (T
equipment (Note 7) 51,416 34,500
— Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment -THE IRmERELESE
(Note 24) (PHz¥24) 864 1,833
— Amortisation of land use rights (Note 6) — i AR K (P +26) 3,361 3,966
— Amortisation of intangible assets (Note 8) —ERAESE(MES) 238,912 201,354
— Finance costs — net (Note 27) -5 ERFEMED) 101,409 59,099
— Share option expenses (Note 16) —HRREE A (HI5E16) 28,804 28,787
— Gains on disposal of available-for-sale financial assets ~ — HE Rt HESFIE AR - (2,028)
— Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (Note 32) —HETF AR (5,188) -
— Share of loss in associates (Note 9) —DEBENAREBENE 119 -
— Fair value gains on investment property (Note 10) —REMEHEN L BELE NS
(F#£10) (1,048) (60,958)
— Re-measurement of the contingent consideration for ~ — ¥ EHE L ESH
business combination (Note 25) (23,160) (15,607)
532,068 88,926
Changes in working capital: LEESEE)
— Inventories -F& = 100
— Trade and other receivables — IR R AL A LR R 34,720 29,920
— Deferred income —EEWA (33,926) (29,512)
— Trade and other payables — IR R A AT IR (37,453) 7,200
— Due from/to customers on implementation contracts — Bl ENEEBRARR 28,931 (24,733)
Cash generated from operations REEENBRS 524,340 71,901
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Cash Generated from Operations (continued) 3N EEEENBRE )
a) In the cash flow statement, proceeds from disposal ) HEHERERR HETHE IRKREN
of property, plant and equipment comprise: FriSmEsE :
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TR ARBTT
Net book amount (Note 7) FREFE (M) 17,138 10,938
Loss on disposals of property, plant and equipment HETREE « TRARENEE (864) (1,833)
(Note 24) GEZD)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HERSE - THRERENER 16,274 9,105
plant and equipment
b) Non-cash transactions b) H*REXRH
For the years ended 31 December 2013 and 2012, there NZE——FER_E-—=F+-A=1+—H Kr£E
are several non-cash transactions such as construction MERNTIZEZUA - BENSRECESHEE - EMNE
fee, contingent business consideration, deferred business EAEAHHESERERS  ULHRERFER
consideration that have not been settled are disclosed in Note 21. BIFAHTEER1 ©
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32 Disposal of Subsidiaries 32 HEFLT

(a) Partial disposal of subsidiaries (a)

On 1 January 2013, the Group disposed of its 80.1% equity
interest in Luoyang Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd (“Luoyang Kingdee”)
to an independent individual.

On 23 March 2013, the Group disposed of its 80.1% equity
interest in Xuzhou Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd (“Xuzhou Kingdee”)
to an independent individual.

After completion of above disposals, the Group’s shareholdings
in Luoyang Kingdee and Xuzhou Kingdee reduced from 100% to
19.9%, respectively. They became associates of the Group. The
gain on loss of control in Luoyang and Xuzhou is set out as below:

BOHET AT
“T-ZHF-A-B FEEREGERRHER
RR(BEEE 801 %M IR L ERBINEA -

St

\E-=F=A-+=H AEESHFMRET
BRAF (RIS ])80.1%H AR H E 4B 6018

o

>_

R ETKE  AEEEH S RGNS EAR
$E$100%TF £199%  WHEHEAAEEREA
CHEB RGNS EHENKSTIRIT

2013
—E-=f
RMB’000
AREFL
Sales consideration HEYE 4,400
Fair value of interest retained REEENAREE 929
Net liabilities disposed of HEFEE (1,324)
Gain on partial disposal of subsidiaries B HEFATHKE 4,005
The effects of partial disposal on the cash flows 257 H & F AT AEERE S RERNTE
of the Group were as follows:
Cash consideration received BB L HE 3,180
Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the Wt FATIHERNRE RASEEY
subsidiaries disposed of (276)
Net cash inflow on partial disposal BRHEFLRMRRRTA 2,904
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32 Disposal of Subsidiaries (continued)

(b)

Cash consideration received WnB|E & 18 450

Less: Cash and cash equivalents in the subsidiary disposed of ~ Jgi% : HEBRNE S LIRS SEY 47)

Net cash inflow on disposal HEFATNBRERA 403

33 Commitments - Group 33 RE-%KE
(@) Operating lease commitments ( REBERE
The Group had total minimum future lease payments under non- AEERETTHE EFLEERENGERRL N2
cancelable operating leases in respect of buildings as follows: REMENTBENT

2013 2012

RMB’000 RMB’000

AER®TT ARETT

Not later than one year THRB—F 21,845 21,239

Later than one year and not later than five years ~ BiR—EETHBARE 12,347 20,448

34,192 41,687

Disposal of a subsidiary

32 HEFLF &)
(b)) HEFAR

On 27 February 2013, the Group disposed of its 100% equity RZE—ZF-A=++H FEEUHEBEARKE
interest in Nantong Kingdee Software Co.,Ltd (“Nantong 450000 BB ERAR ([EREE])
Kingdee”) to Nantong Seewan Software Technology Co,. Ltd., an 100%MREHERBYUE - FRBENCEEEH
independent third party at cash consideration of RMB450,000. HER AR °
Nantong Kingdee
HESR
RMB’000
ARETFT
Sales consideration SHEEE 450
Net liabilities disposed of HEFaE 733
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary HEFATNEKS 1,183

The effects of disposal on the cash flows
of the Group were as follows:

HEFRRAHAKERERERNFE -
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34 Related Parties Transactions M BBWARS
The Group is controlled by Mr. Xu Shao Chun, which owns 30.31% of AEBRBROEES - EEEREENI%MRE - Hf
the Company’s shares. The remaining 69.69% of the shares are widely 69.69%IEZHA - AEBRRIEHARRIE

held. The ultimate controlling party of the Group is Mr. Xu Shao Chun.

Except as disclosed in Note 11 (Advance to directors), Note 18 (Share- BE-T—=F+-A=1+—0 BRTAHEBERR2H
based payment) and Note 26 (Director’s emoluments) to the consolidated HN(EZEH) - WE1s(UARH AERNI AR S) kit
financial statements, the Group had transactions with related parties for B(EZFRERELENR)I  AEEEMBAEZ 55 R
the year ended 31 December 2013 as follows: T
(@) Sales of goods (a Em#HE
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
UN: & AREFT
— Associates =N 7,119 -
Goods are sold based on the price lists in force and terms that EMERITERENE = F MBS RAKRLE -

would be available to third parties.

(b) Year-end balances arising from sales of goods ) HEEENELRLER
2013 2012
RMB’000 RMB’000
AER%TR AREFTL
— Associates (Note 21) — B AR (HI5E21) 937
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